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152nd Meeting of the Board of Directors
10.30am, Thursday 3 March 2022
Via Teams

AGENDA
ITEM

Purpose

Presented by

2
p3

Apologies for absence and
declaration of any conflicts of
interest
Minutes of the Board of
Directors’ Meeting held on 13
January 2022

Time
10
mins

General business
1

Category

To receive and record apologies for
absence and request and record any
declarations of interest

Andy Trotter
Chair

Governance

To approve the minutes of the last
meeting

Andy Trotter
Chair

Governance

3
p11

Matters arising

To confirm actions allocated at
previous meetings have been
completed

Andy Trotter
Chair

Governance

4
p12

Board Assurance Framework

To accept the BAF and note any
changes since the last meeting

Andy Trotter
Chair

Governance

Governance and Strategy
5
p16
6
p25
7
p35

8
p61
9
p84

10
p98

90 mins

Chief Executive Report

To note the developments within the
trust and in the local health
economy.

Ify Okocha,
Chief Executive

Strategy

Chief Operating Officer’s Report

To note the update and agree any
actions proposed.

Iain Dimond,
Chief Operating
Officer

Quality and
Performance

Oxleas Strategy 2021-24
• Priority One – Achieving
zero delays
• Building block three –
Creating a safety and
learning culture

To note progress on the strategy
implementation.

Lorraine
Regan/Jane
Wells,
Workstream leads

Strategy

Equality Delivery System 2 report

To approve

Freedom to Speak Up Guardian
report

To note and consider any strategic
implications

Charitable Funds annual report

To ratify

Rachel Evans,
Director of
Strategy and
People
Rachel Evans,
Director of
Strategy and
People
Azara Mukhtar,
Director of
Finance

Committee reports
11
p122

Performance and Quality
Assurance Committee

Strategy

Governance

Governance

20 mins
To note the contents of the report
and agree any strategic implications

Page 1 of 2

Yemisi Gibbons,
Non Executive
Director

Quality and
performance
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152nd Meeting of the Board of Directors
10.30am, Thursday 3 March 2022
Via Teams

AGENDA
12
p164 Business Committee

To note the contents of the report
and agree any strategic implications

13
p188

Partnership Committee

To note the contents of the report
and agree any strategic implications

14
p190

Infrastructure Committee

To note the contents of the report
and agree any strategic implications

15
p192

People Committee

To note the contents of the report
and agree any strategic implications

16
p196

Audit and Risk Assurance report

To note the contents of the report
and agree any strategic implications

Health and Safety Oversight
Committee

To note the contents of the report
and agree any strategic implications

17
p199

Jo Stimpson,
Non Executive
Director
Jo Stimpson,
Non Executive
Director
Jim Shaikh, Non
Executive
Director
Nina HingoraniCrain,
Non Executive
Director
Steve Dilworth
Non Executive
Director
Nina HingoraniCrain,
Non Executive
Director

Board reports
18
p201

19
p221

Financial strategy
and performance
Strategic
partnerships
Strategy and
performance
Strategy and
governance
Governance

Governance

15 mins

Board visits reports

Information relating to the
experience of staff and patients and
assess impact on delivery of trust
objectives

Andy Trotter
Chair

Staff engagement

Council of Governors update

To note the contents of the report

Andy Trotter
Chair

Governance

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
REVIEW EFFECTIVENESS OF MEETING
DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next Board of Directors Meeting will take place on:
Thursday 5 May 2022 at 10.30am
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022

Item
Enclosure

2
2

Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 13 January 2022
Susan Owen, Risk and Governance Manager
Andy Trotter, Chair
Public

What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

For approval by the Board. The Board is asked to agree the minutes as a
true record of the meeting.
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151st Meeting of the Board of Directors
Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 13 January 2022
Virtual meeting held via MS Teams
Board of Directors
Andy Trotter
Steve Dilworth
Yemisi Gibbons
Nina Hingorani-Crain
Suzanne Shale
Jo Stimpson (JSti)
Dr Ify Okocha
Iain Dimond
Rachel Evans (RCE)
Azara Mukhtar
Jane Wells
Neil Springham
Dr Abi Fadipe (Afa)
Dr Tom Clark

Trust Chair
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Chief Executive
Chief Operating Officer
Director for Strategy and People
Director of Finance
Director of Nursing
Director of Therapies
Joint Interim Medical Director
Joint Interim Medical Director

In attendance
Jim Shaikh (JSh)
Sophy Proctor
Sally Bryden (SBr)
Alison Furzer (AFu)
Rachel T Evans (RTE)
Aisling Clifford
Lawrence Mack
Susan Owen

Non-executive Director designate
Non-executive Director designate
Trust Secretary and Associate Director of Corporate Affairs
Director or Informatics
Director of Esates and Facilities
Service Director, Acute and Crisis Services
Service Director, Forensic and Prison Services
Risk and Governance Manager (minutes)

Observing governors
Sue Sauter
Liz Moss
Zara King
Rebekah Marks-Hubbard

Lead Governor and Public: Bexley
Public: Bromley
Public: Greenwich
Staff: Greenwich Adult

Item Subject

Action

1

Apologies for absence
• None given.
Declarations of interest
• None declared.
AT introduced JSh and SP to the meeting as non-executive directors designate.

Noted

2

Minutes of last meeting
Pending the amendments submitted in advance, the minutes of the meeting on 4 November
2021 were agreed as an accurate record.

Approved

3

Matters arising
2021-11/#1: ID responded to the questions relating to the Bexley Care s75 agreement. The
metrics on the measures of success are subject to further iteration and will become more
sophisticated over time. A non-executive director will join the programme board. There is
no requirement for a joint role on information and cyber security.

Noted

4

Board Assurance Framework

Noted
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Item Subject

Action

IO asked that board sub-committees review the target rating for risks in line with risk
appetite, for example setting a target rating of 4 for some of the risks is ambitious given the
current staffing issues.
YG – Will mandatory vaccines for staff be added to the BAF?
IO – This will be raised at the People Committee and will be highlighted on the BAF.
SD – The committees should reflect on the ratings and agree if these are appropriate. There
is no doubt that mandatory vaccines should be on the Board Assurance Framework.
RCE – This has been discussed and will be included on the Board Assurance Framework.
5

Chief Executive Report
IO presented the Chief Executive Report. The Omicron wave continues to have an impact,
and this is expected to continue for a further eight weeks. Services continued to be
delivered despite the challenges. The current data suggested that approximately 22% of
staff have not had either the first or second dose of the Covid-19 vaccine and this has been a
focus of discussion. The recognition awards were a great success. OxCare is to be
launched at the end of this month and the board noted and commended the OxCare video
which showed how service users have been deeply involved in the development of the new
online patient health record. The board congratulated all the individuals and teams who
were nominated for awards and thanked the Communications and Engagement Teams for
organising the Recognition Awards event.

Noted

NHC – Is there are any scenario whereby the DHSC may contemplate that having antibodies
is an alternative to having the vaccine? We can come back to this question under the
mandatory vaccine item.
JSh – Have we identified a critical staffing level at which we would bring in remedial action?
IO – Every unit has a safe staffing establishment, but this cannot be aggregated to a trust
figure.
ID – We have business continuity plans so we can prioritise key services. There are some
services that must continue to be delivered and staff may need to be re-deployed to support
these. There is a sense that absences peaked last week with 130 absent for all Covid related
reasons and this has now dropped to 93.
SD – How many complaints are justified?
IO – The number of complaints relating to attitude and behaviour is reducing, but we know
that we need to do more to make improvements.
YG – The violence and aggression work is commendable. This is a two-way process of
listening and adapting.
6

Chief Operating Officer report
Noted
ID presented the Chief Operating Officer report. We are now three months into the change
from borough to service lines, and we can see the positive impact this has made. Despite the
impact of Covid, work on driving transformation and working at place is on-going. We have
opened a new mental health assessment suite at the PRUH and we have a good structure in
place. With regard to HMP Wandsworth, we have a plan in place with SLAM to improve how
mental health services are delivered. There is a growing sense that we were not getting the
traction, so we have agreed to end the sub-contract at the end of March 2022. This has the
full support of NHSE.
AT – When the situation is more settled, we should have formal opening for the mental
health assessment suite.
SD – This service has huge potential, as there is a lack of awareness within the police force
and the business community, so we must work on building the profile. It is encouraging to
see the comments about the memory service. Are there any issues with the dementia care
teams?
ID – We have had a service in Bromley for over 10 years, and this is a good practice example.
We have the opportunity to expand across Bexley and Greenwich using MHIS funding.
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Item Subject

Action

Generally, there is sense that we can do more for people with dementia, particularly those
living in care homes. We are committed to treating patients in the best possible way and
least restrictive way and to reduce the need for people to be admitted to a mental health
setting. We will use this as our metric, as well as patient experience. How we care for
patients with dementia and frailty will benefit from an integrated approach.
AFa – There are also clinical metrics on behavioural outcomes.
JSt – It is encouraging to see the positive stance on doing things differently and opening new
services despite difficult circumstances.
YG – The ALD day service was the first to close. Is there an alternative we are offering and
are we monitoring this?
ID – There are infection prevention and control concerns with the hydrotherapy service, and
we need to be able to run this safely, but we are trying to find alternatives. Most of the day
service patient have found their needs met in other ways, and a paper on this is to be
discussed at the PQAC next week.
SP – It is interesting to see the breath of provision. Are the metrics replicable across other
services?
ID – We are having conversations with the third sector on how we address lower level needs.
Some work is nationally mandated, and there is a need and a wish to do more on prevention.
Some of the metrics are quite crude at present, such as referrals, how we support GPs, how
many are patients are admitted to hospital or present at the emergency departments.
SS – Why is the crisis house running at low occupancy?
ID – This has five beds and is run by Hestia as a test and learn project. We have struggled to
engage clinicians in liaison teams on how we can use this, and we are focused on improving
this. We have no obligation to support this, but if the model works, we may wish to. The
crisis house addresses a different type of need to our acute wards.
SS – I endorse the value of these. They are life raft for the people who use it.
AC – They do take some time to bed into the system. We need to be clear about the entry
criteria and length of stay, but they provide an opportunity for patients to reset.
7

Oxleas Strategy 2021-24 - delivering quality management
Noted
TC presented an update on delivering quality management. We have embedded the use of
the Quality Management Framework (QMF), which is a tool for learning and continuous
development. This contributes to the delivery of our priorities, and we have a mature
programme that we are building on. We are developing our leadership, and we have
aligned the QMF to our strategy and priorities, so we can improve the quality of care
provided to patients. The quality control aspect will provide us with real time information,
and work on having dashboards at each level continues. In terms of quality assurance, we
are using the Improving Lives peer review programme to gain assurance that changes have
been made. We are making good progress with the QI programme. TC thanked Vicky Wood
and her team.
JSt – We need to have more confidence that we are making progress with dashboards so that
all teams have access to these to manage their quality data.
AFu – We are aiming to have these in place by the end of March 2022 and we are using the
leverage of other committees to achieve this.
SD – The board should receive an update at the May board meeting
YG – We do get updates at PQAC, and it would be beneficial to bring that paper to the board.

8

Mortality surveillance quarterly report
JW presented the quarterly mortality surveillance report. For the last five years, it has been
a national requirement to bring a quarterly report to the board to provide assurance that all
deaths are reviewed by a senior clinician and investigated where required.
We have returned to a more familiar level of deaths compared to last year where we were
more impacted by Covid. None were considered avoidable. The need for end-of-life care
Page 3 of 7

Noted

7

Item Subject

Action

has increased during the pandemic, with more people choosing to die in their own homes,
and our teams providing excellent care. We have also looked at suicide and safety in mental
health across the ICS and this has given us good information for the suicide prevention
strategy. There has also been a change in LEDER process and the ICS role in this. JSt added
that the new structure means that there has been a change in responsibilities, with staff
completing investigations before they move to new roles.
SD – How do we support patients through a vulnerable time?
JW – There will be a welfare check and follow up of patients who do not attend
appointments.
SS – It is good to hear we have responded to the rising demand in end-of-life care and this
may be a long term shift.
AFa – This report shows that suicide prevention is also a public health issue, and we need to
do more work on this.
TC – We are having discussions about demand and resourcing
SP – We also need to consider health inequalities.
JSh – How will the changes to the LEDER system impact on us?
JW – We hope that the new process will speed up how we share information with all
agencies.
JSti – In some instances, the new format reviews may be too light. We will rely on the
expertise of our teams, but we might choose to undertake some additional investigations.
9

Vaccination as a condition of deployment
Noted
RCE updated the board on vaccination as a condition of deployment. The deadline for
unvaccinated staff to have their first dose is 3 February 2022, and both doses by 31 March
2022, and we are validating records against national systems to understand how many staff
will be affected. We are doing all we can to support vaccine hesitant staff to have the
vaccine, including setting up extra clinics and ensuring that staff have access to reliable
information. We are also refining our business continuity plans. We have a project plan and
a steering group, but we acknowledge that the next few months will be challenging. There is
no suggestion that the legislation will be revoked, but some staff find the legislation very
difficult to accept. IO said that some staff have been asking for guarantees that we cannot
give. We are concerned about the impact this will have on service delivery wait times and
staff morale. We will ensure that our approach is consistent, and we will keep the board
appraised.
NHC – Have the DHSC undertaken an impact analysis and what is the scenario planning from
1 April 2022? To what extent are we being too specific in our approach as to how we derive
our numbers, as it is not so clear for staff who are not critical to front line services but hold
services together. Where are we with respect to our peers on understanding the analysis?
SS – Do we know if the reason for some staff not having their second dose is because it is not
yet due?
SD – For services that are currently delivered virtually, is there an expectation that they will
return to face-to-face delivery? Is there any flexibility on remaining as a remote service and
would we be willing to do this?
IO – To return to NHC’s earlier question, there are many unknowns about the level of
immunity from natural antibodies and there has been no suggestion that this will be an
option. We have data by profession and team, and across London and the ICS we are
working to implement the rules in the same way.
ID – We have taken the view that all clinicians are in scope regardless of virtual working, as
there is no guarantee that will continue virtual only delivery in the future. There are a small
number of roles that are out of scope, and some where it is less clear. For roles where we
are not the employer, such as sub-contractors, we will need to work with our partners to set
our expectations. We have heard that some trusts outside our ICS are issuing contracts for
solely home working. We will take direction from NHSE.
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Item Subject

Action

RCE – The current guidance is that those in scope is very broad. Some trusts are finding
ways to redesign roles, but our ICS is committed to having a consistent approach. We
suspect that the number of people who have had the first dose recently, and are not yet
eligible for their second dose, is low.
NHC – I endorse the ICS approach but am concerned that we may lose staff to other trusts
who are allowing solely home working. What levers do we have to challenge this?
ID – The teams most at risk will be CMHTs. We need to be clear on the numbers so we can
plan for this.
IO – Within the next two weeks, we will have a clearer picture. We do not have many
services that can be delivered in a fully virtual way.
NHC – This is an overwhelming pressure; do we need to deprioritise other projects? Is it the
case that unvaccinated staff will not be employed from 1 April 2022, or we can start
proceedings on 1 April 2022?
YG – Have we taken legal advice?
ID – We have a project manager in post, plus administrative support, which will be a cost
pressure. We are running this as a project through the Covid Incident Co-ordination Centre
(ICC).
RCE – We will need to hold hearings, so we are revising the People Strategy as the whole of
the HR business partnering team will be focused on this. If unvaccinated staff have not had
their first dose by 3 February 2022, the process will start so their employment will cease
from 1 April 2022. For those who have had their first dose only, they have until 31 March
2022 to get their second dose. Legal advice is being provided centrally at ICS level.
SD – The board should receive an update at the awayday on 3 February 2022. If we lost 20%
of our staff, could we continue to operate and for how long?
IO – We will need to look at the data at team level as this will guide us as to whether we redeploy staff or close some services.
ID – We have well developed business continuity processes, and this will guide how we
proceed.
NHC – We need to review the governance arrangements, as the People Committee meets
every two months.
SB – If a board decision is needed, we can convene an extraordinary meeting.
10

Performance and Quality Assurance Committee report
YG presented the report from the Performance and Quality Assurance Committee. We
remain dedicated to zero s136 breaches. We are seeing more admissions and fewer
breaches, and there is good joint work between the Acute and Crisis Service and the police.

Noted

11

Quality Improvement and Innovation Committee report
AFa presented the report from the Quality Improvement and Innovation Committee. Good
progress has been made on all the domains. The committee received a presentation on
increasing service user involvement. The terms of reference will be reviewed to better
articulate our priorities. SS said that she was delighted to be taking over as chair of the
committee and driving this forward.

Noted

12

Business Committee report
JSti presented the report from the Business Committee. We continue to be in a breakeven
position. We do not expect problems this year, but we will need to find savings in 2022/23.
The committee will receive an update on Kent prisons mobilisation at the February 2022
meeting. AM said that the ICS is currently assessed at an NHSE/I System Oversight
Framework (SOF) rating of 3, but there is a risk of moving to rating of SOF4. We are working
with other trusts in the ICS, and we understand the key challenges and will need to provide
assurance to NHSE/I that we have a strong grip and robust plans for recovery. We have the
initial guidance for 2022/23 and we have been given the over-arching allocation for revenue.
For capital, we received £3m more core allocation than initially planned at ICS level. It is

Noted
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Item Subject

Action

difficult to assess the revenue envelope at this stage, but the clear NHSE/I expectation is for
breakeven plans.
13

Partnership Committee report
Noted
JSti presented the update from the Partnership Committee. The ICS will not take effect from
1 April 2022 as originally planned. It is still unclear how finances will be allocated. The SLP is
progressing well, and we are generating savings.

14

Infrastructure Committee report
SS presented the report from the Infrastructure Committee. The committee approved the
Green Plan, and thanked RTE and Anthony Worrall for their work on this. The committee
also noted the good outcome of the capital negotiations and that our emergency planning
and preparedness assurance return received 100% compliance approval from NHSE. The
committee also noted that the ICT team had responded effectively to a high-risk cyber event
which confirms we have built good systems.

Noted

JSt – Is the capital allocation acceptable to the trust?
SS – We need to be mindful of the PFI arrangements.
SD – According to media reports, the struggle for sovereignty is probably lost but may not be
entirely over as there is some Parliamentary support for preserving this aspect of NHS
governance..
AM – We will need to finalise which plans we will take forward, and we can discuss this
further at the March 2022 board meeting. We will have to reduce our initial plans but we
believe that we should be able to live within our allocation. We can work towards having a
draft plan by March 2022 and finalise this in April 2022.
15

People Committee report
NHC presented the report from the People Committee. The committee noted the 15%
medical vacancy rate.

16

Audit and Risk Assurance Committee report
Noted
SD presented the report from the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee. The committee
noted that the KMPG report of serious incidents received an outcome of amber/green. This
complimented the robust processes in place and noted the opportunity to make
improvements. The audit of wait lists received an outcome of amber/red, which was in line
with the trust forecast. The deadlines to achieve the actions are March 2022 and June 2022.
Grant Thornton gave an update on how green plans will feed into our annual report and
accounts. The committee noted the risk register report from the People Committee, and
the work being undertaken to reduce violence and aggression. There are also risks relating
to challenges on prison vacancies and turnover. The committee received a thematic analysis
of service line risks. The committee has considered inviting services to report their risk
register on a rotational basis, but this is covered in the quarterly operational reviews and
reports to other board sub-committees. JSt commented that the Local Counter Fraud
Specialist presented a review of timesheets and whilst there was no evidence of fraud, we
need to ensure that the recommendations are followed through.

17

Health and Safety Oversight Committee
NHC presented the report from the Health and Safety Oversight Committee. The risk
register will be presented to the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee on 18 January 2022,
and the Health and Safety Oversight Committee will receive a thematic review of service
health and safety risks in March 2022, to understand the issues that managers and staff are
concerned about. There continues to be an improvement in i-auditor scores. We are giving
attention to the implementation of lone working, and also how RIDDOR incidents are
reported and investigated.
SD – When can we expect to achieve consistency on lone working?
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Item Subject

Action

RTE – An update will be presented to the next meeting, and we expect to be in a better
place.
NHC – Colleagues on the front line need to drive this forward.
18

Board visits reports
AT asked for an update on recommendations. SB said that the process has been circulated,
and outstanding issues are included in the template before the visit takes place. All the
actions are recorded on Datix and reported to service directors meeting.
NHC – How do we ensure that issues that have relevance across the trust are picked up?
SB – This would be through the service directors meeting.
AT – Parking is consistently raised as an issue.
ID – We need to be open where issues cannot be resolved.
AC – Exasperation about parking has lasted a long time and this needs to be taken forward
through system working.

Noted

JSt – CAMHS Crisis Team: This was a good visit and an interesting team, with a range of
different professions in the team. There are many on-going challenges, but the team are in
control of this.
SD – Finance: The staff had a positive outlook. There were some issues on internal
communications, the band 7 ceiling, and relationships with service which will be looked into.
Issues about subscriptions to professional bodies and agile working we addressed on the day.
AT – Atlas House: No issues raised.
AT – CLDT: Some minor issues were raised relating to office space and parking, which ID will
take forward with RBG.
SS – HMP East Sutton Part (ESP) and HMP Maidstone: ESP is a small facility and small group
of staff.
SS – Mental Health Legislation Team: This a stable team which works hard and is effective in
heading off problems. SS has agreed to be the mental health legislation lead.
19

Council of Governors update
The Council of Governors update was noted.

Noted

20

Any other business
None raised.

Noted
Next meeting of the Board of Directors
Thursday 3 March 2022 at 10.30 am
Via MS Teams
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022
Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

Matters arising
Sally Bryden, Trust Secretary
Andy Trotter, Chair
Public

What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

For the Board to note

Item
Enclosure

3
3

12

Board of Directors
3 March 2022

Item
Enclosure

4
4

Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

Board Assurance Framework
Susan Owen, Risk and Governance Manager
Ify Okocha, Chief Executive
Not confidential

What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

To assure the Board that Board Assurance Frameworks risks are identified
and managed.

What risks/issues in the The report summarises key trust risks.
report need to be
Board sub-committees are reviewing risk appetite and mitigation plans
noted or acted upon?
There have been some changes to the rating for Business Committee risks
since the last meeting
A new risk on mandatory vaccines was added to the BAF in January 2022,
but this will now need to be reviewed by the People Committee as the
legislation is to be revoked
Where has this report
n/a
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in No
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
BAF – Board Assurance Framework
terms/acronyms used
ICS – Integrated Care System
in the report
DOF – Director of Finance
CFO – Chief Financial Officer
LA – local authority
Link to trust strategy
Link to Board
Assurance Framework
Please summarise
implications for:
Quality
Finances

The Board Assurance Framework includes risks relate to all eight building
blocks and the three big priorities; Maintaining oversight of these risks will
help to ensure that the trust is able to deliver the strategy.
The report summarises all the risk currently held on the Board Assurance
Framework

The Board Assurance Framework includes risks relating to quality.
The Board Assurance Framework includes risks relating to financial
sustainability.

13

Equality analysis
Service users/
carers/staff

The Board Assurance Framework includes risks relating to workforce
initiatives, including Building a Fairer Oxleas.
The Board Assurance Framework includes risks relating to patient
experience and outcome, and staff well-being and morale.

Executive Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (High-level / strategic summary)
As agreed at the November 2021 meeting, this report presents the Board
Assurance Framework (BAF) in a summary format. The full BAF is
available for information.
Changes to note since the January 2022 meeting
1984 - SE London ICS financial risk (revenue and capital): A funding
allocation was agreed by SEL CFOs/DoFs at the end of October 2021. The
trust is confident that it will achieve a breakeven position for the 2021/22
financial year. Rating reduced from moderate (9) to moderate (6).
1914 - Local Authority contracts for integrated and embedded services:
The risk for 2021/22 is financially mitigated by the block arrangement in
place. This will be kept under review as LAs complete their planning
rounds for 2022/23. Rating reduced from moderate (8) to low (4).
1606 - Bed management key cost driver: Target rating increased from low
(4) to moderate (6) to reflect current risk appetite.
1994 - Cyber security strategic risk: Target rating increased from
moderate (5) to high (10). It is accepted that this risk is constantly
evolving, and we cannot completely eliminate all cyber security threats.
The mitigation plan has been updated to reflect the further actions that
are being taken.

14

Board Assurance Framework 2021/22: summary version

25 February 2022
Current risk rating (blue line on graph)
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1177: Financial sustainability of the Trust in the medium/long term
1213: Vacancies and recruitment pressures
1471: Staff experiencing violence, aggression and discrimination at work
1502: Impact of demand on staff satisfaction and retention
1984: SE London ICS financial risk (revenue and capital) - in year
1606: Bed management - key cost driver
1844: Demand on CMHTs
1905: Reducing prone restraint
1912: Pressure on district nursing teams
1913: Reducing wait times in community services
1914: Local Authority contracts for integrated and embedded services
1921: Responding to service delivery concerns
1994: Cyber security strategic risk
1995: Achieving carbon zero
2006: ICS capital regime
2012: Uncertainties created by move to Integrated Care System approach
2025: Mandatory Covid-19 vaccinations for health and social care staff
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February 2022: Rating reduced from moderate (8) to low (4)
February 2022: Target rating increased from moderate (5) to high (10). Risk is constantly evolving. We cannot completely eliminate all cyber threats.

1502: Impact of demand on staff satisfaction and retention
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1905: Reducing prone restraint
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1913: Reducing wait times in community services

1921: Responding to service delivery concerns

1914: Local Authority contracts for integrated and embedded services
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2006: ICS capital regime

1995: Achieving carbon zero
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February 2022: Rating reduced from moderate (9) to moderate (6)
February 2022: Target rating increased from low (4) to moderate (6)

1844: Demand on CMHTs
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Exceptions to note

1471: Staff experiencing violence, aggression and discrimination at
work

1606: Bed management - key cost driver
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1213: Vacancies and recruitment pressures
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2012: Uncertainties created by move to Integrated Care System
approach
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Board Assurance Framework 2021/22: summary version

25 February 2022
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022
Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

Item
Enclosure

5
-

Chief Executive Report
Sally Bryden, Associate Director and Trust Secretary
Ify Okocha, Chief Executive
Public

What is the purpose of For the Board’s information
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?
What risks/issues in the Board is asked to note the following issues/developments:
report need to be
• Plans to revoke the vaccination as a condition of deployment
noted or acted upon?
legislation
• New national Living with COVID-19 plan
• The appointment of Dr Abimbola Fadipe as Medical Director
• The impact of staff vacancies and increased demand on services
• Overview of trust performance
Where has this report
Some content has been discussed at Board sub-committees and by the
been previously
Executive Team.
discussed?
Are there any issues in None expected
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
VCOD – vaccination as a condition of deployment
terms/acronyms used
NHS E/I NHS England and NHS Improvement
in the report
ICS – Integrated Care System
CQC – Care Quality Commission
MHST – Mental Health Support Team
Link to trust strategy
Link to Board
Assurance Framework
Please summarise
implications for:
Quality
Finances

It links to the three main priorities of the strategy and several of the
building blocks.
There are links to risks around staff morale, service quality and financial
pressures.

The pressures created by Covid have a potential impact on the quality
of our services. The report includes an update on quality assurance
processes.
The report gives an update on our financial position.
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Equality analysis
Service users/
carers/staff

Executive Summary

The schools mental health services aims to destigmatise mental health
care and promote equal access.
The negative impact of Covid and increased pressures on services on
patient experience is noted in mental health services.
Oxcare has been developed with service user involvement and aims to
improve communication with service users and carers.
There are several developments aiming to improve workforce wellbeing
and the negative impact of Vaccination as a Condition of Deployment on
staff morale is noted.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Key Highlights, Issues and Exceptions
The report includes the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Plans to revoke the vaccination as a condition of deployment
legislation are noted and the actions we have taken in
response.
New national Living with COVID-19 plan and how we are
expecting further guidance on changes to COVID-19 restrictions
within healthcare settings.
The appointment of Dr Abimbola Fadipe as Medical Director
Care quality developments and processes in place to improve
quality and provide assurance.
Increased focus on workforce planning and responding to the
impact of staff vacancies and increased demand on services.
Improvements in patient experience in physical health services
and deterioration in patient experience in mental health
services.

Further information
Links to further information are included in the report and other
reports in the board pack give more information on operational, people
and quality issues.
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National update
1. Vaccination as a Condition of Deployment for Healthcare Workers
On 31 January 2022, the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care announced that the
Government intends to revoke the regulations requiring vaccination as a condition of deployment
for healthcare workers from 1 April 2022. This is subject to Parliamentary process requiring further
consultation and a vote to be passed into legislation. Following that announcement, NHS England
and NHS Improvement (NHS E/I) wrote to all NHS organisations requesting employers not to serve
notice of termination to employees affected by the VCOD regulations. The consultation by the
Department of Health and Social Care closed on 16 February 2022.
We have put into action the NHS E/I advice and informed colleagues of developments and how to
participate in the consultation. In our communications with colleagues, we have recognised what a
difficult experience this has been for some individuals and teams and continue to offer support.
2. COVID-19 restrictions lifting
The Government published the Living with COVID-19 plan on 21 February which lays out how
restrictions in response to COVID-19 are being lifted. As guidance is reviewed on testing, isolation
periods for NHS staff and patients and visiting we will update our advice to staff and share with
colleagues.
Currently (24 Feb 2022), there are no changes to Infection Prevention and Control requirements
within NHS sites including staff, patients and visitors being required to wear a mask/face covering
in healthcare settings. As guidance is developed nationally, we will update our advice to colleagues
locally.

Regional/system update
South East Integrated Care System
Two webinars will be held in March for local people to learn more about the formal establishment
of the South East London Integrated Care System (ICS) and what this means for them.
The meetings will be taking place virtually on Microsoft Teams on Tuesday 1 March and 9 March
and details have been shared with our staff and members. The events aim to share some of the
current thinking on the development of the ICS and talk through the work underway to establish
the system formally. They will also be used to get feedback on plans and documents such as the
ICS constitution.
We continue to work with partners locally to develop the South East London ICS structures, plans
and governance arrangements.
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Organisational report
1. Board appointments
Following the recruitment and interview process, our Nominations Committee for Executive
Appointments met on Tuesday 22 February and appointed Dr Abimbola Fadipe as our new
Medical Director. Dr Fadipe takes up the role with immediate effect. It is expected that Dr Fadipe
will become the Responsible Officer (Medical Profession) once the due process has been
completed.

2. COVID-19 update
The situation at 24 Feb 2022 in Oxleas is:
(Figures in Jan report in brackets)

Staff Covid-19 positive
Staff absent due to other Covid-19
issues
Patients Covid-19 positive
(community and mental health beds)
Prisons
Wards in outbreak status
Covid- 19 vaccination
figures (substantive staff only)
Lateral Flow Testing reporting

11 (94)
10 (52)
3 (70)
21 across 10 sites (397)
None (9)
First dose = 94% (84%)
Second dose = 89% (74%)
Booster = 38% (43%)
Staff reporting at least twice weekly = 14%
(20%)
National data combined with locally collected
data 40%

Our Incident Control Centre continues to have regular daily and weekly meetings.

3.

Performance Overview

Care quality
Earlier this month, we had our regular quarterly engagement meeting with the Care Quality
Commission. In addition to the standard agenda items (changes to the trust and leadership,
serious incidents / safeguarding concerns and the BAF), we provided updates on the future
developments in our community mental health teams and the HMP Wandsworth recovery and
transition plan.
The CQC provided an update on the changes to their inspection model and future strategy. The
CQC are recommencing their comprehensive inspections, using a risk-based approach. However,
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they confirmed that we would not have a comprehensive inspection within the first quarter of
2022/23. Responsive inspections are still a possibility dependent if high risks are identified.
Within Oxleas, to provide assurance on our current position and to identify areas for
improvement, we are undertaking core service self-assessments facilitated by the Quality
Assurance Team. These are in addition to the Improving Lives quality visits and focused assurance
visits which include reviews of actions responding to issues raised in previous CQC inspections. By
the end of the current financial year, each core service will have completed a selfassessment which will presented to the Board at a strategic awayday. Each self-assessment will be
analysed to ascertain the priority areas and form a collaborative improvement plan for each
service line.
This is part of our overall quality assurance process which includes regular oversight group
meetings, Improving Lives reviews (an internal peer review process using a risk-based approach),
our annual clinical audit programme, quality control analysis alongside staff training, support and
self-assessments.
Our People
The change to mandatory vaccination policy had a significant impact on our workforce. Our focus
is now on rebuilding trust and improving wellbeing.
Turnover rates are at 20%, a little higher than the previous year.
Sickness rates in January were at 6%, reflecting the spread of Omicron.
Vacancy rates remain high - above 10%.
The trust is increasing its focus on workforce planning, including recruitment and retention. We
are bringing in dedicated support to undertake an analysis of our baseline, our trends and the
opportunities for improvement. This will be overseen by a new Workforce Planning Steering
Group which will also oversee a new package of measures, including graduate recruitment,
international recruitment, and the effective deployment of new roles to reduce
pressures. Workshops are taking place with each Service Directorate and each profession to
identify opportunities for tackling hotspots and streamlining procedures.
Patient experience
We continue to monitor family & friends test scores against our targets in both mental and
physical health services. Physical health services show an increase in positive feedback, very close
to the target of 90% at 89%, accompanied by a lowering of negative feedback to 4% (target for
negative is 5%).
This is contrasted to a trend of falling positive feedback for mental health services at 71%
accompanied by a rise in negative feedback at 15%. The patient experience team has undertaken a
manual check of comments that shows dissatisfaction in mental health still centres on attitude
and behaviour.
The fall in satisfaction with mental health services is in line with national trends as demand for
services increases and recruitment remains problematic. Directorates are monitoring stress levels
of staff with increases in reflective practice such as Schwartz Rounds planned.
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Overall though, satisfaction with kindness and care, information giving and planning care remain
close to or above targets in all areas.
Strategy Update on building block 2: Bolstering service user and carer involvement and coproduction.
Over the past two months, we have taken forward this strategy building block in the following
ways. Funding for additional posts for a carers/support network lead and people participation
leads has been finalised and a new assistant director for involvement was appointed at the end of
December (recruitment is currently underway for the remaining posts).
In January 2022, the new Involvement advisory group commenced and is developing its terms of
reference. This brings together the various functions of involvement and links them with service
directorates via their local representatives. This group will support Oxleas to integrate coproduction practice into the clinical frontline and will monitor both the quantity and quality of coproduction across Oxleas.
In addition, involvement leads will deliver bespoke co-production skills training, in conjunction
with the Tavistock and Portman clinic, on the Oxleas early leader programme to 200 staff. The aim
is to embed co-production as a core competence for our new and future leaders.
Further updates will be taken to the Executive Team and Board.
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4. Trust developments
Oxcare launch

The formal launch of our new patient online health record Oxcare took place on 31 January.
This virtual event showcased how Oxcare enables our patients to take control of their own
health records and connects them with their care team. It allows patients to add their own
information about their health, details of any current health issues or conditions and
includes a diary or trackers to record mood and pain levels.
Oxcare is accessible from any web-enabled device – tablet, smart phone or computer - and
is being rolled out month-by-month to teams and services within Oxleas from now.
The launch meeting included presentations from our Chief Executive, Dr Ify Okocha; Chair,
Andy Trotter and service users as well as a Q&A session.
The event can be viewed at: http://oxleas.nhs.uk/oxcare-launch.
Ministerial visit to services in Bexley
The work of our Bexley Mental Health Support Team (MHST) and the pioneering work they
are doing with schools in Bexley was showcased during a ministerial visit this month. The
visit, by Children and Families Minister, Will Quince and National Youth Mental Health
Ambassador, Dr Alex George, took place during Children’s Mental Health Week.
Pupils at Trinity Church of England School in Belvedere are some of the first in the UK to
receive support from the Oxleas NHS Bexley Mental Health Support Team who were
established in January 2021, following a successful bid to NHSE/I and the Department for
Education.
The team delivers early intervention and prevention support to children and young people
with mild to moderate mental health needs. They work with schools to build resilience and
positive wellbeing through assemblies on key topics of concern, such as exam stress or
anxiety, and by facilitating peer support sessions.
Year 13 Pupil, Emily Saunders, said: "It was extremely exciting for our school and everyone
involved to be able to meet Dr Alex George and Minister Quince. It was an incredible
opportunity to share our experiences and to promote initiating conversations about mental
health in education, celebrating and raising awareness of Children's Mental Health Week."
Emily Coribel, Children’s Mental Health Nurse at Oxleas NHS, said: “It is very normal to
experience mental health difficulties – it is part of life. We work with 22 schools in Bexley to
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be alert to the early signs that a young person is struggling and can help and support with
early intervention, to help prevent the need for referral to a CAMHS service. Schooling has
been disrupted for so many pupils as a result of the pandemic and we’re there as a resource
to help with any anxieties a pupil may have.”
Will Quince added: “The resilience of children and young people should never be
underestimated and the pupils here are a testament to this. It was great to hear from them
and their teachers about the positive impact that mental health support teams are having.”
Trinity school’s mental health support team is just one of nearly 400 teams that will be
accessible to school and college pupils and students in England by 2023, meaning that
almost three million young people will have access to this critical support.
Global healthcare conference
The 2nd Oxleas NHS Global Health Conference will take place on Tuesday 15 March 2022.
The theme for this event is innovations in healthcare in response to COVID-19 pandemic and
aims to share learning locally and globally. The event will be officially opened by Professor
Mark Radford CBE, Deputy Chief Nursing Officer for England and Chief Nurse, Health
Education England.
Our online conference will be livestreamed and access will be enabled via our website.
Oxleas joint venture anniversary
In January, we celebrated the ten year anniversary of SARD, a joint venture we set up with
Mango Swiss Limited. This successful partnership has created software to keep track of
medical training and career development, including medical revalidation, eRostering and job
planning. This software has since been successfully sold to other NHS organisations.
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3 March 2022
Subject
Author
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Confidentiality/
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Item
Enclosure

6
6

Board Operational Performance Report
Iain Dimond - Chief Operating Officer
Iain Dimond – Chief Operating Officer
Public

What is the purpose of For the Board’s information
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?
What risks/issues in the The Board is asked to note:
report need to be
• Actions being taken by the service directorate senior management
noted or acted upon?
teams in collaboration with corporate colleagues to improve
recruitment, strengthen morale and create greater management
capacity and grip
• Pressure on service delivery caused by a high vacancy factor in
some service lines
• The development of the Individual Placement and Support model
across Adult Community Mental Health services
• Action being taken to achieve waiting time targets and manage
pressures on services
• Development/extension of new services including Autistic
Spectrum Disorder – beyond assessment and the expansion of the
Urgent Community Response offer to include a Falls Pick Up
service
• Consultation around the closure of Adult Learning Disability Day
Services
• Update on the re-inspection of mental health services at HMP
Wandsworth
• Actions being taken in response to service quality concerns
Where has this report
N/A
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in No
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
HBPOS – Health Based Place of Safety
terms/acronyms used
ED – Emergency Department
in the report
CRHTT – Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment Team
PICU – Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit
COPD – Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease
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MSK – Musculo-Skeletal
JET – Joint Emergency Team
ASD – Autistic Spectrum Disorder
CAMHS – Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service
CQC – Care Quality Commission
CTR – Care & Treatment Reviews
IPS – Individual Placement and Support
UCR – Urgent Community Response
MDT – multi-disciplinary team
BCU – Basic Command Unit
PRUH – Princess Royal University Hospital
SNET – Support Network Engagement Tool
DMT – Directorate Management Team
HEPA – high efficiency particulate air
TUPE – Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)
IPS – Individual Placement and Support
Link to trust strategy

This report relates to the Trust’s strategy in several ways including:
• waiting times performance
• service line performance
• partnership working
• workforce

Link to Board
Assurance Framework

This relates to several BAF risks including those describing pressure on
services, staffing and service delivery.

Please summarise
implications for:
Quality
Finances
Equality analysis

Service users/
carers/staff

The report outline steps being taken to improve quality of services including
reducing waiting times.
The report outlines the impact of investment in several developments. The
report also outlines areas of financial overperformance and potential cost
pressures
The closure of Adult LD day services and the development of community based
alternatives plus the work to ensure access for individuals with ASD aim to
improve access and equity.
The report outlines the impact of several developments on people using our
services and their families and their involvement in the programmes.
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Executive Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report provides a summary from each service directorate on
current achievements, challenges and developments.
Key Highlights
• Actions being taken in adult mental health directorate to
improve morale and create greater management capacity/
focus/ grip
• Review of the Diabetes service model in Greenwich
• Development of a lymphodoema service
• Development of a Falls Pick Up service as part of the Urgent
Community Response
• Development of an ASD beyond assessment offer
• Impact of Covid on community physical health
• Delivery of second dose COVID vaccinations to 12-15 year olds
in Greenwich
• Adult Learning Disability day services consultation
• Update on prison bid submissions
• HMP Wandsworth – update on mental health service transfer and
•

CQC reinspection

Prison and Children and Young People bid updates

Additional information/analysis
Additional background information on items included can be provided
or briefing sessions/virtual visits arranged.
Action required
The Board is asked to note the report.

28

Board Operational Report
March 2022

Acute & Crisis Mental Health
The directorate has 23 distinct clinical teams across 6 geographical clusters. The directorate also incorporates the
site administrative teams, crisis house and chaplaincy services. The gaps in leadership and management
establishment are affecting our ability to manage operations, attend key meetings, spend time with front line teams;
and therefore on delivering work in the timeframes and to the quality that is required. Establishing a Band 8a lead
for older people services, and additional capacity at Band 8C Service Manager, Band 8C Head of Nursing and Practice
Development level is now a necessity.
Our Associate Clinical Directors (3 x roles at 2xp.a.’s each) have started in post. Their initial focus will be on
supporting inpatient teams to unblock barriers to discharge and to increase confidence to safely discharge patients
to the care of the home treatment team - shaving valuable days off our length of stay. The ACDs will be supported to
analyse the whole division and select one or two system issues which they will attempt to solve in partnership with
colleagues from other directorates.
We made positive progress in reducing out of area placements in Q3. However, the arrival of Omicron/Covid meant
that we had to close wards and operate with reduced staffing/ temporary staffing for many weeks in Nov, Dec, and
January. We are pleased that we managed to maintain flow and keep out of area placements to a minimum despite
this. The new FLOW systems are embedded, and we are now designing an automated dashboard to replace our
manual processes. The biggest challenges for FLOW are maintaining the gains, embedding strong clinical and
operational leadership; and establishing a consistent and effective grip across 7 days rather than the 9-5 model
which exists now.
The nature of acute and crisis work is that our day-to-day colleagues include police, ambulance, acute trusts, and
local authorities. We have established an understanding with local BCU leads (Basic Command Units) for the
prioritisation of workstreams to jointly solve system issues. We will select a maximum of two knotty system issues
for us to solve (E.g. Affinity Protocol; seeking advice prior to s136; criminal behaviour involving patients). We are
fully engaged in the pan-London project to digitise the s136 pathway for the capital and are ready to move on this
when required. We have delivered phase 1 of the programme to enhance our front door – augmenting the crisis line
with additional staff and new telephony so that it can offer a consistent response across 24hrs to the public, London
Ambulance Service (LAS), and police. This includes warm transfers from LAS since Jan 2022.
We have prioritised cluster areas for re-setting in Q4 and Q1 2022/23 which includes a total of 10 teams. Our
resetting work will include: 1) cultural reset to boost morale and confidence of staff 2) delivering consistent
operational and clinical models and 3) consistent data entry and Demand, Capacity & Productivity models. The areas
of focus are the 3 x adult wards at Oxleas House, 4x Crisis Resolution & Home Treatment Teams, and 3 x Liaison
teams. Our work on the Tarn PICU will also include a review of the MDT model there and a proposal to reduce the
bed base to 12 and incorporate a seclusion room and a de-escalation area. We have multiple other projects
underway including refreshing the contract and operational oversight of the Crisis House, publishing a Bed
Management Policy, using winter pressure funds to pilot multiple schemes, and standardising the male and female
PICU pathways with colleagues in South London Partnership.
Our overspend on private beds has reduced. However, we are challenged by our vacancy and sickness/absence
rates. Our business plan for 2022/23 will include creative plans to address both. We also intend to carry out a deep
dive to better understand the high costs associated with temporary nursing staff. Whilst we have good assurance
around policies and process, we need to ensure that practice is always consistent.
We launched the Mental Assessment Suite at the Princess Royal University Hospital on 20th December and look
forward to the evaluation. We know that staffing costs for the PRUH assessment area and the Queen Elizabeth
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Hospital Assessment suite are higher than the original funding. Running costs for both are driving up overspend.
Both services will need to be evaluated and reviewed so that we know the expected demand, the staffing model,
and the associated cost.
We are reviewing the contract and operational policy for the Crisis House, which has recently been granted planning
permission to re-locate to a 7 -bed building in Bexley. Renewal of the contract for at least another year will allow us
to re-launch the service, marketing it as a key component of the acute care pathway. We are confident that when
we increase oversight and operational grip that we will achieve the 75% occupancy target.
There are three performance indicators where we have inconsistent or underperformance: Gatekeeping, s132 and
72hr follow up. We now understand that these inconsistencies are directly related to lack of a process, absence of
staff briefing and some data issues (wrong team being listed). We are confident that we will improve and sustain a
performance which is above target. Completion of the SNET is a concern – but more so the consistent involvement
of carers and family in our conversations. Failure to get this right has implications for safe discharge for our service
users, risk assessment/management, trust, and reputation. Much of our work with teams will involve resetting the
culture and practice of our teams, placing the social system at the heart of our conversations and care.
Our biggest concern is the morale of staff and the workload. Acute & Crisis services are naturally busy, and our staff
have shown great resilience. We will show compassion and care to our staff and invest in them (culture re-set, away
day model, being more present) and expect that this is translated into patient, compassionate and thorough care for
our patients. We must increase our middle management capacity to achieve the results that we want. We must
free up space and time to think and to reflect which will mean reducing meetings and eliminating projects and tasks
which do not add value, and which are not aligned to our Trust and Directorate priorities.

Community Mental Health
Achievements
Individual Placement and Support
IPS (individual placement and support) is a service that exists in all three boroughs and supports our patients to
secure employment. IPS workers are employed by Mind but are fully integrated within our community teams.
The IPS service offers intensive, individually tailored support to help people to choose and find the right job, with
ongoing support for the employer and employee to help ensure the person keeps their job.
•

IPS uses a personalised and strength-based approach to support people to find a job of their choosing.

•

IPS aims to help people find paid jobs within just weeks of being referred to the service.

•

Then it continues to work with both employer and employee to sustain the job placement for as long as
possible, or to help the client into a different job.

•

IPS directly tackles the lack of integration of healthcare and employment services and the disconnection of
different specialists by integrating employment specialists into health teams.

The Bromley, Lewisham and Greenwich (BLG) Mind IPS Service which supports our Bromley and Greenwich teams
continues to achieve good employment outcomes for Oxleas patients, with the team (embedded within the East &
West Localities and Early Intervention in Psychosis Teams in Bromley & Greenwich) providing a good response to the
challenges presented by Covid. The teams supported 212 patients in the first three quarters of 2021/22, enabling 79
people to move into full time employment (during a challenging employment environment in 2020/21 195 patients
were supported with 38 moving into employment). Patients have moved into a variety of jobs including Radio
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Producer, Admin Officer, Modelling, Nursery Assistant, Translator, ICT Coordinator and the Retail and Service
Industries.
Moving forward in 2022/23, the service will be expanding with a further 5.5 FTE Employment Specialists joining the
teams as part of the Community Mental Health Transformation programme. BLG Mind will be working with Oxleas to
look at where these new staff are allocated to maximise benefits for patients and ensure compliance with the IPS
model and Fidelity Scale. The service currently has a Good rating (following independent fidelity review) with the
award of being an IPS Centre of Excellence. We are however expecting a further audit in October 2022, with one of
the key areas of measurement & performance being how integrated the service is within the allocated teams and
the commitment and understanding across Oxleas from the Senior/Executive level through to Clinical Teams.
IPS Bexley run by Bexley Mind are currently in the middle of their fidelity review and we should have the results in a
few weeks.
Challenges
In the Community Mental Health Directorate, we have developed the idea of “Big issues for Big support” these are
not our directorate priorities or long term projects. They are the three metrics that we want all of our staff to give a
real focus on in that month, these issues will change frequently with none remaining on the list for more than a
couple of months. If we have not seen positive change in that period, we need to move to a longer term QI
approach. The results might be a direct improvement in the metric but might also be a much clearer understanding
of the reason something is a challenge enabling a clear plan of action.
Two examples of Big Issues for January were our supervision compliance. This had been under achieving almost
every month, staff had been encouraging and reminding teams. We had a real focus of “Big support” with the DMT
and business office really behind this. We found some issues we had not been focussed on: in a number of teams
medical staff were having a significant adverse impact on compliance; in Bexley, due to the level of vacancies and
sickness absence, they could not get much higher than they already were. These along with other findings enabled
the support to be targeted in the right place. This led to an improvement in compliance and work is now in place to
sustain this.

Another example is CPA six month reviews, a wicked problem across the directorate with either poor performance
or poor patient satisfaction in areas where performance was better. We had an action plan previously for Bromley
and initially asked all three boroughs to follow this, more analysis exposed different issues in each borough that has
enabled us to provide more targeted interventions that will both improve the compliance but also the quality of the
interventions. This action plan is now embedded but the nature of the metric means improvement will take between
three and six months. Live data reviewed on the 17/2/22 showed Bromley getting above the 90% line for the first
time in over a year suggesting the plans are moving us in the right direction.
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Adult Learning Disabilities
Day services
We began the 30 day consultation on the 7th February to close ALD day services at Goldie Leigh. We will use the
money to re-provide interventions in the community to a broader range of service users than would have wanted or
needed to access a building-based service. This is the right thing to do for people with a learning disability. However,
we must acknowledge that those services have done an excellent job caring for some of our most vulnerable service
users for over thirty years and so it will be bittersweet. We are planning an event for the staff, present and past,
alongside service users, to celebrate what the services have achieved over the years. There is a steering group
developing some exciting plans for the expansion of our Greenwich Community team to better meet the needs of
people with challenging behaviour and older people with dementia as part of the reinvestment.
Autistic Spectrum Disorder - Beyond assessment
We have operated a pilot within our ASD team for the last two years working with patients known to existing mental
health services who have ASD, this is the first time we have provided anything beyond assessment. We have just
heard that this pilot will be funded recurrently from April 2022. We have worked on the model with South London &
Maudsley (SLAM) and the funding source is the learning disability and autism transformation programme. The
funding is significantly more than we had for the pilot and is based on the recommendations we made to the
transformation programme in partnership with SLAM last year.
In a typical case, our team will get involved in the care of the service user when admitted to one of our Oxleas
mental health wards or referred by one of our Community Mental Health Teams as at risk of admission. While
facilitating the inter-agency liaison in order to trigger care and treatment reviews or professionals meetings, we
would look at immediate adjustments that can be made in the ward environment or within the community mental
health team to facilitate the communication of the different agencies with the client and adjust different
environmental and clinical aspects of the care to better respond to specific ASD needs. This has the aim of trying to
‘lift’ some ASD barriers in order to maximise the service user’s access to the different aspects of mental health care
provided. This in turn is likely to result in expediting the discharge into community services and/or maximising access
to and benefits from community services in order to prevent admission.
The support provided is always specific and centred to the individual needs of the service users and the unique
difficulties they experience in order to maximise access to mental health care. Some of the support provided
includes:
-

Several ASD specific adjustments to therapeutic approaches delivered by community mental health teams.
Specialist assessments (including sensory processing assessments, ASD adjustments to Assessments of Daily
Living skills, Functional Communication Assessments, positive behaviour analysis assessments).
Low/High intensity psychological therapy including brief cognitive behavioural therapy interventions to
increase emotional self-regulation and awareness of impact of own behaviour up on self and other people.

-
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Liaising with and providing training to housing staff and key workers to increase awareness of the specific
needs of service users and adjustments to be introduced in their care.
Liaison and specialist sessions with families to increase awareness and management of difficulties in the
home environment.
Specialist training on ASD and mental health comorbidities and how to respond to a crisis.

Adult Community Physical Health
Whilst we have stepped down from the Level 4 National Emergency status last month, our services continue to
experience pressure due to high demand. Bexley district nurse teams continue to be supported by the specialist
teams due to high demand however Greenwich have been able to stand down their business continuity plans.
However, both boroughs reinstated these on Friday 18th February due to storm Eunice. The covid virtual ward was
stepped up in January 22 to provide oxygen weaning in the community and currently has one Greenwich patient on
its caseload, reflecting the very low uptake of this service nationally during the recent covid omicron surge. The
system is currently discussing the development of a virtual ward across the system.
Current Achievements
Training has been procured for lymphoedema as the initial stages of a project plan to create the Greenwich service.
Ten staff across Bexley and Greenwich will receive training. Recruitment for the Project Manager role is under way
and the post holder will then lead recruitment and development of the service, from estates to the operational
policy.
We are delighted to announce that Cherie Trew, the Bexley Rapid Response Team Lead has now completed her
Advanced Clinical Practitioner (ACP) course. We have two other staff members in our directorate undertaking the
course and we will be reviewing how we fully utilise their new competencies in our service.
Challenges
Supporting our acute partners at Queen Elizabeth Hospital with flow has been an ongoing challenge throughout the
covid pandemic. We have utilised winter pressures funding to extend the Greenwich funded Navigator nurse to work
at weekends and some evenings. The post supports discharge of patients under community services, signposting
those not known to us and liaising with care homes to facilitate timely transfers home for residents.
Recruitment of allied health professionals remains a challenge with a particular pressure in podiatry. Recruitment
has improved over the past few weeks but is an ongoing challenge with fixed term contracts covering maternity
leave or from non-recurrent funding being less attractive than permanent contracts. An AHP Apprenticeship role is
being advertised and this is linking to the AHP strategic workforce plan.
One of our key challenges is to continue to reduce the waiting lists which have accumulated because of the step
down of services throughout the pandemic and the increasing demand which is the new ‘business as usual’. Teams
affected include community rehab, Bexley MSK, Neuro, Diabetes and Falls.
Developments
Bexley and Greenwich deliver the Urgent Crisis Response through the Rapid Response and Joint Emergency Team.
NHS England have requested an expansion of the remit of the services to include a Falls pick up service via a referral
from London Ambulance Service. We are developing the standard operating procedure for this within our teams, we
have procured falls lifting devices, and will be undertaking a programme of training from the Greenwich telecare
service.
The Greenwich Diabetes team are reviewing their model in order to align closely with the six primary care networks
within the borough. Bexley services are already structured around local care networks. Investment, following work
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around the core offer, has resulted in the recruitment of an additional band 7 Diabetes Specialist Nurse. Referrals
have continued to increase since the covid pandemic, and the review of the model will see closer working with the
GPs. Workshops with GPs have helped shape the model and we are using caseload data to establish how we can best
align based on need. One of the Greenwich primary care networks (Riverview) has a significantly higher diabetes
caseload within both primary care and the Oxleas specialist diabetes team; our aim is to develop services around this
data.
Respiratory Diagnostic services are set to resume from 24th February having been stopped during the covid
pandemic following national guidance regarding infection control risks. Our services have developed a standard
operating procedure for diagnostic services detailing the use of a HEPA filter which reduces infection control risks
within the clinic.

Children and Young People Directorate
Achievements
The directorate has continued to deliver an extended children’s’ community nursing service, achieved through
winter pressures funding, enabling facilitation of early discharge of children and young people from acute settings.
An analysis of the impact is underway.
We have been delivering the second Covid-19 vaccination dose for 12–15-year-olds in school and have a nursing lead
now in post supporting this. We are awaiting confirmation on the requirements for Special Schools.
We have successfully progressed to the next stage of the re-tender for Greenwich Integrated Therapies Service and
are beginning to scope out the proposed service model. Following submission of the proposed service model, a
series of negotiations will take place.
Challenges
Looked After Children’s pathways are being reviewed as part of the focus on Zero Delays – we are focussing on the
interface with children’s social care in the local authority.
Young Greenwich are currently in business continuity because of sickness which has compounded the impact of
vacancies within the service. Communication with commissioners and partners has taken place and we have
expanded the scope of priority 1 services. There are also challenges in the continence team due to long term
sickness – discussions are taking place with commissioners on the impact of this on waits for assessment. The
continence team is a team of 2.6 WTE so any sickness can have a significant impact on service delivery.
All boroughs delivering child and adolescent mental health services are now operating with over 20% vacancies. The
most affected pathway is within the Bromley teams which is resulting in higher waits in this borough. Business
continuity planning has commenced in Bromley and weekly meetings are in place.
Developments
Work continues with service re-modelling in both Bexley and Greenwich child and adolescent mental health services.
An equality impact assessment will be completed shortly on the impact of the reduction of funding by the local
authority for these services in Bexley. Currently there is consideration being given to invoking business continuity in
Bexley.
A waiting list oversight meeting has been established across child and adolescent mental health services to ensure
active oversight and planning for those waiting for an assessment.
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The Directorate Management Team have agreed a Children and Young People’s Strategy which links to the Oxleas
Strategy. Directorate leads are taking forward areas of responsibility to deliver against the strategy with the priority
focus of recruiting workforce to fill vacancies and retention of existing staff.

Forensics and Prison
Current Achievements
Kent Prison Contract -The team are now in the mobilisation/implementation stage for engagement with the
commissioners, incumbent providers, and our new subcontractor providers. Everything is still on track for
commencing the new contract on 1st April 2022.
The Heathrow Immigration Removal Centre bid unsuccessful and awarded to Practice Plus Group. The Southwest
England bid was submitted on 6th December 2021 with notification expected in late March 2022. Our intelligence is
indicating the commissioners are unlikely to award all lots to a single provider, however, this remains to be seen. The
Thames Valley bid was submitted on 27th December 2021 with notification expected in April 2022.
Challenges
The mental health service contract at HMP Wandsworth will transition from South London and Maudsley to Oxleas on
1st of April 2022. The TUPE process is currently underway, ending on 5th of March when we will have a better
understanding of the staff moving over. In the meantime, a mobilisation team is overseeing the project plan to ensure
a smooth handover. The CQC returned to undertake a re-inspection of mental health services 1st -3rd February and
the formal report is pending. However, feedback on the final day was that they remain concerned about the mental
health service particularly regarding inpatient staffing levels, referral management, lack of a liaison and assessment
service as well as caseloads. They acknowledged the hard work and dedication of the team under difficult
circumstances. No further citations were issued to SLAM but continued reporting to CQC until the end of contract is
required. There will be another CQC visit within 3 months once we have taken on responsibility for the delivery of
mental health services.
Our on-going challenges remain recruitment and retention of staff band 5 RMNs at the Bracton/Memorial Forensic
services, band 5 RGNs and pharmacy technicians in Prisons, and band 7 psychologists across the Directorate. There
are national shortages within these professional groups.
Developments
NHS England London Commissioners have completed the work on transforming nine patient pathways to ensure
consistency of services across London prisons. The first three pathways for presentation are Early Day In Custody,
Mental Health and Release & Transfer. Presentations are scheduled for 8th-10th March 2022.
The directorate presented a paper to the Trust Executive Team recently detailing a plan for strengthening quality
assurance across prisons. If further expansion of our prison portfolio is successful, then further discussions will need
to take place to ensure we have the correct management capacity and capability.
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022

Item
Enclosure

7a
7a

Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

Big Priority One – Zero Delays – Progress update
Lorraine Regan
Lorraine Regan -Senior Responsible Officer for Zero Delays
Not confidential

What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

We are bringing the board a presentation to update them on the progress
of Zero delays.

What risks/issues in the The Board is asked to note the actions to date and plans for the coming
report need to be
months including establishing a Quality Improvement network on
noted or acted upon?
reducing waiting times, a patient access charter and a waiting list
management framework to promote consistency.
Where has this report
Progress against Zero delays is reported at the transformation board and
been previously
at formal executive before coming to the board.
discussed?
Are there any issues in No areas that could cause upset and nothing of a sensitive nature
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
Acronyms are defined within the report and include:
terms/acronyms used
MDT – Multi Disciplinary Team
in the report
TPD – Team Performance Dashboard
QI – Quality Improvement
IAPT – Improving Access to Psychological Therapies
CYP – children and young people
SLAM – South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust
CCG – clinical commissioning group
ADHD – attention deficit hyperactivity disorder
CMH – community mental health
TPD – Team performance dashboard
Link to trust strategy

Zero Delays is Big Priority one within the Trust’s strategy

Link to Board
Assurance Framework

The Zero delays programme is linked to 1913 reducing wait times in
community services

Please summarise
implications for:
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Quality

Finances
Equality analysis
Service users/
carers/staff

The aim of workstream is to improve the quality of our services by
reducing unnecessary waits.
Providing care in a more timely way aims to use financial resources
more effectively.
The workstream aims to improve timely access for all and improve
consistency across services.
Providing care in a more timely way aims to improve patient and family
experience and outcomes and also improve staff satisfaction with
quality of care.

Zero Delays
Programme Update
37

Trust Board
3rd March 2022
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Following consultation with staff, service users and system partners, Oxleas launched its new three year strategy in April 2021. Within this
strategy, one of the Big Priorities identified is Zero Delays.
The aim of this priority is to ensure that patients and staff have a mutual understanding of the expected waiting time for a service, and that
this service is provided without delays.

Case for Change
Service user experience and outcomes
• Our service users understand that there is high demand for our services and that they are sometimes required to wait for the right care. They have however indicated
that they often receive unclear guidance about the length of the wait, or that the Trust often does not meet the initial wait time shared.
• There is a link between service users understanding and feeling in control of their care and the success of that care in terms of outcomes. A lack of transparency or a
breakdown in trust between service user and care provider can destabilise service users and lead to poorer outcomes or even crisis and admission to hospital.
Meeting national requirements
• NHS England and Improvement has established a suite of evidence based wait time national standards. These standards are across services including IAPT, CYP Eating
Disorders and Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP).
• Further standards are expected to be rolled out following completion of the national Clinical Review of Standards in 2021/22, including the introduction of a 4 week wait
time for all core Adult and older Adult MH community services, expected to go-live in 2023/24.
• Meeting these national standards is both a contractual requirement for the Trust and a crucial factor in ensuring that our service users have positive care outcomes.
Use of resources
• Oxleas and the wider South East London ICS is operating under significant financial pressures. The cost of caring for individuals in the community is significantly less than
providing care in an inpatient setting, and providing timely care is a crucial factor in keeping people well in the community.
3
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Progress to Date

Since the last update to Trust Board…
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Zero Delays Improvement Seminars

Waiting for Care Focus Groups
•

Partnered with Kaleidoscope to gather the experiences of, people who had
accessed Oxleas physical health services, mental health services or children,
young people and their carers.

•

Designed and delivered an introduction to demand and capacity analysis and wait
time improvement seminar to 42 staff from a cross-section of services.

•

Focus groups built on the research findings
of National Voices’ Understanding the
experience of waiting for care.

•

Initial feedback overwhelmingly
positive, with all attendees confirming
that they would recommend the
training to a colleague.

•

Recommendations from the focus groups
have been incorporated in the Patient
Access Charter workstream.

•

Seminar to form a core part of the QI
Zero Delays offer over the next two
years.

Technical Solution Options Appraisal

Pathway and Data Maturity Assessment
•

•

•

Undertaken a high-level assessment of each Oxleas community service, with
particular focus on:
Pathway clarity and consistency
Wait time performance
Data maturity
Key findings included pathways being well
understood but inconsistently documented
and followed, and variation in the use of
technology to manage waiting lists.
Recommendations from these reports
have been used to inform the two-year
programme roadmap.

•

Gathered requirements of the future system that that will be used to help
services to manage waiting list data effectively.

•

Used these requirements to inform an appraisal of three system options:
1. Enhanced use of RiO
2. Buy a solution ‘off the shelf’
3. Build a bespoke solution

•

The key recommendation from this analysis
is that the Trust’s existing EPR system, RiO,
is equipped to deliver the majority of the
desired system requirements. RiO should
therefor be fully utilised prior to further
exploration of ‘build’ options.
5

42

RiO success stories

ADHD Team– This team have very long waits, across SEL a target wait time had never been agreed for ADHD, the
waiting list was managed manually via a spreadsheet which created a number of risks.
What we have done:
• Worked with SLAM and the SEL CCG to develop a core offer for ADHD and a pathway from referral to discharge
• Agreed what the target wait time should be for this service - agreed as 18 weeks
• Identified the barriers to reaching 18 weeks - in this case this is a chronic underfunding compared to other
services and an agreement for a substantial uplift from the CCG
All patients waiting more than 18 weeks are classed as delayed and we have agreed a number of ways this should
be managed:
1. They will be part of a backlog clearance programme with targeted resource
2. Wait lists will be cleansed every three months including cross checking with Psychiatry Uk
3. Patients open to CMH will receive their diagnosis in their treating team and be removed from the waiting list.
It is worth noting that the actions for ADHD are not typical of other teams as the team is unique in the sense of it
being a diagnostic team only.
6

RiO success stories
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How has this work and moving to RIO made a difference:

The benefits of screening referrals live on RiO
enables the identified clinicians involved in the
process to review both the referral and other
electronic records that the referrer may not
have been aware of at the time of making said
referral.
We have managed to carry out a huge data
cleanse at the start of this project and have
reduced our waiting lists (need clarification
from reports but I also think it has reduced the
waiting times)
The use of the electronic waiting lists and
caseloads have ensured that we can track
client’s progress of their referrals, we can log
when we have sent out requests for further
information such as sending out screening tools
and requesting Diagnostic reports from clients.

The waiting list functionality that is currently
available within Rio includes a view of the
target times days waiting, number of people
waiting, exceeded target time and maximum
days wait.

The use of RiO in coordination with a referrals
action sheet enables actions to be automated in
terms of booking appointments.

Standardising the process across all teams gives
consistency and saves times on admin
processes. It enables the Informatics Team to
carry out reporting effectively across all 3
Boroughs.

From an appointment booking aspect, again this is now
an easier process. I can easily decipher which client is
“at the top of the waiting list” and work down in order. I
can book appointments via the waiting lists and allocate
HCP’s whilst doing this which has helped the Clinicians
within the team with their own caseloads.

All our records from spreadsheets are now on Rio. The word
“spreadsheet” is not in our vocabulary anymore.
The Rio Team have already started to work with teams to
implement the waiting list functionality and so far this has
been embraced by the teams who have given excellent
feedback.

7

Patient Stories
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Mental health services participant

Physical health services participant

Carer of children or young person participant

This participant has accessed Oxleas mental health services
intermittently for over 25 years. They have had to wait on many
occasions to access support and information from Oxleas and
signposting to support would have been useful.

This participant was diagnosed with a long term health
condition 40 years ago. They said that their time waiting for an
appointment with Oxleas had varied over the years.

This participant has a child with speech and learning difficulties.
They said that waiting times differed depending on what
services they used and they had waited over a year to access
CAMHS.

As part of their appointment letter they said that they would
value information about activities or socially prescribed services:
“[I would have valued] therapies such as art, drama, music to
help me build confidence”.
They also talked about their broader needs and how Oxleas
could signpost them to services which could help them more
holistically. As a side effect of their medication they had to learn
to read and write again. They would have found information and
support about employment skills or budgeting useful:
“[I] would have found it useful to be put in touch with
organisations that could have help develop skills that would help
do a job or volunteer.”

They felt that there could be too much information as part of
the appointment letter and that they would prefer to be
supported to self-manage:
“All the paper barely fits in the envelope…I would prefer to look
them up on the internet, [information about their condition or
appointment].”
They stressed that while you are waiting, it is important to get
the right information from the right person at the right time:
“I worry about people digging around on the internet and seeing
horror stories…people need to speak to a proper
professional…leaflets aren’t an arm around the shoulder.”
They said that they would prefer to receive information about
their appointment through a text message or email:
“...text or email, that way I won’t miss them.”

They reported that there wasn’t much information provided in
the appointment letter and that they would have liked to have
been given a detailed breakdown of next steps during their wait.
“The letter is pretty basic, it has the time frame of the
appointment and a crisis helpline…it would be helpful if there
were pathways and clarity at each stage [of waiting].”
They reflected that the time waiting feels impersonal and as
though they have been forgotten. They would value a check in
from Oxleas, especially as their wait had been so long:
“A phone call every so often just to check-in, [it] would offer
more personal means of contact…”
They said that knowing what to expect from an appointment
would help them prepare and help anxious children.

8
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Programme
Roadmap
Apr22 – Mar24

Zero Delays | Timeline
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To date, the Zero Delays programme has been scoped and a significant Discovery and Planning phased has been undertaken. This has informed the
development of a costed, two-year programme roadmap.

Scoping

Discovery & Planning

Implementation

April 2021

December 2021

February2022

April 2022 – March 2024

Oxleas strategy
launch

Key discovery
reports completed:

Two-year
programme
roadmap and
high-level
resourcing
requirements
to be
presented to
Transformation
Board

Implementation of Zero
Delays roadmap

September 2021
Zero Delays case
for change,
vision and
programme
approach
presented to
Trust Board

⎼ Pathway
mapping and
analysis
⎼ Service data
maturity
assessment
⎼ Technical
solution options
appraisal

January 2022
Discovery phase
recommendations
presented to
Transformation
Board

WE ARE HERE
March 2022
Detailed
resourcing
requirements
and investment
case to be
presented to
Financial
Sustainability
Group

Zero Delays
Vision

1
0

Programme Overview
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The vision for the Zero Delays priority is to ensure that patients and staff have a mutual understanding of the expected waiting time for a service, that this
wait time is informed by good practice, and that this service is provided without delays.
Following a period of discovery and analysis (Sep-Dec 2021), it is proposed that three
workstreams are established to enable Oxleas to deliver this
objective by March 2024

1. Patient Access Charter

2. Waiting List Management

3. QI Network

Workstream Lead: Natalie Osanquaye

Workstream Lead: Informatics (Individual TBC)

Workstream Lead: Luke Rahman

Description:
• Co-produce a patient access charter that sets out,
at a high level, how we manage our waiting lists
and what service users can expect from us in
terms of communication.
• Support clinical directorates with the
implementation of charter commitments
including consistent communications.

Description:
• Develop a Framework that will be used to guide
services as they progress towards consistent wait
time management and reporting.
• Establish a dedicated, two-year Digital Maturity
MDT that will work with services in short, intense
‘sprints’ to progress their digital maturity. Service
priority to be defined by clinical directorate
leadership.

Description:
• Define and mobilise a QI and Digital support offer
to service teams seeking to undertake
improvement projects with aim of reducing wait
times.
• Maintain a rolling programme of Zero Delays QI
projects with the oversight of the ZD Delivery
Group.
1
1

Workstream: Patient Access Charter
48

Charter

Waiting
List

QI

A working group containing a cross-section of staff groups and service users will be established to co-produce:

A clear Patient Access Charter that sets out
what our service users can expect from us
when they are waiting for care.

A standardised waiting letter that ensures
standardised minimum information is shared with
service users.

Key Milestones

April 2022

Oct/ Nov 2022

Patient Access Charter launched

Standardised waiting letter launched
1
2

Workstream: Waiting List Management
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Level 4
Level 3
Level 2
Level 1

All steps of pathway
are on TPD and RiO

1st stage of pathway is on RiO and
TPD for teams requiring multiple
waitlist

1st stage of pathway is on RiO and TPD for teams
requiring a single waitlist

1st stage of pathway is on Team Performance Dashboard (TPD) &
RiO for teams which have the waitlist function enabled in RiO

Charter

Waiting
List

QI

An Informatics MDT will be established to support
community services with progression through a clear
four-level waiting list maturity framework. By
progressing through the framework, teams will
ensure a consistent and accurate approach to waiting
list management and reporting.

Key Milestones
March 2022

June 2022

March 2023

March 2024

Implementation Plan and Resourcing
confirmed by Financial Sustainability
Group

All services reach
Level 1

All services reach
Level 2.

All services reach
Levels 3 & 4*

*Feasibility of all services reaching this Level 4 by March 2024 dependent upon findings of pilot with six priority teams in 2022/23

1
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Workstream: Zero Delays QI Network
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Build clinical
directorate wait
time improvement/
QI knowledge and
facilitate knowledge
sharing between
teams.

Objectives

Charter

Support clinical
directorates with
the delivery of QI
projects focused on
improving waiting
times.

Waiting
List

QI

Build service team
confidence to take
action and
contribute to the
development of a
culture of
continuous wait
time improvement.

Key Milestones

March/April 2022

March 2023

March 2024

Zero Delays QI Network Launched

Zero Delays QI Network annual
report shared with Transformation
Board

Zero Delays QI Network annual
report shared with Transformation
Board

1
4
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Measuring Our
Success

Measuring our Success
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The impact of the Zero Delays programme will be measured through a combination of performance and quality metrics.

PERFORMANCE

•

Team Dashboards (iFox)

•

Integrated Board Report

•

Consistent and accurate reporting from service to
Board level

QUALITY

•

‘Zero Delays’ flag in Datix, indicating where clinical
risk exists as a result of waiting times.

•

Thematic analysis of complaints and Friends &
Family Tests.

•

Patient feedback

1
6
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Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status
What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

Item
Enclosure

7b
-

Building Block 3: Creating a Safety and Learning Culture – update on our
response to national changes arising from the National Patient Safety
Strategy and serious incident learning which will deliver building block 3.
Lynda Longhurst, Head of Patient Experience and Patient Safety
Jane Wells, Director of Nursing
The report is not confidential and is unrestricted

Creating a Safety and Learning Culture is a key part of our Oxleas Strategy,
and this paper provides an update on the changes within the National
Strategy and our progress to date.
The paper provides an outline of the national direction for patient safety
and highlights the anticipated changes to investigating and learning from
serious incidents.

What risks/issues in the
report need to be
noted or acted upon?

•

The roll out of the Patient Safety Incident Response Framework is
due in April/May 2022; this is expected to be a very gradual
implementation process.

Where has this report
been previously
discussed?

Patient Safety Group
Executive Committee
Performance and Assurance Committee (PQAC)

Are there any issues in
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
terms/acronyms used
in the report

None
PSIRF – Patient Safety Incident Response Framework
MAC – Medical Advisory Committee
NEC – Nurse Executive Committee
HSIB – Health Service Investigation Branch
CMHT – community mental health team

Link to trust strategy

Building Block 3 – Creating a Culture of Safety and Learning

Link to Board
Assurance Framework

1844: Demand on CMHTs; 1905: Reducing prone restraint; 1912: Pressure
on district nursing teams
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Please summarise
implications for:
Quality
Finances
Equality analysis
Service users/
carers/staff

Executive Summary

The report focusses on the Patient Safety Strategy and its
implementation; there are implications within this to ensure the delivery
of high-quality services and learning to promote service improvement.
The high-level financial resources that will potentially be required to
support the strategy have been indicated in the 2022/23 planning cycle.
The patient safety strategy will support the delivery of an open and fair
culture.
Areas of improvement and learning identified because of patient safety
incidents should improve the experience of people using our services. The
new requirements within the PSIRF to engage with patients and families
more actively during investigations should ensure their input has a
significant impact on the reports produced. Creating a culture of safety
and learning will contribute to the psychological safety that we want staff
to feel.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The National Patient Safety Strategy details actions to enable the NHS
to achieve its safety vision; to continuously improve patient safety.
The NHS will build on two foundations: a patient safety culture and a
patient safety system.
The three strategic aims which support the development of both are:
• improving understanding of safety by drawing intelligence from
multiple sources of patient safety information (Insight)
• equipping patients, staff and partners with the skills and
opportunities to improve patient safety throughout the whole system
(Involvement)
• designing and supporting programmes that deliver effective and
sustainable change in the most important areas (Improvement).
There are various elements within the strategy with differing
implementation timelines. These have been revised at a national level
due to the pandemic, with evaluation of the Early Adopters for the
Patient Safety Incident Response Framework still awaited, ahead of the
expected revised implementation in April/May.
The attached report provides information on the key elements within
the strategy and an update on progress to date.
Progress to date
The following highlights our progress so far:
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• We have already adopted and implemented the Safety (Quality)
Management Framework for planning, control, assurance, and
improvement which is reflected in the Trust patient safety group. This
is to be replicated in local directorate patient safety groups and teams
should review and monitor the new patient safety metrics in the
quality dashboard.
• We will continue to engage senior leaders and clinical leads in
discussions about creating a culture of safety and learning with an
emphasis on psychological safety. We have already met with medical
and nursing leaders and presented at the senior leaders’ event in
September 2021.
• A workplan has been implemented for the various elements of the
NHS Patient Safety Strategy and is monitored at the Trust Patient
Safety Group.
• Levels 1 & 2 of the NHS Patient Safety Syllabus were released in late
October 2021. The e-learning is currently being tested on The Fish to
ensure we can capture the details of staff that have completed the
training. Once this is complete, we will roll out across the Trust to staff,
as required. Level 1 is aimed at all staff, level 2 at patient facing staff,
and levels 3-5 are yet to be released. We will encourage teams to do
the training together to build a team understanding of the elements of
safety systems and culture.
• We will launch a new patient safety web page and share success
stories and celebrations by 31 March 2022.
• Discussions have taken place regarding the identification of Patient
Safety Partners, who are to be in place by April 2022.
• Planning is underway for the national roll out of the Patient Safety
Incident Response Framework, which is expected from April/May 2022.
• External speakers have been invited to our professional leadership
groups, including the MAC, to speak about safety culture and practice.
This will be ongoing across different groups.
Action required
The Board are asked to note the report.
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Building Block 3: Creating a safety and learning culture
January 2022 update
1. Background
a) The national picture: National NHS Patient Safety Strategy
The National Patient Safety Strategy was published in July 2019 with a focus on how the
NHS will continuously improve patient safety over the next five to ten years. The strategy
details actions to enable the NHS to continuously improve patient safety. The NHS will build
on two foundations: a patient safety culture and a patient safety system. The three strategic
aims which support the development of both are:
•

improving understanding of safety by drawing intelligence from multiple sources of
patient safety information (Insight)

•

equipping patients, staff and partners with the skills and opportunities to improve
patient safety throughout the whole system (Involvement)

•

designing and supporting programmes that deliver effective and sustainable change
in the most important areas (Improvement).

The strategy recognises the importance of a positive patient safety culture and use of a
‘systems’ approach, which includes the introduction of a new Patient Safety Incident
Response Framework and a clear focus on Just Culture.
b) Creating a culture of safety and learning in Oxleas
Leading such a transformational cultural shift requires all leaders to be living our values and
maintaining high visibility and engagement to champion patient safety with their teams.
Patient safety is everyone’s responsibility. Making mistakes is human and we aim to reduce
the potential for error by learning and acting when things go wrong.
It is important that all staff feel comfortable talking about safety issues and how to resolve
them without fear of blame or punishment. Staff need to feel ‘psychologically safe’ if we are
to achieve the safety and learning culture that we aspire to. Creating this culture together
requires commitment from each of us to the daily living of our values; we’re kind, we’re fair,
we listen, we care.
Previous staff survey results highlighted that more needs to be done to achieve the culture
we want. Our future approach will be shaped by the best practice set out in the National
Patient Safety Strategy. This includes, psychological safety, tackling blame, valuing diversity,
having a compelling vision, good leadership and teamwork, openness and support for
learning, and kindness and civility as the key ingredients for a safety and learning culture.
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We will implement the Patient Safety Incident Management Framework to support learning
from serious incidents. This is due to start in April/May 2022, although this date may be
pushed back depending on the analysis available from the Early Adopters project and
subsequent guidance from NHSE.

2. Drivers for change
The success of the cultural shift depends on every clinician and staff member recognising
that patient safety is their responsibility and that improvements need to be driven within
teams. The primary drivers are as follows:
i.

Psychological safety and wellbeing

Staff wellbeing and psychological safety are intrinsically linked, therefore we need to
promote the culture in teams where staff feel psychologically safe, proactively engage in the
patient safety agenda and are encouraged to be open and honest.
ii.

Keeping patients safe

Developing and implementing an action plan to ensure that we deliver on all aspects of the
NHS Patient Safety Strategy.
iii.

Inclusivity

Strengthening our engagement with patients, families, carers and staff, which will include
the introduction of patient safety partners.
iv.

Leadership and knowledge

The Trust leadership development programmes and clinical leadership role modelling will
include an emphasis on creating teams where staff actively raise ideas for making patient
safety improvements in their teams. This will be underpinned via the national roll out of the
NHS Patient Safety Syllabus, which promotes a focus on a system-based approach to patient
safety, learning from incidents, human factors and safety management, creating safe
systems and being sure about safety. The Patient Safety Specialist role supports the
development of a patient safety culture and safer systems and will be involved in patient
safety improvement activity.
v.

Learning

We will share stories about improvements and celebrate success with teams, recognising
and appreciating where clinical practice and patient safety is going well, including where
learning has been shared. Examples of this include the daily safety huddles and weekly unit
Datix review meetings led by the matron in Oxleas House.
Example of a culture of learning and safety in action (December 2021):
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“The implementation of the Covid Vaccination 12 – 15-year-old programme was
rolled out quickly and at scale. When errors occurred – the environment and culture
felt supportive and allowed us to acknowledge mistakes by think together how to
solve things and move on and recognise failure as part of learning. This tone/culture
was set from the Trust and Nursing leadership. Early in the programme external and
internal eyes were on us – Oxleas were very supportive and enabled us to be
successful – Oxleas believed in our service and trusted us – Vital. There were risks
especially early on and we learnt quickly.” (Head of Nursing)

3. Progress to date
Our aim is to embed the culture of safety and learning into everything that we do. The
following highlights our progress so far:
•

•

•

•
•
•

We have already adopted and implemented the Safety (Quality) Management
Framework for planning, control, assurance and improvement which is reflected in
the Trust patient safety group. This to be replicated in local directorate patient safety
groups and teams should review and monitor the new patient safety metrics in the
quality dashboard.
We will engage senior leaders and clinical leads in discussions about creating a
culture of safety and learning with an emphasis on psychological safety. We have
already met with medical and nursing leaders and presented at the senior leaders
event in September 2021.
A workplan has been implemented for the various elements of the NHS Patient
Safety Strategy and is monitored at the Trust Patient Safety Group. Levels 1 & 2 of
the Patient Safety Syllabus were released in late October 2021. The e-learning is
currently being tested on The Oxleas Learning Centre to ensure we can capture the
details of staff that have completed the training. Once this is complete, we will roll
out across the Trust to staff, as required. Level 1 is aimed at all staff, level 2 at
patient facing staff, and levels 3-5 are yet to be released. We will encourage teams
to do the training together to build a team understanding of the elements of safety
systems and culture. The serious incident team, head of patient safety and
experience and director of nursing are undertaking the NHS HSIB level 3 training.
We will launch a new patient safety web page and share success stories and
celebrations by 31 March 2022.
Discussions have taken place regarding the identification of Patient Safety Partners,
who are to be in place by April 2022.
Planning is underway for the national roll out of the Patient Safety Incident Response
Framework, which is expected from April/May 2022.
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•

External speakers have been invited to our professional leadership
groups, including the MAC, to speak about safety culture and practice. This will be
ongoing across different groups.

4. Measuring progress
The key measure will be the feedback about the culture of the organisation gained through
the annual staff survey. Our key process measures of success will be:
•
•
•
•

Patient Safety Syllabus numbers trained
Patient Safety Partners numbers in place
Patient Safety Incident Response Plan and Patient Safety Incident Response
Framework (when rolled out nationally)
Performance on safety priorities (reported in the quality reports and annual patient
safety report)

5. Engagement
Staff engagement will be coordinated through the Trust and local directorate patient safety
groups and senior staff events in directorates. We are creating a narrative to frame a culture
of learning and safety:
Creating a culture of safety and learning is a big part of making Oxleas a great place to
work. It will help us all to gain a better understanding of safety, develop skills for
patients, staff and partners to improve patient safety together throughout systems and
to co-design improvements to deliver effective and sustainable change. It will enable
behaviours in us all to foster psychological safety in teams where everyone feels
supported even when things go wrong.

6. Networks
The Patient Safety Specialist is an active member of the national patient safety network and
has access to the NHS Futures Platform to gain insights from the national patient safety
leads, the early adopters and those in communities of practice.
The patient safety group has an open invite for clinicians be part of the meetings to gain
new ideas and fresh perspectives.
We are also active members at national safety collaboratives and forums.

7. Governance
Progress against the patient safety workplan is monitored at the patient safety group
monthly meeting and shared at the Executive Committee and Performance Quality
Assurance Committee.
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8. Performance tracking
The next bi-annual report to the Executive and Board will be in August/September 2022 and
will provide a further update on progress.
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022
Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status
What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

8
Enclosure 8
Item

Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2) report 2022
Karen Edmunds, Head of Equality and Human Rights
Iain Dimond, Chief Operating Officer
Rachel Clare Evans, Director of Strategy & People
None

The report is for the Board’s approval, prior to publication.

What risks/issues in the The report summarises our activities relating to equalities, both in relation
report need to be
to the services we provide and our staff. The report identifies specific
noted or acted upon?
areas where we want to focus on improvement for the coming year.
We will be increasing our focus on Health Inequalities over the next year –
this is a key building block in our strategy. This will include progressing
the Patient and Carer Race Equality Framework.
Where has this report
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
terms/acronyms used
in the report

The report has been discussed at the Executive, at People Committee and
at PQAC.
No.

EDS 2 refers to Equality Delivery System 2.
WDES ‐Workforce Disability Equality Standard
WRES Workforce Race Equality Standard

ICS – Integrated Care System
EQIA – Equality Quality Impact Assessment
SNET – Support Network Engagement Tool
SPS – Statistical Process Control
CPA – Care programme approach
AIS – accessible information standard
FTSU – Freedom to Speak Up
Link to trust strategy

Great Out of Hospital Care (Service user access and inequalities) and
Making Oxleas a Great Place to Work
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Link to Board
Assurance Framework
Please summarise
implications for:
Quality

Risk 1471 – Staff experiencing discrimination at work

Equity in access, experience and outcomes will enable Oxleas to deliver
great out of hospital care and tackle long standing health inequalities.

Finances

Reducing health inequalities and improving patient and staff experience
will positively impact on the health of our service users and the retention
of staff.

Equality analysis

EDS2 is intended to help NHS organisations assess inequity in patient and
staff experience and highlight areas that require action. It provides
evidence of how we are meeting our Public Sector Equality Duties.
Improving the experience of staff will also have a positive impact on
service users and carers, as diverse organisations with an inclusive culture
are recognised as ones that provide better quality and culturally
appropriate care.

Service users/
carers/staff

Executive Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Key Highlights, Issues and Exceptions
The Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2) provides a framework for NHS
organisations to self‐assess progress against four goals and 18
outcomes related to reducing health inequalities, improving patient
experience, improving staff experience and demonstrating leadership
in addressing inequalities.
The EDS2 helps NHS organisations provide evidence that they are
meeting the Public Sector Equality Duty.
The document has been discussed at the January Executive meeting,
the January People Committee and the February Performance and
Quality Assurance Committee. For each outcome we have scored as
‘developing’ a proposed action is included.
Key actions for the Executive include:



Ensure our focus on great out of hospital care and zero waits is
equally benefitting people with all protected characteristics.
Improve the routine recording of patients’ and service users’
protected characteristics across all services
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Monitor patient satisfaction levels related to transfer of care by
patient’s protected characteristics to identify differences of
experience and then plan actions to address these.
Triangulate information on the use of restraint with overall
patient numbers in order understand whether restraint is
disproportionately used for any particular ethnic group or
gender or other protected characteristic.
Improve waiting times for physical health checks in prisons and
medication reviews for patients in prison (based on patient
feedback).
Improve the routine collection of demographic data of our
patients / service users across all services, in particular their
disability, ethnicity, religion and sexual orientation.
Improve the routine collection of demographic data of our
patients / service users across all services, in particular their
disability, ethnicity, religion and sexual orientation.
Improve completion rates of the Communication and
Information Needs form for patients in Acute and Crisis, Adult
Community Mental Health and Adult Community Physical
Health.
Review the data that shows some people with protected
characteristics feel less involved in planning their care and
identify how we can address this in service provision.
Continue the initiatives put in place to improve complaints
response times and the quality of investigations.
Build the focus on Building a Fairer Oxleas, ensuring all leaders
and managers play a part
Continue the initiatives we have in place to reduce incidents of
both harassment and abuse from patients / service users
towards staff and violence and aggression.
Promote the use of Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) when
updating and writing policies, protocols and making service
changes.

Additional information
More widely, Oxleas is proposing a significant increase in its focus on
health inequalities over the coming months. This is a key building block
within our strategy, and we have established a powerful steering group
to drive this work. We are also reviewing the resourcing that is
required to drive this work and the appropriate Committee governance
for oversight.
The Executive heard from NHS I / E about the Patient and Carer Race
Equality Framework and will be developing plans to adopt and develop
this approach for the future.
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Action required
The Board is invited to note the report and agree to the publication of
the document.
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NHS Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2)
Oxleas EDS2 Progress Report January 2022 – Plain text version
Oxleas’ Equality Objectives:
• Fair recruitment and career progression
• Improved cultural understanding of people working at Oxleas and using our services
• Implement the Workforce Disability Equality Standard (WDES) and Workforce Race Equality
Standard (WDES) action plans
• Bolstering our service user, patient, carer involvement and co-production
• Improving service user access and reducing health inequalities
Headline Good Practice Examples of EDS2 outcomes:
• A Support Network and Engagement tool for service users
• Active staff networks (BAMEx, Disability, LGBTQ+, Mental Health and Women), with
allocated budget and protected time for network officers
• Executive champions for all staff networks
• We achieve consistently high levels of patient satisfaction
• Senior leadership that is visibly supportive of advancing equality and inclusion
• Our Building A Fairer Oxleas programme to make Oxleas a great place to work
• Improved access and equity for our service users and their families as part of Oxleas
strategy for great out-of-hospital care
Note on scoring: there are four scores - Undeveloped, Developing, Achieving, Excelling – we selfassess ourselves on an annual basis.

Goal 1: Better health outcomes
1.1 Services are commissioned, procured, designed and delivered to meet the health needs of
local communities
• Oxleas’ services include community mental health (early intervention, in-patient and
therapeutic services in community settings), adult community services, older people’s
services, adult learning disabilities services, children and young people’s services, public
health services and prison health care. These services are commissioned by local CCGs, local
authorities, schools or colleges or at a national Specialist level, based on the population
needs. We develop and deliver our services to ensure that we provide high quality care,
meet our key performance indicators (KPIs) and make adjustments where needed to meet
the health needs of our communities, including those who experience health inequalities.
• We continue to work with our partner NHS organisations – South West London and St.
George’s and South London and Maudsley - as part of the South London Partnership (SLP) to
develop or redesign services and develop our clinical workforce in response the changing
needs, or growing demand, always with a patient focus. Oxleas are also part of the South
East London Integrated Care System (SEL ICS) which brings together NHS trusts, local
authorities and commissioners. The SEL ICS will replace the role of Clinical Commissioning
Groups across South East London from summer 2022.

4th February 2022
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We have two programmes of work underway to deliver innovative and high-quality out-ofhospital care. Our ‘Home First’ programme is focused on enabling patients to access
physical healthcare in their own homes or an identified place – the right care, at the right
place, at the right time. Our Community Mental Health transformation work will help us to
deliver more targeted services and improved alignment across the health-system. In line
with national strategy, we will support our service users to access new and integrated
models of primary and community mental health care so that they will have greater choice
and control and be supported to live well in their communities.
• The children’s community nursing team is currently delivering an out of hours service to
improve and facilitate early discharge, by providing nursing cover until 10pm 7 days a week.
This has led to increased acute capacity.
• We have an Equality Quality Impact Assessment (EQIA) process to review service changes
and developments in order to ensure that clinical quality is maintained and equity is
improved.
Score: Developing
•

Action: we need to ensure our focus on great out of hospital care and zero waits is equally
benefitting people with all protected characteristics.
1.2 Individual people’s health needs are assessed and met in appropriate and
effective ways
Trust-wide:
• During the COVID-19 pandemic we’ve continued to offer video and telephone appointments
across many of our community adult, mental health, older people and children and young
peoples’ services and sought patient and family feedback on this. We have a protocol to
ensure that community mental health patients are offered face to face appointments as
appropriate.
• Support Network and Engagement Tool (SNET): The combined Adult Mental Health and
Older People’s Mental Health services SNET completion rates reached 81% in March 2021,
achieving the Trust target.
• Oxleas has a well embedded audit of care plans that runs each month for all teams that
complete care plans.
• Oxleas’ results have either been stable or improving. Results are presented at bimonthly
Clinical Effectiveness Groups and are available for local teams to view online. Summary
directorate results are distributed in the form of Statistical Process Control (SPC) charts on a
monthly basis.
• We are starting to monitor access to crisis care by patient’s protected characteristics,
compared to local population demographics. Not all protected characteristics are routinely
recorded and so this is an area that requires development.
Score: Developing
Action: we need to improve the routine recording of patients’ and service users’ protected
characteristics across all services
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1.3 Transitions from one service to another, for people on care pathways, are made smoothly
with everyone well-informed
Adults:
• We have a transfer of care policy for adult service users transfers within and from other
organisations to ensure smooth transfer.
• Pre-admission planning for admissions to forensics and learning disabilities inpatient
services.
• When patients move from forensic secure inpatient services to less restrictive community
setting there is a clear plan to ensure all needs are met to provide the best possible chance
for a safe transition.
• When people with enduring mental health needs enter or leave prison the CPA process is
used to ensure continuity of care between prison health and community/inpatient health
services
• Local care networks within borough arrangements for close working with primary and social
care.
• In Greenwich intermediate care patients are admitted to Eltham Community Beds from
Queen Elizabeth Hospital. There is a referral criteria and referrals are discussed if there are
specific needs to be addressed between senior therapy staff. Discharge documentation is
transferred with the patient
• End of life patients are referred by Hospital, GP or Hospice and the staff work closely with
the GP and hospice staff to ensure plans are place and care wishes are met whilst providing
adequate pain and symptom control.
Children and Young People:
• We have interoperability with local providers to ensure access to timely and relevant clinical
information to support transitions.
• We have transition arrangements for transfer form children and young people services to
adult’s services.
• For children with continuing care needs the transition process to adult services begins on
the child's 17th birthday to ensure all aspects of care are in place when the child turns 18
and access adult service.
• Health coordinator post in pilot for children with complex health care needs.
• Attendance at Team Around the Child and Family Around the Child meetings for vulnerable
families.
• Looked after children passport when leaving care.
Score: Developing
Action: we need to monitor patient satisfaction levels related to transfer of care by patient’s
protected characteristics to identify differences of experience and then plan actions to address
these.
1.4 When people use NHS services their safety is prioritised and they are free from mistakes,
mistreatment and abuse
Trust-wide:
The 2020/21 Annual Report provides information on Trust performance against the Patient Safety
Priorities with highlights as follows:
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•

There were zero cases of MRSA, MSSA or E. Coli bloodstream infection (BSI) within inpatient
services or in community patients. There were two cases of Clostridium Difficile in inpatient
services however the Post Infection Reviews (PIR) did not identify any learning or action
points for Oxleas.

Falls
There was a total of 555 falls in the Trust from 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021, with a total of
four Level 4 Falls in this period. This is a decrease of 64% from 2019/20, when there was a total of
11 Level 4 falls.
Physical Health
We set a target for 2020/21 of 100% of community and mental health inpatients to have twice daily
physical health monitoring for the first 3 days of admission using the NEWS tool. Whilst two wards
met this target, overall the Trust only achieved a 49% compliance rate and therefore did not meet
the target.
Clinical risk assessments/screening
We set a target of 70% of intermediate care inpatients to have the following clinical risk
assessments/screening completed within 24 hours of admission:
1. Malnutrition (MUST) screening
2. Falls screening (FAT)
3. Pressure ulcer screening
Due to difficulty with gaining the required data, there is only data from September 2020 – March
2021. The average score for patients who had all three parameters met within 24 hours of
admission was 86%. This means that the Trust achieved the target.
Pressure ulcers
The Trust has a well-established pressure ulcer panel reviewing all root cause analysis
investigations. There is also an established and successful Pressure Ulcer Prevention Strategy.
Avoidable Pressure ulcers acquired in Oxleas care in 2020/21 – 66 category 3, 4 and above (50 in
2019/20, 30 in 2018/19)
The most common themes identified at the Pressure Ulcer Panel are:
• Lack of preventative care plans for pressure ulcer management.
• Equipment not upgraded in a timely manner or patients discharged into the care of carers that
still should been seen for SSKIN assessment as per the pressure ulcer policy.
• SSKIN assessments are not being performed at the first assessment.
• Mental capacity assessment was not performed in RiO (electronic patient record system)
• It is noted that patient cases that are presented at the panel are in the extreme age category.
• Task orientated visits that sometimes lack holistic assessments.
• Lack of description when writing in the progress notes, things like “all pressure areas intact” we
have asked that individual areas that are checked are documented.
Progress in 2020/21:
• Wound assessment forms are now live within RiO.
• A decision-making tool continues to be used in the pressure ulcer panel, as minutes are not
taken this gives some governance and is signed by 2 panel members and is then uploaded to the
Datix.
• Online training modules have been added to the learning pages.
• Pressure ulcer panel are held via MS Teams, this worked really well meaning that more staff
could attend without moving across the borough. We plan to continue with this process.
• MS Training sessions for Pressure ulcer prevention.
• Duty of Candour letters send to all patients within 10 days of the incident.
4th February 2022

4

69

• Terms of reference for pressure ulcer panel have been updated.
• Pressure ulcer policy has been updated
Reducing Violence and Aggression
Work this year to help to reduce violence and aggression has included a very successful Qi project
looking at reducing violence and aggression across six of the mental health wards and the
implementation of the “See, Think, Act” approach to relational security.
Violence and aggression towards staff from patients has reduced from 1082 in 2019/20 to 914 in
2020/21. This shows a 6% decrease over the course of the year.
Violence and aggression from patients to patients has also reduced with 260 incidents between
April – September 2020 and 230 incidents between October 2020 – March 2021: A reduction by
12% from Q1/2 2020/21 to Q3/4 2020/21.
The number of overall patient to patient aggression has stayed constant over the past two years
with 489 incidents in 2019/20 and 490 incidents in 2020/21.
Reducing restraint
• the total number of restraints for the year 2020/21 was 647, with a monthly average for
restraints being 54.
• The total number of prone restraints for the year 2020/21 was 83, which means the
monthly average for prone restraints was 7.
• From April 2020 – March 2021, 40% of restraints were completed in prone and 60% in
supine. This is an improvement from the previous year (April 2019– March 2020) when
there was 47% of restraints in prone and 53% of restraints in supine.
A great deal of work has been completed around the use of restraint over the past year. This
includes:
• A weekly audit of recording of Rapid Tranquilisation data with information sent to the
Wards for investigation and update.
• Desktop reviews of all prone restraints that occur to ensure learning.
• Visits to the wards to spread awareness and provide training for staff to help them to
• feel confident to complete the necessary forms correctly.
• From September 2020 we have been recording the ethnicity of patients when restraint is
used. We need to triangulate this information with overall patient numbers in order
understand whether restraint is disproportionately used for any particular ethnic group.
Rapid Tranquilisation
• Extensive work has been completed over the last year to improve the quality of the NEWS2
(physical health monitoring) reporting post Rapid Tranquilisation. A weekly audit is
completed and sent to the Heads of Nursing and Practice Development Nurses who
disseminate the information and then receive updates from the wards. Despite this, the
Trust did not meet the target of 100%.
Serious Incidents
There were no (0) Never Events in 2020/21 compared to 0 in 2019/20 and 2018/19.
Learning from incidents includes:
• Care plans – must include comprehensive and detailed information relating to patients’
physical health and the interventions that are required. This should include information
about how to liaise with other services involved in the patients care.
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Interagency working – all other agencies that are involved in a patient’s care must be
invited to participate in CPA meetings in order to support the formulation of risk
assessments and care plans.
• Risk assessments – These must be completed and updated in line with the current level of
patient care.
Learning from deaths
During 2020/21, 1,394 of Oxleas patients died. This comprised the following number of deaths
which occurred in each quarter of that reporting period:
• 455 in the first quarter
• 287 in the second quarter
• 302 in the third quarter
• 350 in the fourth quarter
•

By 28 April 2021, 1,336 case record reviews and 58 investigations have been carried out in relation
to 1,394 deaths. As a result, 14 (1%), of the patient deaths during the reporting period are judged
more likely than not to have been due to problems in the care provided to the patient (those
scoring 5 and above using the Structured Judgement Review/Royal College of Physicians method).
Trust-wide actions arising from learning from deaths:
• Crisis, relapse and contingency plans – Managers to review iFOx weekly and review the
quality of crisis, relapse and contingency plans in supervision.
• Resuscitation training – The Trust have recruited a resuscitation officer to support with
training and monitoring of resuscitation equipment. Services have been completing ‘drop
the dummy’ sessions with staff in practice, as well as proving ‘what’s in my resuscitation
bag’ sessions with staff to build confidence.
Score: Developing
Action: We need to triangulate information on the use of restraint with overall patient numbers
in order understand whether restraint is disproportionately used for any particular ethnic group
or gender or other protected characteristic.
1.5 Screening, vaccination and other health promotion services reach and benefit all local
communities
Adults:
• All patients in our prisons receive an initial primary health screening followed by a more
detailed secondary screen at which on-going needs are identified and a plan of care made,
where necessary
• In our inpatient services we have a dedicated physical health nurse and nursing associates
who support our patients with health promotion and improving their physical health
• All inpatients received a physical health check in our acute and forensic mental health
services
• Patients in secure settings have access to national screening programmes. Additionally, all
people in prison are offered blood borne virus (BBV) tests. At HMP Maidstone all men are
screened for tuberculosis due to the relative high prevalence in foreign nationals
• In Greenwich, we have a TB service who undertake full screening and vaccination services.
• Service users in our Learning disability inpatient service were provided with accessible
information about the COVID-19 vaccine and support to make a decision. Where service
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users lacked capacity, the MCA was used and where appropriate best interest decisions
were made.
Contraception and Sexual Health (CASH):
• We provide an open access service regardless of age, gender or ethnicity. We capture
demographic information and report to our Local Authority commissioners quarterly.
• Pre-Covid we provided a walk-in service which included a dedicated young person's service
• We work closely with our local third sector provider within the parameters of the CASH
Metro Partnership. Metro is commissioned to undertake specialist targeted health
promotion with the LGBTQ+ community and are also commissioned to run the dedicated
Men who have Sex with Men (MSM) sexual health clinic - Pitstop + and can refer to CASH or
to the local Lewisham & Greenwich Trust sexual health service.
• Prior to the pandemic Oxleas Market Street hosted the Pitstop + and MSM clinic, however
this service was put on hiatus during the pandemic and has not returned.
Children and Young People (CYP):
• Universal service delivered School Age Immunisations (SAI) to school age children in
Greenwich
• Young Greenwich Nurses to be based in Local Youth Hubs providing nursing access and
Health Promotion within the local community. The work delivered in the hubs is an open
access youth session to which the school nurse is available for general support and advice.
However, we will be able to report on this once our new integrated data system is fully
established but only the attendance at the hubs, rather than the individual CYP who
received any general support from the School Nurse
• CAMHS physical health clinics conduct a holistic assessment including health promotion. If
any needs are identified young people are signposted and supported to access the care and
treatment needed (drug/ alcohol misuse, sexual health, healthy eating etc).
• CYP Nurses from the school nursing provision delivered Phase 1 of the COVID-19 vaccination
effort with phase 2 due to commence shortly by the SAI team.
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Trust-wide:
• Information available in different formats. Translated into other languages. Interpreters can
be booked for both face to face, video and telephone interpreting
• we have provided covid 19 vaccinations for inpatients and staff in line with national
schedule since Dec 2020
Score: Developing
Action: Improve waiting times for physical health checks in prisons and medication reviews for
patients in prison (based on patient feedback).
Action: We need to improve the routine collection of demographic data of our patients / service
users across all services, in particular their disability, ethnicity, religion and sexual orientation.

Goal 2: Improved patient access and experience
2.1 People, carers and communities can readily access hospital, community health or primary
care services and should not be denied access on unreasonable grounds
• Interpreting and translation contract in place (includes community languages and BSL)
• Easy Read patient / service user information and templates
• outreach work led by community development workers in supporting access to health
services for Black, Asian and minority ethnic communities in Greenwich
• Access to Chaplaincy offered within inpatient services
• Equality and Diversity Training for staff (E-Learning and bespoke)
• Accessible Information Standard (AIS) information and access to E-Learning for staff
• AIS posters for service users / patients
• Lived Experience Practitioners supporting people with mental health issues to access
community services
• In our secure services patients have access to independent mental health advocates
who advocate for individual and groups of patients on a range of issues
• We are starting to monitor access to crisis care by patient’s protected characteristics,
compared to local population demographics. Not all protected characteristics are routinely
recorded and so this is an area that requires development.
• Score: Developing
Action: We need to improve the routine collection of demographic data of our patients / service
users across all services, in particular their disability, ethnicity, religion and sexual orientation.
Action: We need to improve completion rates of the Communication and Information Needs form
for patients in Acute and Crisis, Adult Community Mental Health and Adult Community Physical
Health
2.2 People are informed and supported to be as involved as they wish to be in decisions about
their care
• Our vision is for a “nothing about us without us” approach to the delivery of patient care. To
achieve this, we are creating new resources and infrastructure to support patient
involvement and co-production.
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We are rolling out Oxcare. Oxcare is Oxleas’ online health record for patients and service
users and has been developed in collaboration with service users, clinicians and colleagues
from across the trust and will give service users control of their clinical and personal
information, and allow them to decide who they share this information with.
• Patient survey data shows high levels of involvement in 2021*, with 90% of respondents
saying they were provided with enough information, and 92% of respondents saying they
felt staff listened (*Trust wide responses from Jan 2021 to December 2021)
• Easy Read information for service users / patients
• Access to interpreters for British Sign Language and community languages
• Support Network and Engagement tool for service users, linked to RiO (our main electronic
patient record) is completed where appropriate, and has a completion rate of 83% (as of
31st December, 2021) in Mental Health and Learning Disability Services, and 75% in
Community Health Services for teams deemed eligible for completion.
Score: Developing
•

Action: we need to regularly review the data that shows some people with protected
characteristics feel less involved in planning their care and identify how we can address this in
service provision
2.3 People report positive experiences of the NHS
• The national Friends and Family Test (FFT) question was updated to “Overall, how was your
experience of our service?” in 2020/21. Between January 2021 and December 2021, 19,902
responses have been received to this question, with a positive response rate of 82%. This
compares to 81% last year.
• There is a difference in experience of patients from different protected characteristics. In
particular, we see lower FFT scores for people who’ve said they are non-binary or have
another gender identity, people with lived experience of mental health or a learning
disability, bisexual people or lesbians, people who are Buddhist, Jewish, or Muslim, younger
adults aged 18 to 34 and for some minority ethnic groups (gypsy and travellers and people
with mixed ethnicity). See appendix 1 for full details.
Score: Developing (changed from Achieving due to latest FFT data with protected characteristics
detail)
Action: we need to regularly review the data that shows some people with protected
characteristics have a poorer experience and identify how we can address this in service provision
2.4 People’s complaints about services are handled respectfully and efficiently
• The complaints procedure is designed to ensure that we provide a timely and effective
service to resolve complainants’ concerns, support complainants and staff throughout the
process, deliver a consistent approach across the Trust and have sound systems for learning
lessons from complaints. We are committed to respecting the human rights of service users
and carers and the principles of fairness, respect, equality, dignity and autonomy will be
taken into account when receiving, monitoring and reviewing complaints.
• The Trust standard is that all complaints will be responded to within 30-working days. During
the period 1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021, of the 256 complaints received, 59% were closed
within timescale compared to 67%, of the complaints received, during 1 April 2019 - 31
March 2020.
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Of those complaints responded to in 2020/21 15 out of 256, (6%) were reopened as the
complainant was dissatisfied with our initial response. This is in comparison to 58 reopened
out of 328 (18%) for 2019/20.
• Between 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, 1 complaint was referred to the Parliamentary and
Health Service Ombudsman (PHSO) compared to 3 for the same period in 2019/20.
• The one complaint referred to the PHSO in 2020/21, was found to have no case to
answer/not upheld. The Trust currently has no cases with the Ombudsman for the above
time period awaiting a decision as to whether the complaint will be investigated by the
Ombudsman.
The Complaints team monitor the demographic details of the patient/service user that the
complaint relates to versus the demographics of the patient caseload, where known. For 2020-21
this indicates that:
• 42% of complaints related to the experience of White patients, against 62% of the caseload
being White people
• 11% of complaints related to the experience of Black patients, against 10% of the caseload
being Black people
• 1% of complaints related to the experiences of Asian patients, against 4% of the caseload
being Asian people
• We don’t know the ethnicity of 42% of patients where a complaint was made, which is much
higher than the percentage of our patient caseload whose ethnicity is not known (18%)
• 52% of complaints related to the experiences of male patients, who make up 45% of the
caseload
• 23% of complaints related to the experiences of patients aged 25 to 34, compared to them
being 9% of the caseload, whereas 7% of complaints related to patients aged 75+ who make
up 27% of the caseload.
• For most of our patient caseload we do not routinely record their sexual orientation or their
disability, therefore it is not possible to determine whether they are more or less likely to
make a complaint related to their experience of using our services.
The Complaints Team is focused on learning from complaints and looking at ways to improve the
complaints processes. This includes:
• Qi project in Greenwich to improve complaint response times
• Online Training developed – A new online training programme launched in October 2020 for
all staff with modules specifically for Investigating officers has been developed to ensure
training is available even when working remotely.
• Video ‘Expectations of staff around complaints handling’- The video (distributed 9 September
2020 via the Ox) regarding the Trust's expectations of staff in complaints handling.
• The Complaints Team has worked with the Trust Datix Manager to implement the populating
of templates used in the investigation and management of complaints directly from
information already stored in Datix to save duplication and improve accuracy in
correspondence.
Score: Developing
•

Action: continue the initiatives put in place to improve complaints response times and the quality
of investigations.
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Goal 3: A representative and supported workforce
3.1 Fair NHS recruitment and selection processes lead to a more representative workforce at all
levels
• Monitoring data is collected on application forms
• Shortlisting takes place anonymously. Trust policy requires that at least 2 people complete
shortlisting and panel members should have attended recruitment training
• Although details of the protected characteristics are not given to managers, it is accepted
that where candidates put dates and venues for study and qualifications this is likely to give
a manager an indication on some of the protected characteristics. However, shortlisting
decisions must be justified, and shortlisting criteria should state only essential qualifications
or equivalent where appropriate.
• Our Building a Fairer Oxleas programme has focused on fairer recruitment and career
progression.
• Workforce data shows that White candidates are only very slightly more likely (1.07) to be
appointed after shortlisting than Black, Asian and minority ethnic short-listed candidates.
• Workforce data indicates that when candidates declare a disability at application stage they
are less likely to be shortlisted. However overall, once shortlisted disabled applicants are
nearly as likely (1.02) as non-disabled applicants to be appointed. We have therefore
updated guidance for recruiting managers on the guaranteed interview scheme, which
commits to offering an interview to disabled candidates who meet the essential criteria.
• In 2021 we introduced Disability Confidence training for managers. These workshops were
attended by 83 managers between September 2021 and November 2021. Sessions
continue in 2022
• Oxleas is a member of the Disability Confident scheme, Level 1. This includes a guaranteed
interview for disabled applicants that meet the essential criteria in the person specification
• Oxleas is signed up to the Mindful Employer Charter
• In March 2021 44.4% of Oxleas staff were Black, Asian and minority ethnic. This means that
Oxleas employs a larger percentage of Black, Asian and minority ethnic people than is
represented in many of our local populations.
Score: Developing
Action: continue the Building a fairer Oxleas programme of work during 2022
3.2 The NHS is committed to equal pay for work of equal value and expects employers to use
equal pay audits to help fulfil their legal obligations
Our Gender Pay Gap data for the year ending 31 March 2021 shows that the average pay
difference and median pay difference has reduced slightly. In terms of bonus payments these
relate to a small number of medical staff eligible to apply for Clinical Excellence Awards. These are
known as Employer Based Awards at Oxleas and for 2020/21 they were awarded equally to all
those eligible, in line with guidance from the BMA. Therefore, there was no difference between the
award for female and male doctors and consultants. See table on following page.

4th February 2022

11

76

Gender Pay Gap

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

Average pay difference

14%

14%

13%

11%

Median pay difference

9%

11%

12%

9%

Average bonus difference

44%

49%

35%

0%

Median bonus difference

32%

67%

9%

0%

*the data shows the percentage by which women are paid less than men.
Our Board remains committed to creating inclusive environments where our staff are truly
representative of our population at all levels, and in all professions. To support this, we have a
programme of work called Building a Fairer Oxleas. This is initially focusing on fairer recruitment
and career progression and improving cultural understanding.
The trust’s actions in 2021/22 included:
• Supporting the launch of a Women’s Network
• Increasing the profile of female leaders both within the organisation and the wider
NHS through a speaker series starting in May 2021
• A new leadership programme with a core module on inclusion
Our Race Pay Gap report shows that Black, Asian and minority ethnic staff are paid slightly less than
White Staff in some bands. We are not sure if this is a positive indicator of increased career
progression as when staff move to a higher band, they will be at the bottom pay point of the band.
When staff stay on a pay band for a number of years, they will often earn more than others on the
same band. This is a structural issue due to NHS pay scales.
Score: Developing
Action: continue the Building a fairer Oxleas programme of work during 2022
3.3 Training and development opportunities are taken up and positively evaluated by all staff
• All staff have personal learning accounts in the Oxleas Learning Centre, giving access to our
learning catalogue, as well as supporting resources and associated (appraisal and
supervision) functionality.
• We actively encourage staff to advise us of any access or communication needs prior to
participating in our learning, either by signposting these in their learning account profile on
joining the trust, or highlighting current adjustment needs at the point of booking. We work
with our facilitators / suppliers to ensure that individual needs are met.
• We previously offered both face to face and e-learning options for staff to choose from,
particularly where completion is mandatory. Due to the Covid 19 pandemic we continue to
limit the number of face to face training sessions and have developed online participative
solutions to offer as alternative to e-learning.
• In practical teaching, we place strong emphasis on staff safety and balancing the risks which
training is designed to mitigate with Covid-19 risk. Whilst encouraging colleagues who are fit
and not in any of the higher risk groups to continue to update their training, to help us
maintain safe staffing levels we are clear that updating compliance for its own sake is not
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the answer. We encourage a strong individual risk assessment approach which supports
training being deferred where alternative personal risk mitigation is in place.
• This balanced approach has allowed us to maintain high mandatory updating compliance
rates in the current context, ensuring all our staff have the core knowledge and skills to
keep themselves and our service users safe. In the last 12 months, overall compliance has
met our internal targets, except in a few instances. These are under continuous review. This
is not dissimilar to the previous year. Since we do not exclude any absent staff from analysis,
this represents the bulk of the workforce on active duty.
• We evaluate the totality of our face to face learning programme in two ways. We collect
immediate reaction feedback to enable us to address any concerns in a timely manner.
Additionally, in recognition that some staff may not be confident to hand negative feedback
to the facilitator on the day, we contact all participants with a brief follow up survey. In our
latest analysis of this data, covering the last 6 months, and the majority of respondents
rated overall event quality as either 'excellent' or 'good'. Content usefulness and relevance
was also rated positively in most cases, as was facilitator effectiveness and knowledge.
• Our 2021 NHS Staff Survey results show that 61% of staff say they are able to access the
right learning and development opportunities when they need to. 60% of staff say they are
supported to develop their potential. Our most recent annual Learning and Development
equality analysis, reflecting all centrally held Continuing Professional Development (CPD)
activity records, showed no significant differences in CPD learning uptake between staff
groups with different protected characteristics.
• Our 2021 Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) data shows that Black, Asian and
minority ethnic staff are slightly more likely than White staff to access non-mandatory
training opportunities.
Score: Achieving
3.4 When at work, staff are free from abuse, harassment, bullying and violence from any source:
• We continue to be determined to do whatever we can to reduce the incidence of abuse
against our staff from visitors and patients. Our ‘It’s Not OK’ approach sets out a clear
framework for addressing issues and ensuring that the right support is in place for staff.
• We hold regular meetings with the Metropolitan Police to review incidents and address
ways to prevent them, including taking action against perpetrators
• Our values are: ‘we’re kind, we’re fair, we listen, we care’. These are supported by a
comprehensive behavioural framework which sets out the behaviours which are expected,
those we aspire to and those we will not tolerate. These behaviours have been designed
followed extensive staff engagement and the behaviours supporting the ‘We’re fair’ value
draw directly on the feedback from our BAME staff through BAFO and the work last year on
Bullying and Harassment.
• Our Guardian Service provides staff with access to independent and confidential support in
order to support staff to get concerns addressed.
• Evidence from our 2021 staff survey shows:
Overall, 30% of Oxleas staff have experienced harassment, bullying or abuse at work from
patients/service users, families or members of the public, compared to an average across
comparator NHS Trusts of 27%. However, in our 2020 Staff Survey Black, Asian and minority
ethnic staff were 8.1% more likely to experience harassment, bullying and abuse from
patients than White staff.
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Overall, 18% of Oxleas staff have experienced harassment, bullying or abuse at work from
colleagues (average across comparator NHS Trusts is 15%). However, in our 2020 Staff
Survey, Black, Asian and minority ethnic staff were 7.3% more likely to say they have
experienced harassment, bullying and abuse from colleagues than White staff.
Overall, 11% of Oxleas staff have personally experienced discrimination from a manager /
team leader or colleagues (average across comparator NHS Trusts is 7%). However in our
2020 Staff Survey, 13.6% of Black, Asian and minority ethnic staff reported discrimination by
a manager, team leader or colleagues.
Overall, 11% of Oxleas staff have personally experienced harassment, bullying or abuse at
work from managers (average across combined trusts is 9%). However, in our 2020 Staff
Survey, disabled staff were 8% more likely to experience bullying, harassment and abuse
from a manager than non-disabled staff.
Score: Developing
Action: we will continue the initiatives we have in place to reduce incidents of both harassment
and abuse from patients / service users towards staff and violence and aggression.
3.5 Flexible working options are available to all staff consistent with the needs of the service and
the way people lead their lives
• The trust has a Flexible Working Policy and an Agile Working Policy.
• We have invested significantly in IT to enable mobile working
The NHS Staff Survey measures the percentage of staff satisfied with the opportunities for flexible
working patterns. Our 2021 score is 65%, compared to 65.5% in 2020, 58.2% in 2019 and 60.6% in
2018 and is the same as comparator NHS trusts which is a slight improvement.
Score: Developing
Action: we will review how to improve our flexible working offer by providing information on
options which could be considered, whilst maintaining service delivery
3.6 Staff report positive experiences of their membership of the workforce
• The 2021 Staff Survey results relating to motivation at work show that:
o 58% of staff say they look forward to going to work (average is 57%)
o 71% of staff say they are enthusiastic about their job (average is 71%)
o 76% of staff say times passes quickly when they are working (average 77%)
These scores are all lower than last year.
• 56% of staff say the organisation acts fairly with regard to career progression / promotion,
regardless of ethnic background, gender, religion, sexual orientation, disability or age,
compared to an average of 59% across comparator NHS trusts
• 71% of staff think that the organisation respects individual differences (e.g. cultures,
working styles, backgrounds, ideas, etc), compared to an average of 73% across comparator
NHS trusts
• The score for staff recommending the Trust as a place to work is above average: 69%
(average is 64%), but slightly below average with 66% of staff agreeing that if a friend or
relative needed treatment they would be happy with the standard of care provided by the
trust, compared to a 67% average across comparator trusts.
Score: Developing
Action: continue the Building a fairer Oxleas programme of work during 2022
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Goal 4: Inclusive Leadership
4.1 Boards and senior leaders routinely demonstrate their commitment to promoting equality
within and beyond their organisations
• Executive and Non-Executive representatives on the Building a Fairer Oxleas Assurance
Group
• Executive team undertook Cultural Intelligence and Inclusive Leadership training in October
2020
• Executive champions on the five Staff Networks
• Support for staff networks to have direct contact with the Executive (eg at Staff Networks
meetings)
• Senior leaders’ presence at Black History Month, LGBT History Month 2021, World Mental
Health Day October 2021 and the International Day of Disabled Persons event December
2021 and Lived Experience events
• Our Board and senior leaders are committed to a number of schemes in relation to the
recruitment of a diverse workforce, including Disability Confident Level 1 (committed) and
Mindful Employer
• A key strand of our organisation strategy for 2021-24 is a focus on service user access and
inequalities. This includes working towards equity of access, experience and outcomes for
all our service users and patients
Score: Achieving
4.2 Papers that come before the Board and other major Committees identify equality-related
impacts including risks, and say how these risks are to be managed
• The front sheet for Board and Committee reports asks for the implications of the
recommendations in terms of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA). One is not normally
necessary for assurance reports, however equality-related impacts should be considered for
reports requiring decisions. This section is often left blank or contains a brief generic
statement.
• There is an updated process for Equality Impact Assessments on policies, organisational
changes and strategies. This is reflected in the policy template and guidance.
• We’ve held training workshops on the EIA process during 2021. Further sessions are
planned in 2022
Score: Developing
Action: we will promote the use of Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) when updating and writing
policies, protocols and making service changes.
4.3 Middle managers and other line managers support their staff to work in
culturally competent ways within a work environment free from discrimination
• Equality and Diversity E-Learning is mandatory. Compliance is 94.92% as of 4.01.22
• Between June 2021 and January 2022, there were 941 attendees at workshops on Active
Bystanders, Being Comfortable Talking about Race, Inclusive Leadership, Living our Values,
Mental Health First Aid Awareness, Relationship Matters (understanding gaslighting and
microaggressions) and Wellbeing Conversations
• Freedom to Speak Up (FTSU) Guardian service in place

4th February 2022

15

80

Reasonable Adjustments policy in place and Health and Wellbeing Passport for staff, which
covers disability, caring responsibilities and religious observances
• Supporting Trans staff policy in place
• Special Leave policy in place, supporting staff who are parents, carers or have a disability
• Disability Confident Level 1 (committed) employer
• Mindful Employer charter
• Our 2021 staff survey results show:
o 77% of staff say their immediate manager values their work, compared to an average
of 78% of comparator trusts
o 78% of staff say their immediate manager encourages them at work, compared to an
average of 78% of comparator trusts
o 75% of staff say their immediate manager takes an interest in their health and wellbeing (average is 77% amongst comparator trusts)
o 75% of staff say their manager cares about their concerns, compared to an average
of 76% of comparator trusts
However, our NHS Staff Survey data still indicates a significant difference between Black, Asian and
minority ethnic staff and White staff's experience and some differences between Disabled and nondisabled staff's experience. The Building a Fairer Oxleas programme of work includes workstreams
on improving career progression and cultural understanding. Whilst anecdotal feedback indicates
this is beginning to improve the experience of some staff, this is not universal.
Score: Developing
•

Action: continue the Building a fairer Oxleas programme of work during 2022
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Appendix 1: Friends and Family Test Scores 2021
• Data includes responses received on SmartSurvey Portal from 1/1/2021 (0:00) to 23/12/21
(8:30)
• Responses that did not include a demographic and/or answer to the FFT have been excluded
from this graph.
Age

Overall, How Was Your Experience of our Service?
Responses according to Age Range: Jan - Dec 2021
80%

Very good

Good

Okay

55 - 64
Poor

65 - 74

Very poor

75+

54%
22%
8%
4%
9%
3%

20%
6%
1%
1%
1%

35 - 54

69%

25 - 34

20%
7%
1%
1%
1%

18 - 24

66%

57%
19%
12%
4%
6%
2%

Under 18

18%
9%
3%
4%
1%

50%
22%
14%
5%
7%
2%

0%

44%
25%
17%
5%
7%
2%

20%

45%
42%
8%
1%
2%
2%

40%

71%

60%

Prefer not to
answer

Don't know

Response numbers:
Under 18

18 - 24

25 - 34

35 - 54

55 - 64

65 - 74

75+

Prefer not to
answer

130

1190

1775

3873

2595

2564

2989

568

Disability

Overall, How Was Your Experience of our Service?
Responses according to Disability or Long Term
Health Condition: Jan - Dec 2021
80%

Very good

Response numbers:

Physical
Disability

Sensory
Disability

Good

Okay

Poor

Very poor

54%
22%
13%
4%
6%
2%

Learning
Disability

69%
19%
8%
2%
1%
1%

56%
17%
12%
4%
9%
2%

Health Condition Mental Health
Condition

62%
19%
9%
3%
5%
1%

0%

45%
21%
15%
5%
11%
4%

20%

49%
22%
13%
5%
8%
2%

40%

65%
19%
9%
2%
3%
1%

60%

No Disability or Prefer Not to Say
Health Condition
Don't know

Health
Condition

Mental Health
Condition

Learning
Disability

Physical
Disability

Sensory
Disability

No Disability or
Prefer Not to Say
Health Condition

4681

4756

610

3171

495

3661
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Ethnicity

Overall, How Was Your Experience of our Service?
Responses according to Ethnic Origin: Jan - Dec 2021
80%

49%
21%
13%
4%
10%
3%

61%
19%
9%
4%
5%
1%

65%
19%
9%
3%
4%
1%

53%
22%
14%
5%
5%
1%

50%
19%
17%
5%
7%
2%

0%

47%
16%
20%
4%
10%
4%

20%

55%
25%
13%
2%
3%
2%

40%

58%
25%
10%
2%
3%
1%

60%

Asian / Asian Black African / Gypsy or Irish
Mixed /
Other Ethnic White British White Other
British
Caribbean /
Traveller Multiple Ethnic
Group
Black British
Groups
Very good

Response numbers:

Good

Okay

Poor

Very poor

Prefer not to
answer

Don't know

Black African /
Asian / Asian
Caribbean /
British
Black British

Gypsy or
Mixed / Multiple
Irish
Ethnic Groups
Traveller

Other Ethnic
Group

White White
British Other

Prefer not to
answer

832

83

295

10,118 1,013

919

1,894

423

Religion and belief

Hindu

Very good

Jewish
Good

Muslim

Okay

Poor

Very poor

No religion
or belief

Other

50%
23%
12%
4%
8%
2%

21%
13%
4%
6%
2%

54%

60%
Sikh

19%
10%
4%
5%
1%

58%
25%
6%
5%
4%
2%

54%
23%
14%
2%
5%
2%

18%
16%
4%
10%
0%

Christian

52%

63%

Buddhist

24%
10%
2%
1%
1%

20%
9%
2%
3%
1%

58%
20%
11%
4%
5%
2%

70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

66%

Overall, How Was Your Experience of our Service?
Responses according to Religion: Jan - Dec 2021

Prefer not to
say

Don't know

Response numbers:
Buddhist

Christian

Hindu

Jewish

Muslim

Sikh

No religion
or belief

Other

Prefer not to
say

173

8,023

266

50

690

143

3,469

788

1,861
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Sex (Gender)
• Oxleas uses the term ‘gender’ in recognition that people with a gender identity other than
female or male should be included.

Overall, How Was Your Experience of our Service?
Responses according to Gender: Jan - Dec 2021
80%

17%
28%
22%
0%
28%
6%

52%
21%
9%
5%
10%
3%

60%
Female

29%
27%
16%
9%
18%
1%

0%

20%
11%
3%
4%
1%

20%

20%
9%
3%
3%
1%

40%

64%

60%

Non-binary

Other

Prefer not to answer

Male
Very good

Good

Okay

Poor

Very poor

Don't know

Response numbers:
Female

Male

Non-binary

Other

Prefer not to
answer

7,988

7,143
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Sexual Orientation

Overall, How Was Your Experience of our Service?
Responses according to Sexuality: Jan - Dec 2021
80%

Very good

52%
23%
10%
4%
8%
2%

Gay or Lesbian

47%
23%
10%
4%
13%
2%

Bi-sexual

44%
17%
19%
7%
10%
3%

0%

52%
21%
10%
6%
9%
2%

20%

44%
23%
13%
9%
8%
3%

40%

63%
20%
10%
3%
3%
1%

60%

I'm not sure

Other

Prefer not to say

Heterosexual /
Straight
Good

Okay

Poor

Very poor

Don't know

Response numbers:
Bi-sexual

Gay or Lesbian

Heterosexual /
I'm not sure
Straight

Other

Prefer not to
say

326

307

13244

163

1269
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022

Item
Enclosure

9
9

Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

Guardian Service – Freedom to Speak Up report
Simon Patrick, The Guardian Service
Rachel Clare Evans, Director of Strategy & People
None

What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

The report is for the Board’s information and will be presented by our
independent Freedom to Speak Up Guardians – The Guardian Service.

What risks/issues in the The report highlights themes that arise from the interactions with the
report need to be
Guardian Service and the actions that Oxleas is taking to address them.
noted or acted upon?
These focus mainly on delivering improvements in the consistency of
management tone and communication, which we are tackling through the
‘Oxlead’ programme and the behavioural framework supporting the
values.
Where has this report
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
terms/acronyms used
in the report

The report has been discussed at the Executive and at People Committee.

Link to trust strategy

Making Oxleas a Great Place to Work

Link to Board
Assurance Framework

Risk 1471 – Staff experiencing discrimination at work
Risk 1502 – Staff experiencing low morale and burnout

Please summarise
implications for:
Quality

No.
FTSU refers to the Freedom to Speak Up
HR – human resources

Staff need to be able to speak up about a range of issues, including about
concerns about quality of care.
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Finances

Service users/
carers/staff

A culture where staff are unable to speak up risks increased turnover with
an impact on bank and agency spend.
Speaking up directly affects the experience of protected groups within the
organisation and supports the tackling of issues.
Staff and Service Users all benefit from a culture where issues of concern
can be escalated and dealt with appropriately.

Executive Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Equality analysis

Key Highlights
The paper, drafted by the Guardian Service, highlights the themes and
data for the last year.
Key recommendations include:
1. Concerns relating to Management Issues (i.e. line management
actions and/or decision-making) is the dominant theme for
concerns that have been raised within the year. It is commonly
raised within the concerns with the FTSUGs that line managers can
be aggressive in their style and tone of communication, both in
written and verbal form.
Oxleas response: We are committed improving tone and
communication. This is a key part of our Values and Behaviours
frameworks and these are being embedded in our performance
management processes. We have also introduced a new leadership
programme for all our front-line managers and this will have a clear
focus on personal impact and leadership behaviours. We are also
launching a Team Effectiveness programme that will support effective
and active listening.
2. Consideration to be given for outreach HR services on trust sites on
a rotation basis. Improving visibility at all sites will help staff to
better understand HR services and diminish staff feelings that HR
doesn’t understand staff concerns at ground level.
Oxleas response: We hold regular HR online surgeries for our staff and
look forward to these being resumed at a local level when the Covid
risks diminish.
3. Several concerns raised in 2021 included ward procedure confusion
regarding calling an ambulance to wards. The trust may wish to
consider clarifying this procedure with staff, when patients require
urgent medical treatment.
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Oxleas response: We have raised this issue with the Director of
Nursing and the Chief Operating Officer.
4. Consideration to be given to upskilling managers to be able to
appropriately line manage staff and in accordance with
performance management policies and procedures to enable staff
to have job satisfaction and develop in their roles.
Oxleas response: This is a key part of our new Oxlead programme for
all front-line managers and team leaders.
5. The FTSUG attending Induction days is currently being arranged for
2022, to ensure new staff have an awareness of the Guardian
Service and the support and options available
Oxleas response: This is being added to our induction programme and
was already highlighted in the information we communicate to new
joiners.
Action required
The Board is invited to note the report and ask any questions of the
Guardian Service in response to their presentation.
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Freedom to Speak Up Guardian Report
1 January 2021 – 31 December 2021
Simon Patrick
Freedom to Speak Up Guardian, The Guardian Service Ltd
Introduction
The purpose of this paper is to give insight into the progress and development of the service
and learning from the themes arising from the cases received by the Freedom to Speak Up
Guardians (FTSUGs).
This report provides an overview of themes and issues raised through the FTSUGs from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021. The report also sets out some learning points and makes
recommendations for the Board to consider.
FTSUGs have a key role in helping to raise the profile of raising concerns in the organization.
They also provide confidential support to staff in relation to concerns they have about patient
safety and/or the way their concern has been handled.
This report follows guidance from the National Guardian’s Office (NGO) on the content
FTSUGs should include when reporting to their Board. The headings include:
1. Assessment of Issues
2. Potential patient safety or workers experience issues
3. Action taken to improve FTSU culture
4. FTSUG Learning and Improvement
5. Comments & Recommendations
Implementing the Guardian Service role
The Guardian Service Ltd (GSL) is an independent and confidential staff liaison service. It was
established in 2013 by the National NHS Patient Champion in response to The Francis Report.
GSL provides staff with an independent, confidential 24/7 service to raise concerns, worries
or risks in their work place. GSL covers patient care and safety, whistleblowing, bullying and
harassment and work concerns.
Being available and responsive to staff are key successes to the role. Staff are always offered
the choice of where and when they wish to meet the FTSUG which can be on site or off site
and are reminded of the 24/7 service. It is important to maintain both the independence and
confidentiality that goes with the role. Most staff prefer to meet off site.
Communication/marketing has been achieved via the Intranet, the publication of flyers and
posters which have been distributed throughout the organization. Additional communication
has been achieved by the FTSUG attending team meetings and ward handovers. To maximise
communication the FTSUG visit wards and offices to give presentations on the service to staff
where possible.
Summary of the FTSUG Role
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Freedom to Speak Up Guardians help:
•
•
•

Protect patient safety and the quality of care
Improve the experience of workers
Promote learning and improvement

By ensuring that:
•
•
•
•

Workers are supported in speaking up
Barriers to speaking up are addressed
A positive culture of speaking up is fostered
Issues raised are used as opportunities for learning and improvement

1. Assessment of issues
1.1.

No. of concerns raised

The total number of concerns raised to the FTSUG in the period between 01 January to 31
December 2021 is 35.
8 concerns were escalated to the Trust within this period, all of which were responded to within
the agreed RAG Protocol timeframe.
8 cases remain open and 27 have been closed.
Open cases are actively monitored, and regular contact is maintained by the FTSUG with staff
members. Cases can remain ongoing for a period, where staff require either ongoing support
and guidance from the FTSUG in tackling situations informally or emotional support in
situations where they have not built up the resilience to take action for themselves. Where
setbacks or avoidable delays are experienced in the progress of cases, these would be raised
in regular monthly meetings with the Trust.
The number of emails, telephone calls and face to face visits engaged by the FTSUG in
responding to concerns are as follows:
Email – 145

Telephone – 219

Face to face – 16

There are often multiple contact points for every concern raised, therefore the numbers do not
directly correlate with the number of concerns raised.
The FTSUG encourages face to face meetings with additional follow up meetings which can
be conducted by telephone. Further contact can also be made with the FTSUG via email.
1.2.

Themes

The categories of the themes have been provided by the NGO. Concerns raised are broken
down into these categories as follows:
Themes

No’s

Patient Safety / Quality
Management Issues

2

4
12

89

Systems and Processes
Bullying and Harassment
Discrimination / Inequality
Behavioural / Relationship
Other
TOTAL

1
9
3
4
2
35

An assessment of the above themes and findings are outlined below under the following
sections
• Potential patient safety or workers experience issues
• Action taken to improve FTSU culture
• Learning and Improvement
• Recommendations
1.3.

How Oxleas compares with other GSL Mental Health Trusts for FTSU (Jan - Dec 21)

Organisation Name

Type of Organisation

No. of
cases

Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust

Mental health – community &
residential – NHS

35

Comparable Trust 2

Mental health – community &
residential – NHS

42

Comparable Trust 3

Mental health – community &
residential – NHS

29

Comparable Trust 4

Mental health - community &
residential – NHS

97

It should be noted that there is a risk of ambiguity in making a direct comparative analysis with
other Trusts. Some Trusts may have more resources available than others, in addition, a
number of internal and external variables and demographics can impact on the number of
concerns that are raised.

2. Potential patient safety or workers experience issues
Patient Safety/ Quality
All staff who contact GSL are advised that patient and staff safety concerns entailing an
immediate risk of harm are escalated immediately, with assurance being given to staff of their
anonymity should they wish to remain anonymous.
Four concerns involving either the safety of patients, staff wellbeing and safety or quality
control issues impacting on the care of patients were reported in the period from 01 January
2021 to 31 December 2021.
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Out of the four concerns raised under this theme, three were escalated to the Trust, one as
an Amber concern and two as Red concerns in accordance with GSL’s RAG system for
classifying the risk level for concerns. All concerns were acknowledged by the Trust within the
agreed RAG Protocols timeline.
Red

These scenarios require immediate escalation and response within 12 hours

Amber

A response is required within 48 hours

Green

A response is required with 72 hours

One Red concerns was outlined previously in the 6 month report, it related to the conduct of
staff and managers within a hospital clinic and the resulting risks posed upon the care and
safety of patients. The escalation of the concern has helped to drive the completion of a
management action plan that addresses all risks identified within the concern including plans
for regular review/monitoring. The case has been closed.
The second Red concern was also a previously outlined and was raised by a member of staff
surrounding the quality of care and treatment administered to vulnerable patients by Oxleas
staff, within a specific unit and incremental changes taking place. The case has been closed.
The Amber concern related to a matter of staff safety and health and safety risks posed to
staff as a result of questionable processes of incident reporting and compliance monitoring
within a hospital ward. The matter was reported to the Trust prior to GSL involvement. The
case has been closed.
Management Issues
Management Issues now account for the biggest portion of cases that have been raised with
the FTSUG in the period. 12 concerns have been raised under this theme. These were raised
within the context of;
Communication :
•
•
•
•

Aggressive/hostile communication being used by managers.
Poor communication skills during changes to how the service is managed.
Managers not listening to staff concerns, or service improvement suggestions.
General quality of management communication with staff.

Working Environment:
•
•
•
•

Creating hostile working environments.
Purposefully excluding, isolating, or marginalizing staff members.
Excessive performance monitoring.
Management decision-making perceived to be unfair.

Interpersonal Issues:
•
•
•

Staff feeling Managers are unsupportive.
Breakdown of trust between staff & managers.
Insensitivity towards staff concerns & issues.

4

91

The FTSUGs support staff to raise and forward their own management concerns. This
involves helping them to formulate e-mails to Managers about their situation in the
workplace. The FTSUG also assists with verbal communication and preparation for
staff attending informal meetings with subjects of their concern to discuss how they
are being treated.
Bullying and Harassment
Concerns raised under the theme of Bullying and Harassment accounts for 9 cases, the 2nd
highest theme within the Trust. Types of bullying & harassment behaviors that were reported
included;
Verbal: Use of language that frightens, humiliates, belittles or degrades the recipient:
•
•
•

Aggressive yelling.
Inappropriate teasing or offensive comments directed towards a person.
Name calling, insults & general intimidation.

Behavioural: Behaviour that undermines a person’s work performance, working
relationships, or perceived value in the workplace:
•
•
•

Threatening gestures.
Repeatedly discounting a person’s statements or contributions in a one to one or group
setting.
Repeated reminders of past errors mistakes and pattern of feedback being given in an
unconstructive manner

Social: Covert bullying designed to harm someone’s social reputation and / or cause
humiliation.
• Lying and spreading rumours to colleagues.
• Playing practical jokes aimed to embarrass and humiliate.
• Encouraging others to socially exclude.
The FTSUG encourages members of staff to explore informal methods for resolving
workplace Bullying and Harassment issues, including peer facilitation which is offered
internally by the Trust and has provided guidance to them in holding difficult
conversations with their colleagues over such behaviors, before they become formal
grievances.
Behaviour/ Relationships
Concerns about workplace behaviors and relationship issues among staff, their colleagues
and/or their managers are addressed by this theme. 4 concerns were reported during the
period and were raised within the context of;
•

Staff experienced negative or unconstructive encounters with their line manager.

5
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•
•
•

Staff feel they do not have the courage or opportunity to address matters directly with
senior managers with a view to exploring resolution options.
Manager is not receptive to any form of feedback.
Disputes between staff members are left unresolved or unaddressed, this tends to
impact adversely on the quality of the relationship maintained between the team as a
whole.

The FTSUG recognizes that there are barriers to effective communication and the
exchange of feedback between parties occasionally, which can impact adversely on the
quality of relationships between the parties going forward. As the FTSUG has the time
to work through issues with staff members, we often find these conversations give staff
the clarity needed to self-determine a satisfactory resolution.
2.1 Why use The Guardian Service
Contacts are routinely asked why they chose to use GSL. The responses that were given to
this question are displayed in the chart below.
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0

Fear of losing their
Believe the
Fear of damage to
job
organisation will
their career
not take action

Fear of reprisal

Believe they will
Have raised
not be listened to concerns before
but nothing has
happened.

2.2 Confidentiality
How cases are managed by The Guardian Service with respect to confidentiality and
escalation routes is recorded cumulatively. A breakdown of this data covering the period of 1
January to December 31 2021 is provided below;
Confidentiality
Keep it confidential within Guardian Service remit
Permission to escalate with names
Permission to escalate anonymously
Total

2.3 Directorate
6

No. of
concerns
23
7
5

Percentage

35

65%
20%
15%
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Detailed in the chart below are the number of concerns raised by directorate.

NOT DISCLOSED

2

PRISON

2

GREENWICH

10

FORENSIC

0

CORPORATE

1

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

4

BEXLEY CARE

5

BROMLEY

11
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

2.4 Where did staff hear about the Guardian Service?
Feedback from staff who have contacted the FTSUG indicates that their knowledge of The
Guardian Service was attained from a combination of different routes ranging from; information
supplied via the Trust Intranet; leaflets or posters displayed internally; word of mouth via
colleagues/ line managers, staff briefings delivered by the FTSUG and referrals from staff
networks (i.e. Disability, BAME, LGBTQ+, Mental Health etc) and/or Staff Partnership.

2.5 Professional Groups
Professional groups are defined by the NHS. Detailed in the chart below is the number of
concerns raised according to professional groups.
Name of Professional Group

No.s

Administrative and Clerical
Nursing and Midwifery
Additional Clinical Services
Allied Healthcare Professionals
Additional Prof., Scientific and Technical
Medical and dental
Undisclosed
TOTAL
2.6 Professional Level

7

2
11
6
5
7
2
2
35
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Detailed below are the professional levels of those staff who have spoken up from 1 January
to 31 December 2021
Professional level of staff member
Worker
Manager
Senior Leader
Not disclosed
TOTAL

No.s
29
3
0
3
35

3. Action taken by Guardian Service to improve FTSU culture
•

Monthly meetings with the Director of Strategy and People and Head of Employee
Relations are held to talk through the monthly activity reports which includes themes
and outcome of cases. No individual can be identified by the reports therefore
maintaining staff members’ confidentiality.

•

The FTSUG hold quarterly meetings with the CEO and a Non-Executive Director to
discuss emerging themes and learning points.

•

The FTSUGs conducted walkabouts, visiting wards, and offices to speak to staff about
The Guardian Service and distributes promotional materials in the Forensics and
Prisons directorates. Further promotional briefings have been mainly delivered virtually
across divisions by the FTSUGs.

•

Monthly meetings with HR Business Partners are held to discuss arising themes within
their Service Line to increase awareness and to enable the development of good
practices within their teams. No individual can be identified by the discussion of
Themes therefore maintaining staff’s confidentiality.

•

The FTSUG listens and supports staff to enable them to raise their own concerns.
Exploring ideas & options for using existing tools, such as facilitated meetings, Peer
Facilitation, formulating e-mails to Managers, verbal communication and preparation
for staff attending facilitated or one to one meetings. All of which can help an individual
bring about a resolution, without instigating formal grievance procedures.

4. FTSUG Learning and Improvement
•

The FTSUG routinely reflects on practice which informs continual learning. Peer
support through other GSL Guardians is always available and used when dealing with
complex concerns.

8
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•

The FTSUGs attends events and meetings organised by the National Guardian Office
(NGO). This, as well as the NGO bulletin enables the Guardian to stay abreast of
developments in the field which in turn support handling concerns effectively.

•

As the Guardian Service has clients across a number of NHS Trusts, we are able to
compare and contrast best practice approaches in respect to policy, service
implementation, and organizational response.

•

All FTSUGs complete Mental Health First Aid Training (MHFA – England).

•

Quarterly supervised meetings are held by a qualified mental health first aid instructor
and an ambassador for MQ: Mental Health Charity. This is part of an ongoing GSL
‘Practice Enhancement Training’ schedule.

5. Comments and Recommendations
•

Concerns relating to Management Issues (i.e.line management actions and/or
decision-making) is the dominant theme for concerns that have been raised within the
year. It is commonly raised within the concerns with the FTSUGs that line managers
can be aggressive in their style and tone of communication, both in written and verbal
form. A lack of effective & active listening is also equally prevalent in concerns raised
under Management Issues, so the Trust may wish to give consideration to Trust-wide
interventions in training programs for staff in positions of leadership.
Oxleas response: We are committed improving tone and communication. This is a
key part of our Values and Behaviours frameworks and these are being embedded in
our performance management processes. We have also introduced a new leadership
programme for all our front-line managers and this will have a clear focus on personal
impact and leadership behaviours. We are also launching a Team Effectiveness
programme that will support effective and active listening.

•

In relation to Management Issues. The Guardian Service Ltd has spent the last year
perfecting an interactive reflective guide on “The Power of Speaking Up”, working on
the dynamics of Speaking, Listening & hearing Up. The Trust may wish to consider
circulating this useful guide to line management, to help address behavioural and
competence-based expectations that are required.
Oxleas response: We will promote this on our internet – The Ox.
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•

Consideration to be given for outreach HR services on trust sites on a rotation basis.
Improving visibility at all sites will help staff to better understand HR services and
diminish staff feelings that HR doesn’t understand staff concerns at ground level.
Oxleas response: We hold regular HR online surgeries for our staff and look forward
to these being resumed at a local level when the Covid risks diminish.

•

Several concerns raised in 2021 included ward procedure confusion regarding calling
an ambulance to wards. The trust may wish to consider clarifying this procedure with
staff, when patients require urgent medical treatment.
Oxleas response: We have raised this issue with the Director of Nursing and the
Chief Operating Officer.

•

Consideration to be given to upskilling managers to be able to appropriately line
manage staff and in accordance with performance management policies and
procedures to enable staff to have job satisfaction and develop in their roles.
Oxleas response: This is a key part of our new Oxlead programme for all front-line
managers and team leaders.

•

The FTSUG attending Induction days is currently being arranged for 2022, to ensure
new staff have an awareness of the Guardian Service and the support and options
available
Oxleas response: This is being added to our induction programme and was already
highlighted in the information we communicate to new joiners.

•

GSL are currently finalising updated FTSUG promotional material for 2022, working
with Comms & our HR Business Partners, we will ensure this is widely distributed
thought the Trust. Communication of the FTSU service should be ongoing and the
FTSUG will continue to work with communication team to refresh and keep information
updated.
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Report completed by
Simon Patrick
Freedom to Speak Up Guardian
Guardian Service Ltd
13th January 2022
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022

Item
Enclosure

10
10a&b

Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust – Charitable Fund Annual Accounts 2020/21
Sat Dhinsa – Associate Director of Financial Services & Assurance
Azara Mukhtar – Director of Finance
N/A

What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

For the Board to ratify the Charitable Fund Accounts which have been
submitted to the Charity Commission

What risks/issues in the
report need to be
noted or acted upon?
Where has this report
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
terms/acronyms used
in the report

N/A

Link to trust strategy

Building block eight: Making the best use of resource

Link to Board
Assurance Framework

N/A

Please summarise
implications for:
Quality
Finances
Equality analysis
Service users/
carers/staff

Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
N/A
N/A

Achieve value for money on funds used
The Trustee are responsible to ensure the charity’s resources are utilised
responsibly
Ensure funds are spent appropriately and in accordance with any
restrictions
The Covid-19 fund will support service users, carers and staff
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Executive Summary

The Trust has completed the compilation of the Charitable Fund
Accounts for 2020/21.
Key highlights:•
•
•

•

•

•

Total income of £302k; Total expenditure of £141k; resulting in
a net movement in the year of £161k.
Cash held at the 31 March 2021 equated to £568k.
Charitable fund total of £612k at 31 March 2021 analysed as
o £372k of unrestricted funds
o £240k of restricted funds (limited to a specific purpose)
The Charitable Fund accounts were reviewed and approved by
the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee on the 21 September
2021.
An independent examination by Grant Thornton confirmed that
there are ‘no matters’ arising from the audit and signed off the
attached set of accounts, which comply with the Charities
Regulations 2008.
Grant Thornton LLP issued their independent examiners report
on the 31 January 2022. The accounts were also therefore
submitted to the Charity Commission on the same date.

Enclosure A – Charitable Fund Annual Accounts 2021/22
Enclosure B – Charitable Fund Representation Letter
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Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust
Charitable Fund
(Registered Charity No. 1061424)

Annual Report & Financial Statements Year Ended
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Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
Annual Report & Financial Statements 2020-21
Annual Report & Financial Statements 2020-21

Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund (Registered Charity No. 1061424)
The Corporate Trustee presents the Charitable Fund Annual Report together with the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2021 for the registered charity, prepared in accordance with Section 132 (1) of the Charities Act 2011 and The
Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008.
The Charitable Fund operates under a Declaration of Trust dated 17 February 1997. The aim of our Charity is to raise funds and
attract donations that can be used to benefit a wide range of services provided by Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust. These include a
wide range of healthcare provision including community services across a variety of locations such as people’s homes, health
centres, schools, prisons and hospitals. The Charitable Fund is an umbrella fund which is made up of 25 individual charitable funds
(2019/20: 57 Funds). Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund.
In administering the objectives and activities of the fund, the Trustee gives careful consideration to the Charity Commission’s
general guidance on public benefit.
The following Directors of the Trustee are also members of Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Board as at 31st March 2021:
Chairman

Andy Trotter

Chief Executive Matthew Trainer (until 15th August 2021)
Dr Ify Okocha (from 24th August 2021)

Vice Chair

Steve Dilworth

Deputy Chief Executive Dr Ify Okocha (until 24th August 2021)

Non-Executive Directors
Steve Dilworth
Stephen James (until 31st December 2021)
Jo Stimpson
Yemisi Gibbons
Nina Hingorani-Crain
Dr Suzanne Shale
Dr Amlan Basu (until 31st December 2021)
Jim Shaikh (from 1st January 2022)
Sophy Proctor (from 1st January 2022)

Executive Board Directors
Dr Ify Okocha
Jane Wells
Neil Springham (From 4th January 2021)
Michael Witney (until 30th November 2020)
Rachel Evans
Azara Mukhtar
Iain Dimond
Abimbola Fadipe (From 24th August 2021)
Tom Clark (From 24th August 2021)

Trustee recruitment, appointment and induction
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund. Trustees of Oxleas NHS
Foundation Trust Charitable Fund are appointed from the board of Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust.
Key management personnel information
The Trustee has concluded that the Directors of the Trust and the Trust fund Directors comprise the key management personnel of
the charitable funds as they are in charge of:



Directing and controlling the charitable funds
Running and operating the charitable funds on a day-to-day basis.

The Directors of the Trust give their time freely and did not receive any remuneration during the year. The Directors of the Trust
are required to declare any potential conflict of interests. No conflicts of interest were declared that impacted upon the Charity.
The Directors of the Trust have agreed that no separate committee to manage the Charity is required due to the size of the
Charity. The day-to-day administration and control of the 25 individual accounts that make up the Charity are delegated to
members of Trust staff who are best placed to recognise needs (Fundholders) and are in a relevant post to the Charitable Fund
concerned.
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Annual Report & Financial Statements 2020-21
Individual Funds
The 57 funds were reorganised as at 1st April 2020 to leave 27 funds. Four new funds were set up in the restructure and 34 were
closed. A further 2 funds were closed during the year.
Reserves Policy
Charitable Fund policy states that fund holders should endeavour to ensure that all donations should be expended within two years
of receipt, except where funds are being saved for a specific purpose (either restricted or designated funds). The budget holders
for each Trust fund are responsible for building reserves for their fund should this be deemed necessary, however at present no
funds are saved for this purpose.
Risk Policy
The amount of funds held in respect of Charitable Funds is considered too small to support an investment portfolio. The Corporate
Trustee does not consider there to be any major risks associated with the charitable funds due to the nature of the charitable
activities undertaken. Funds spent during the year will be no more than the balance of reserves held.
Expenditure authorisation limits for Trust fund holders are standardised. This is now in line with the Trust’s signatory authority
matrix. This is to ensure that all expenditure for the Trust is authorised using the same processes throughout the Trust.
The charitable fund is reliant on voluntary income and donations to allow expenditure on charitable activities. If income falls then
the expenditure would have to fall as a result of this. The NHS is also by its nature subject to changes in government policy and
funding decisions, and so there is an inherent risk as a result of any unforeseen changes in the NHS.
Accounting
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust provides accounting facilities for the Trust Funds. Each Charitable Fund has a unique code which is
debited or credited at the time of a transaction. Transactions are processed though the ledger system. Any balance owing to or
from the Fund is transferred between the Trust Fund Account and Oxleas’ bank account during the financial year.
Investment Policy
£142,000 remains on deposit with Lloyds (April 2020: £450,000). Interest in 2020-21 was earned at 0.05% (2019/20: 0.80%) and
was below £500 in total (2019/20: £4,000).
Financial Review
During the year charitable funds of £302,000 (2019/20: £42,000) were generated, whilst in the same year expenditure totalled
£141,000 (2019/20: £155,000), resulting in net income of £159,000 (2019/20: £114,000 expenditure). Donations remain a
considerable source of income to the funds with £294,000 of income, with the remainder coming from charitable activities and
returns on investments. Charitable activities represent £141,000 of the expenditure. The charitable funds amount to £612,000
(2019/20: £451,000), which means that the funds can continue to be expended in line with the above policies.
The General Fund saw income of £177k through donations, whilst the Covid-19 fund received £110k through NHS Charities
Together. £33k of the income to the Covid-19 fund was spent on rewarding staff for their hard work due to the pandemic in a
combination of vouchers and ‘wellness packs’. The Bracton fund continued to see large expenditure, with £18k spent on a
combination of improving patients’ communal areas and funding the Bracton Against Drugs Group.
How to contact us
Further information about particular funds can be obtained from the Senior Financial Accountant, in the first instance. Copies of
the Annual Accounts for Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund can be obtained by writing to the Director of Finance at the
same address.
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Thank you
Given the difficulties during the Covid-19 pandemic, service users have benefited greatly from the generosity of family, friends,
staff and the wider community who have made donations to the Trust funds and helped with fundraising efforts. Thank you also
to our volunteers, 16 of whom manage our snack shops. The profits from the shop are put into two Trust funds; one for Adult
mental health patients within Oxleas House and the other being the Trust fund for older people. The funds are usually used to
pay for entertainers on the wards, emergency clothing and toiletries, and also to keep the gardens in good condition for our
patients, visitors and staff. The funds are used to buy Christmas presents and Easter eggs for our elderly in patients and to fund
day trips to various places i.e. seaside trips and places of interest. We fund BBQs for elderly inpatient wards and pay for
themed party days throughout the year. The funds are also used for certain items of equipment on the ward and for celebrating
special occasions for the patients. Due to the pandemic and as a result of social distancing and infection control measures, we
did not operate the shops at the usual capacity and the number of activities were reduced along with gatherings of staff and
patients. Funding received has been used across many funds to provide training and guidance for staff, meaning that the
benefits do not solely apply to Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust but to society as a whole.
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust
Our services cover; in the borough structure of Greenwich, Bexley and Bromley:
 Adult Mental Health (including the interests of those in forensic and prison services)
 Older People Mental Health
 Adult Community Health
 Children and Young People (both mental health and physical health services)
 Learning Disability
 Queen Mary’s Hospital
How we organise ourselves: reference and administrative details
Charity Number
Our registered charity number is 1061424.
Registered Address
The charity is located at:
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust
Pinewood House
Pinewood Place
Dartford
Kent
DA2 7WG
Our advisers
Independent Examiners
Grant Thornton LLP
30 Finsbury Square
London
EC2A 1AG

Bankers
Lloyds Bank
4th Floor
25 Gresham Street
London
EC2V 7HN

Internal Auditor
KPMG LLP
8th Floor East
15 Canada Square
London
E14 5GL
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How we manage your donations
The Charity makes grants from both its unrestricted and restricted funds to Trust staff for training purposes and issues other
expenditure in relation to patient welfare, staff welfare and other expenditure. The largest 12 funds also incur an administration
fee from Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust and the independent examination fees, apportioned across the funds by size.
Unrestricted funds: These funds are received by the charity with no particular preference expressed by the donors as to how
the money should be spent, or ringfenced for a designated location, but into a fund where there are no restrictions on how this
money should be spent.
Restricted funds: These are funds donated for a specific purpose expressed by the donor into either a new fund created for a
specific purpose or an existing restricted fund and are spent as such.
What we plan to do with your donations: our future plans
The Charitable Fund policy states that fund holders should endeavour to ensure that all donations should be expended within
two years of receipt, and we will continue to ensure that donations are spent on enhancing patient care by funding a wide range
of activities and training over and above the core services and facilities that are funded by the NHS.
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Statement of Trustee responsibilities
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including
FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland".
The law applicable to charities in England and Wales requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the incoming resources and application of
resources of the charity for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;
- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;
- make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed; and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charity will continue
in business.
The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, at any time the
financial position of the charity and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the
Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the charity and financial information included on the charity's
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved on behalf of the Corporate Trustee

Azara Mukhtar
Director of Finance
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust
31st January 2022
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Independent examiner's report to the corporate trustee of Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust
Charitable Fund
I report on the accounts of Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund (the "charity") for the year ended 31 March 2021, which
are set out on pages 1 to 19.
Independent examiner's statement
In connection with my examination, no matter has come to my attention:
•

which gives me reasonable cause to believe that in any material respect, the requirements:
− to keep accounting records in accordance with section 130 of the Charities Act 2011; and
−

to prepare accounts which accord with the accounting records; and

−

to comply with the applicable requirements concerning the form and content of accounts set out in the Charities
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008

have not been met, or
•

to which, in my opinion, attention should be drawn in order to enable a proper understanding of the accounts to be reached.

Basis of independent examiner's statement
My examination was carried out in accordance with the general Directions given by the Charity Commission. An examination
includes a comparison of the accounts with the accounting records kept by the charity. It also includes consideration of any unusual
items or disclosures in the accounts and seeking explanations from you as corporate trustee concerning any such matters. The
procedures undertaken do not provide all the evidence that would be required in an audit, and consequently no opinion is given as
to whether the accounts present a 'true and fair' view and the report is limited to those matters set out in the statement above.
Respective responsibilities of corporate trustee and examiner
The charity’s corporate trustee is responsible for the preparation of the accounts. The charity’s trustee considers that an audit is not
required for this year under section 144(2) of the Charities Act 2011 and that an independent examination is needed.
It is my responsibility to:
• examine the accounts under section 145 of the Charities Act 2011;
•

to follow the procedures laid down in the general Directions given by the Charity Commission under section 145(5)(b) of the
Charities Act 2011; and

•

to state whether particular matters have come to my attention.

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the charity's trustees have prepared the charity's accounts in accordance with the Statement
of Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (effective 1 January 2019) issued in October 2019 in preference to the Statement of Recommended Practice 'Accounting and
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice (revised 2005)' issued in April 2005 which is referred to in the
Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 but has been withdrawn. I understand that the charity's trustees have done this
in order for the charity's accounts to give a true and fair view in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Use of this report
This report is in respect of an examination carried out under section 145 of the Charities Act 2011. This report is made solely to the
charity's corporate trustee, as a body, in accordance with the regulations made under section 154 of the Charities Act 2011. My
work has been undertaken so that I might state to the charity's trustees those matters I am required to state to them in an
independent examiner's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, I do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the charity and the charity's trustee, as a body, for my work, for this report or for the opinions I
have formed.

Sarah Ironmonger, FCPFA
Grant Thornton UK LLP
Chartered Accountants
Manchester
31 January 2022
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Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 March 2021
2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2019/20

2019/20

2019/20

Note

Unrestricted
Funds
£’000

Restricted
Funds
£’000

Total
Funds
£’000

Unrestricted
Funds
£’000

Restricted
Funds
£’000

Total
Funds
£’000

Donations

4.1

183

111

294

16

2

18

Other trading activities

4.2

-

2

2

-

14

14

Interest Income

4.3

-

-

-

2

2

4

Other Incoming
Resources

4.4

2

4

6

5

1

6

185

117

302

23

19

42

Income and endowments

Total Income
Expenditure On:
Raising funds

5.1

-

-

-

-

-

-

Charitable activities

5.2

44

97

141

57

98

155

Total expenditure

44

97

141

57

98

155

Net income

141

20

161

(34)

(79)

(114)

Transfers between funds

12

(12)

-

-

-

-

Net movement in funds

153

8

161

(34)

(79)

(114)

Total funds brought
forward

219

232

451

253

311

564

Fund balances carried
forward

372

240

612

219

232

451

Reconciliation of funds
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
Unrestricted
funds
£’000

Restricted
funds
£’000

Total at 31
March 2021
£’000

Unrestricted
funds
£’000

Restricted
funds
£’000

Total at 31
March 2020
£’000

346

222

568

221

242

463

42

18

60

-

95

95

388

240

628

221

337

558

(16)

-

(16)

(2)

(105)

(107)

Net Current Assets

372

240

612

219

232

451

Total Net Assets

372

242

612

219

232

451

Note

Current Assets
Cash at bank and in hand
Debtors

10

Total Current Assets
Creditors
Creditors: Liabilities falling
due within one year

11

Funds of the Charity
Restricted income funds

12

-

240

240

-

232

232

Unrestricted income funds

13

372

-

372

219

-

219

372

240

612

219

232

451

Total Charity Funds

The notes on pages 12 to 19 form part of these accounts.

Approved on behalf of the Corporate Trustee

Azara Mukhtar
Director of Finance
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust
31st January 2022
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Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ending 31st March 2021
Note

Cash flows used in operating activities:
Net Cash used in operating activities
Interest Income
Net cash used in investing activity

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year

15
4.3

Year Ended
31st March 2021
£000

Year Ended
31st March 2020
£000

105
-

(138)
4
4

105
463

(134)
597

568

463

10
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Notes to the Accounts

1

Accounting Policies

1.1

Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with Accounting
and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice (FRS 102), applicable United Kingdom Financial
Reporting Standards (FRS 102) and the Charities Act 2011. The Trustee considers that the going concern basis is an
appropriate basis on which to prepare these financial statements. No significant judgements have been exercised in
preparing the financial statements as none of the charity’s operations require such judgement, similarly there no key
sources of estimation uncertainty.
The charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by charities SORP (FRS 102).

1.2

Income
All income is recognised once the Charity has entitlement to the resources, it is probable that the resources will be
received, and the monetary value can be measured with sufficient reliability.
When there are terms or conditions attached to income then these terms or conditions must be met before the income is
recognised as the entitlement condition will not be satisfied until that point. Where terms and conditions have not been
met or uncertainty exists as to whether they can be met then the relevant income is not recognised in the year but
deferred and shown on the balance sheet as deferred income. The above applies to all sources of income that appear
on the Statement of Financial Activity, being Donations, Other trading activities, Interest income and Other incoming
Resources.

1.3

Funds structure
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund comprises ‘restricted income’ and ‘unrestricted income’ funds. Where
there is a legal restriction on the purpose to which a fund may be put, the fund is classified in the accounts as a
restricted fund. All ‘unrestricted’ funds can be spent at the Trustee’s discretion. The major funds and material funds
held in this category are disclosed in notes 12 and 13 of the Accounts. The Charity has no ‘endowment funds’.

1.4

Expenditure and irrecoverable VAT
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs
related to each category of expense shown in the Statement of Financial Activities. All expenditure is recognised once
there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the Charity to make payment to a third party. VAT is irrecoverable
and is charged against the category of resources expended for which it was incurred

1.5

Analysis of governance and support costs
The Charitable Fund was charged £4,800 by Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust (2019/20: £4,800) to cover the cost of Fund
management and administration as no staff are directly employed by the charity, and is charged £4,800 as an
Independent examination fee by Grant Thornton UK LLP. The cost is apportioned between the largest twelve funds
based on individual balances at the start of the financial year. Governance costs relate to the independent examination
fee. The apportioned governance costs relating to restricted funds are accounted for under restricted funds and the
apportioned governance costs for unrestricted funds are accounted for under unrestricted funds. These costs are
included within the total cost of ‘charitable activities’.
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Costs of raising funds
The costs of raising funds are those attributable to raising income for the Charity. They represent fundraising costs.

1.7

Charitable activities
Expenditure on activities for the ongoing benefit of patients and staff are charged directly to Charitable Activities, as are
all costs incurred in the pursuit of the charitable objects of the charity.

1.8

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand is held to meet the day to day running costs of the charity as they fall due.

1.9

Creditors
Creditors are amounts owed by the charity. They are measured at the amount that the charity expects to have to pay to
settle the debt.

1.10

Debtors
Debtors are amounts owed to the charity. They are measured at the amount that the charity expects to receive to settle
the debt.

2.

Prior year comparatives by type of fund
The primary statements provide prior year comparatives in total; notes 4,5,12 and 13 provide prior period comparatives
for the Statement of Financial Activities and the Balance Sheet for each of the types of fund held.

3.

Related Party Transactions
Neither the Corporate Trustee or key management staff or parties related to them have undertaken any material
transactions with Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund during the financial year or received any benefit from
the Charity in payment or kind. Payments to Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust for expenditure incurred on the Charity’s
behalf are made periodically throughout the year, including a payment of £4,800 to Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust for
administration and management costs during the financial year (2019/20: £4,800). In total £16k was owing to Oxleas
NHS Foundation Trust at year end (2019/20: £100k). During the year 2 payments were made from Oxleas NHS
Foundation Trust to the Oxleas NHS Foundation Charitable Fund totalling £110,105.14 (2019/20: 2 payments totalling
£14,111.85), with 7 payments made from the Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund to Oxleas NHS Foundation
Trust totalling £173,190.22 (2019/20: 9 payments totalling £162,231.26).

4.

Analysis of income and endowment from generated funds

4.1

Income from Donations

Donations
General
Purpose
Covid-19
Other Funds
Total

2020/21
Unrestricted
funds
£000

2020/21
Restricted
funds
£000

2020/21
Total

2019/20
Restricted
funds
£000

2019/20
Total

£000

2019/20
Unrestricted
funds
£000

177
6
183

110
1
111

177
110
7
294

10
6
16

2
2

10
8
18

£000

Donations from individuals are gifts from members of the public, relatives of patients, NHS Charities Together and staff.
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4.2

Other Trading Activities
2020/21
Unrestricted
funds
Fundraising
Greenwich
Older People
Greenwich
Adults
Total
-

4.3

£000

2019/20
Unrestricted
funds
£000

1

1

-

11

11

1

1

-

3

3

2

2

-

14

14

2020/21
Restricted
funds
£000

2020/21
Total

2019/20
Restricted
funds
£000

2019/20
Total
£000

Interest Income
£478 interest was earned on the Trust Funds for 2020/21 (2019/20: £4,000).
Interest is apportioned between all charitable funds based on their balance at the end of each month throughout the
financial year.

4.4

Other Incoming Resources
2020/21
Unrestricted
funds
£000

2
Postgraduate
Fund
Pharmacy Fund
Child &
Adolescent
Psychotherapy
Total

2020/21
Restricted
funds

2020/21
Total

2019/20
Unrestricted
funds

2019/20
Restricted
funds

2019/20
Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

4

-

4

1

1
-

1
1

5

1

6

2

-

4
-

2

4

4
6
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5.

Analysis of charitable expenditure

5.1

Charitable Activities

Patient Welfare
Bracton
Bexley General
Bromley
General
Child Services
Other Funds

2020/21
Unrestricted
funds
£000

2020/21
Restricted
funds
£000

2020/21
Total

10

Staff Welfare
Forensic
Psychiatry
Covid-19 fund
Other Funds

Other
Expenditure
Bracton
Greenwich
OPMH
Other Funds

Governance
Costs
Total

2019/20
Restricted
funds
£000

2019/20
Total

£000

2019/20
Unrestricted
funds
£000

18
-

18
10

-

33
-

33
-

10
11
31

9
20
47

10
9
31
78

14
14

38
71

52
85

8
8

34
34

34
8
42

29
2
31

19
19

29
6
3
50

-

6

6

-

-

-

-

3
3
12

3
3
12

9
9

2
2

11
11

5

4

9

3

6

9

44

97

141

57

98

155

£000

Governance costs of £4,800 for the 2020/21 independent examination fee (2019/20: £4,800) and a £4,800 recharge of
administrative costs from Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust (2019/20: £4,800) have also been added to Charitable activities
expenditure in 2020/21, giving the total expenditure of £141,000 in the Statement of Financial Activities.
6.

Role of Volunteers
We have 16 volunteers who manage our two snack shops, one based in the Memorial Hospital, and one in Oxleas
House. The profits from the shop are put into two Trust funds one for adult mental health patients within Oxleas House
and the other being the Trust fund for Older people. The funds are usually used to pay for entertainers on the wards,
emergency clothing and toiletries, and to keep the gardens in good condition for our patients, visitors and staff. The
funds are also used for certain items of equipment on the ward and for celebrating special occasions for the patients.
The funds received this year in the snack shops is lower than previous years due to the pandemic reducing footfall.

7.

Trustees remuneration, benefits and expenses
The Directors of the Charity’s Corporate Trustee give their time freely and receive no remuneration for the work that
they undertake as trustees. No expenses were claimed by the Directors of the Corporate Trustee in the period.
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Independent examiner’s remuneration
The independent examiner’s remuneration of £4,800 (2019/20: £4,800) related solely to the independent examination
with no other additional work being undertaken.

9.

Transfers between Funds
On 1st April 2020 the Charitable funds were reorganised to better reflect the organisation and it’s needs. As a result of
this change £12k was transferred from restricted funds to unrestricted funds (2019/20: None). The advice of The
Charities Commission was taken prior to making these changes.

10.

Analysis of Current Assets

Prepayments
Total

11.

2020/21
Total
£000
60
60

2019/20
Total
£000
95
95

2020/21
Total
£000
5
11
16

2019/20
Total
£000
5
100
2
107

Analysis of Current Liabilities

Independent examiners’ fee accrual
Amounts due to Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust
Other Creditors
Total

No special conditions apply to the amount due to Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust.
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Analysis of restricted funds
The following funds, shown separately below, are considered material in respect of the size of their opening/closing
balances.
Balance
1 April
2020
£000
Pharmacy*
Bracton Fund*
Covid-19*
QMS Medical Education
Other funds (13)
Total

71
25
35
101
232

Resources
Incoming
Expenditure
£000

£000

4
110
3
117

Transfers

Balance
31 March
2021
£000

£000

(1)
(25)
(36)
(2)
(33)
(97)

(12)
(12)

74
74
33
59
240

* The Bracton fund is a reward group for those residents who are working towards giving up the use of illicit substances.
The Pharmacy fund and QMS Medical Education are to provide staff training and welfare, whilst Covid-19 was formed
due to funding received from NHS Charities Together and is specifically to support staff during the pandemic.
Balance
1 April
2019
£000
QMS Medical Education*
Pharmacy*
Bracton Fund*
Other funds (20)
Total

37
69
63
142
311

Resources
Incoming
Expenditure
£000

£000

2
17
19

Transfers

Balance
31 March
2020
£000

£000

(2)
(-)
(38)
(58)
(98)

-

35
71
25
101
232

*The purpose of QMS Training & Education and Pharmacy funds are for staff training only. The Bracton fund is a reward
group for those residents who are working towards giving up the use of illicit substances.
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Analysis of unrestricted funds
Balance
1 April
2020
£000
General Purpose*
Estates General*
Forensic Psychology*
Postgraduate*
Other funds (5)
Total
*

21
51
27
120
219

Resources
Incoming
Expenditure
£000

£000

178
2
1
2
2
185

Transfers

Balance
31 March
2021
£000

£000

(6)
(2)
(3)
(1)
(32)
(44)

56
(44)
12

193
56
49
28
46
372

The General Purpose fund is held to support any expenditure approved but not in line with the other purposes of an
existing fund. The Estates General fund is to fund expenditure on property held by NHS Foundation Trust. The
purpose of Forensic Psychology is for research, staff support and education. The Postgraduate fund is for the
further education and training of medical staff.

Balance
1 April
2019
£000
Forensic Psychology*
Forensic Psychiatry*
Postgraduate*
Other funds (31)
Total

55
29
24
145
253

Resources
Incoming
Expenditure
£000

£000

5
18
23

Transfers

Balance
31 March
2020
£000

£000

(4)
(29)
(2)
(22)
(57)

-

51
27
141
219

*The purpose of Forensic Psychology and Forensic Psychiatry are for research, staff support and education. The
Postgraduate fund is for the further education and training of medical staff.
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Connected Organisations

Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund. Trustees of Oxleas NHS
Foundation Trust Charitable Fund are appointed from the Board of Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust.

Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust provides services in Greenwich, Bexley, Bromley, Prison Health services across South London
and Kent along with Specialist Forensic Mental Health Services (inpatient and community).
Our services cover; in the borough structure of Greenwich, Bexley and Bromley:
 Adult Mental Health (including the interests of those in forensic and prison services)
 Older People Mental Health
 Adult Community Health
 Children and Young People (both mental health and physical health services)
 Learning Disability
 Queen Mary’s Hospital
 Forensic and Prison Health
The Trustee has concluded that the Directors of the Trust and the Trust fund directors comprise the key management personnel of
the charitable funds as they are in charge of:



Directing and controlling the charitable funds
Running and operating the charitable funds on a day-to-day basis.

The income and surplus/ deficit figures from the accounts of Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust are summarised below. The accounts
can be found at:
http://oxleas.nhs.uk/about-us/trust-publications/

2020/21

Total Income
£000
369,258

15.

Deficit
£000
7,804

Deficit
£000
2,175

Reconciliation of net movement in funds to cash used in operating activities

Net movement in funds
Adjustments for:
Deduction in bank interest shown in investments
Decrease/ (increase) in debtors
(Decrease)/ increase in creditors
Net cash used in operating activities

16.

Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust
2019/20
Total Income
£000
297,252

2020/21 Total
£
161

2019/20 Total
£
(103)

35
(91)
105

(14)
(95)
74
(138)

Post Balance Sheet Events
There were no post balance sheet events.
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Ways in which to support our charity
Donations can be made in the following ways:Direct into the bank account
Please contact Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust finance department on 01322 625798 in order to discuss the donation and obtain
our bank details.
By post
Please send a cheque, made payable to ‘Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust’, and include on the back of the cheque the funds that
you would like to donate to so that we can arrange an internal transfer from there. Please send this cheque to:
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust
Finance Department
Pinewood House
Pinewood Place
Dartford
Kent
DA2 7WG
By donation/fundraising on our behalf
For example by opening a Just Giving page. If you are an individual, group or organisation who is interested in raising money on
behalf of the Charity please contact Oxleas finance on 01322 625798 for help and support with your planned event.
Gift aid
Gift aid allows us to increase the value of your donations at no extra cost to you. For every pound donated to us we can get an
extra 25 pence from HM Revenue and Customs helping your donation go further. The only condition in doing this is that you are
a UK tax payer. In order to allow us to claim Gift aid simply advise us at the time of making your donation and provide us with
your full name and address.
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Pinewood House
Pinewood Place
Dartford
Kent
DA2 7WG

Sarah Ironmonger
Grant Thornton UK
110 Bishopsgate
London
EC2N 4AY
31st January 2022

Dear Sirs

Oxleas NHS Foundation trust Charitable Fund accounts for the year ended 31 March
2021

This representation letter is provided in connection with the independent examination of the accounts of Oxleas NHS
Foundation Trust Charitable Fund for the year ended 31 March 2021 for the purpose of making of an independent
examiner’s report in accordance with Section 154 of the Charities Act 2011.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the
purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Accounts

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of our engagement letter dated 5 April
2019, for the preparation of accounts in accordance with section 132 of the Charities Act 2011 and
comply with the Statement of Recommended Practice for accounting and reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(‘Charities SORP (FRS 102)’) (effective 1 January 2019), in particular the accounts give a true and
fair view in accordance therewith.
ii

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud.

iii

Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are
reasonable.

iv

Except as stated in the accounts:
a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent;
b. none of the assets of the charity has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged;
c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items requiring
separate disclosure.

v

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of the Charities SORP (FRS 102) and any subsequent amendments or
variations to this statement.

1

vi 120 All events subsequent to the date of the accounts and for which the Charities SORP (FRS 102) and any
subsequent amendments or variations to this statement require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or
disclosed.
vii

The accounts have been amended for misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material
misstatements, including omissions.

ix

We can confirm that:
a. all income has been recorded;
b. the restricted funds have been properly applied;
c. constructive obligations for grants have been recognised; and
d. we consider there to be appropriate controls in place to ensure overseas payments are applied for charitable
purposes.

x

The charity has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the
accounts in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of regulatory
authorities that could have a material effect on the accounts in the event of non-compliance.

xi

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of assets and
liabilities reflected in the accounts.

xii

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

xiii

The charity meets the conditions for exemption from an audit.

Information Provided
xiv

We have provided you with:
a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the accounts such as
records, documentation and other matters;
b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your examination; and
c. unrestricted access to persons from whom you determine it necessary to obtain evidence.

xv

We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which we are aware.

xvi

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the accounts may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud.

xvii

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the accounts.

xviii

We have disclosed to you our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the charity involving:
a. management;
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the accounts.

xix

We have disclosed to you our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the charity’s
accounts communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

xx

We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and
regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing accounts.

xxi

We have disclosed to you the identity of the charity's related parties and all the related party relationships and
transactions of which we are aware.

xxii

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered
when preparing the accounts.

xxiii

We confirm that we have reviewed all correspondence with regulators, which has also been made available to
you, including the guidance 'How to report a serious incident in your charity' issued by the Charity Commission
(updated in June 2019). We also confirm that no serious incident reports have been submitted to the Charity
Commission, nor any events considered for submission, during the year or in the period to the date of signing of
the balance sheet.
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Yours faithfully

Name: Azara Mukhtar
Position: Director of Finance
Date: 31/01/2022.

Signed on behalf Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund

3
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022
Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status
What is the purpose of
bringing this report to the
Board meeting?
What risks/issues in the
report need to be noted
or acted upon?

Where has this report
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
terms/acronyms used in
the report

Link to trust strategy

Item
Enclosure

11
11a-g

Performance and Quality Assurance Committee (PQAC) report (minutes from 19
January and 16 February 2022)
Yemisi Gibbons, Non-Executive Director (PQAC Chair)
Iain Dimond, Chief Operating Officer
Iain Dimond, Chief Operating Officer
N/A
For the board to receive assurance on the work of the PQAC
The following risk / issues require noting:
• Integrated Board report exception report – non achievement of key
metrics and improvement of the 72 hour metric.
• HMP Wandsworth recovery plan
• Non achievement of patient safety priorities i, ii and iii and learning from
serious incidents in January 2022
• Proposed closure of the ALD day services and transition to a community
offer
• Changes to the PQAC risks
Additional item attached – to be reviewed at the March PQAC
HMP Wandsworth Board Inquiry Action Plan
All papers are reviewed by the Executive committee and/or the relevant
subgroups e.g. Patient safety etc, prior to discussion at PQAC
There are references to suicide in the report.
ACS - Adult Community Services
AHP – Allied Health Professional
ALD – Adult Learning Disability
CMHT - Community Mental Health Teams
CQC – Care Quality Commission
CYP - Children and young people
FFT – Friends and Family Test
PFD – Prevention of Future Deaths
RTT – referral to treatment time
SLAM – South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust
SNET - Support Network Engagement Tool
IBR – Integrated Board Report
MHLOG- Mental health legislation oversight group
PQAC links with all three big priorities and all eight building blocks of the
strategy. In addition, the trust annual quality priorities.
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Link to Board Assurance
Framework

1844: Demand on CMHTs
1912: Pressure on district nursing teams
1913: Reducing wait times in community services
1921: Responding to service delivery concerns
1905: Prone restraint
1939: Ligature risk assessment

Please summarise implications for:
Quality
The report focuses on quality performance and assurance. Assurances, risks and
mitigations may have implications for delivering a high-quality service
Finances
The report does not outline significant financial implications however implementing
mitigations may require financial investments and quality improvements may have
positive implications on the efficiency and cost avoidance/effectiveness.
Equality analysis The committee considers the implications on equality and diversity issues within the
individual standing items including restraint, complaints, and performance.
Service users/
The committee considers the impact to service user experience, outcomes and safety; and
carers/staff
staff safety and well-being.

Executive The Performance and Quality Assurance Committee (PQAC) convened on the 19 January and 16
Summary February 2022. The approved minutes for the January’s committee and draft minutes for
February’s committee are available for information. The January committee was not quorate
however the meeting continued as no decisions or approvals were required by the committee.

Key highlights
Integrated Board Report (IBR)
Both committees were presented and noted the IBR exception report. The IBR presented to the
February committee is attached.
Target which has failed to
meet target (minimum) 4
out of the last 6 months:

Latest exception report provided from the February Committee
(unless otherwise indicated)

10798 Friends/relatives
involved in care and
treatment

The reorganisation of directorates into service lines in October 2021
required some substantial data cleansing work between IBR and
patient experience to accurately reflect the way we differentiate
between physical and mental services. The completion of that work
has revealed a contrasting picture of satisfaction between positive
feedback between physical and mental health services. Physical health
services are showing an increase in positive feedback, at 89%,
accompanied by a lowering of negative feedback to 4%. This is
contrasted to a negative trend of falling positive feedback for mental
health services at 71% accompanied by a concerning rise in negative
feedback at 15%. The patient experience team has been analysing that
mental health feedback by demographics which have been sent to
teams. We are developing machine learning to analyse text, but in the
absence of that being in place yet, an informal manual check of
comments shows that dissatisfaction in mental health still centres on
attitude and behaviour, whereas in physical health the concerns are
much more about waiting times. However, figures for kindness and

10338 Helped as a result of
the care and treatment they
have received
11699 FFT, overall patient
experience % good and % v
good (ACS & CYP)
11703 FFT, overall patient
experience % good and % v
good (MH and CAMHS)
11702 FFT, overall patient
experience % poor and % v
poor (MH and CAMHS)
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care, information giving, and planning care remain closer to or above
targets in all areas
11403 Performance against
30 working day target for
responding to complaints
11404 Performance against
outstanding actions
identified from complaints
11268 RTT – AHP’s
10024 RTT – Psychological
Therapies
10248 RTT – incomplete
pathways

There is a quality improvement group actively working on our
processes around complaints. This includes emphasising a
compassionate complaints approach to local resolution. This will
enable quicker resolution for complainants and a less burdensome
process for investigators

Covid has impacted on the performance against this metric although
we continue to see improvements over the last few months.
Covid has impacted on the performance against this metric although
we have started to see some improvements in recent months. A
detailed exception report is being presented to the March committee
Covid has impacted on this performance metric, but the data needs
further cleansing.

10323 Section 132 (S132)

In January, there have been 146 occasions where S132 was required;
143 were recorded and 3 breaches; there is no discernible pattern to
the breaches. Discussions and progress has been made to explore
ways of ensuring the target is met through establishing a process for
understanding the gaps, this will be in place by 18 Feb 2021.

11190 Data Quality Maturity
Index DQMI - MHSDS
Completeness

The MHSDS extract has been reviewed and 2 of the issues have been
resolved (Commissioner Code and Consultation Medium) We
anticipate performance to be at 95% for September submissions
onwards.
Trust wide average is consistently below target due to the CMHT and
CYP directorates. Acute and Crisis achieved the target in January.
Forensics are consistently over exceeding the set target. There is some
improvement with adult community mental health but this has been
impacted by Omicron in January. For CAMHS the main issues are
around the adolescent team and is related to vacancies.

10322 Care Planning
Approach (CPA) 6-month
reviews

Since the last Board update, improvements have been seen in the 11520 72-hour post discharge
follow-up (self-harm) achieving a reported 100% compliance for the last 3 months IBR and 11190
Data Quality Maturity Index DQMI – MHSDS completeness. 10338 Helped as a result of the care
and treatment they have received and 10248 RTT – incomplete pathways have been added as
new exceptions.
Health Based Place of Safety (HBPoS) (Section 136 Suite) - 2 breaches in December and 5 in
January 2022. Referrals reduced in December but rose again in January. The fluctuation is linked
to bed capacity.
IBR proposal update - In the February committee, an update on the proposed changes and
timelines to the IBR was noted by the committee.
Trust response to COVID-19 Update – The committee noted there has been a reduction in the
infection rate since January 2022, both among inpatients and staff.

HMP Wandsworth recovery plan update
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The January committee was provided with an update that the necessary improvement that was
expected to date, has not materialised; despite being closely monitored. In addition, the
committee were informed of 3 deaths in custody that occurred in December and the pending
CQC inspection to SLaMs services in early February 2022. Monitoring/performance management
is continued to be completed through five key essential metrics. There was a focused discussion
and assurances provided regarding the staffing concerns and transitioning arrangement for when
Oxleas take over the mental health services from SLaM on the 1 April 2022. In February, the
committee noted the immediate feedback provided by the CQC following the inspection on the
1-3 February 2022. The CQC identified further safety concerns, however, did not deem it
beneficial to take any further regulatory action. They will continue to monitor and support SLaM
and Oxleas during the transition period and have indicated that they will be reinspecting HMP
Wandsworth later in the year.

MH/ACS Transformation

The January committee noted the paper presented on the proposed mental health outcome
measures and requested a revised approach to be brought back to the March committee, that
incorporated and focused more on patient experience and patient outcome measures.

Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2) report

The February committee were informed of our current EDS2 self-assessment status and the
evidence that has been considered to arrive at that rating. A new Equality steering group will be
commencing in April, this will focus on service user experience and people from various
communities that are regulated by the protected characteristics. The scores were noted by the
committee as realistic and an indication we are doing a lot to improve services, but still need a
mind shift to reduce inequality for our service users and within the wider community.

Directorate Feedback

The Community Mental Health directorate presentation was noted by the committee in January
and the Acute and Crisis Directorate in February. The committee acknowledged the challenges
and plans for improvement presented by the two newly formed directorates.

ALD Day services closure

In January, the committee noted the planned closure of the ALD day service and supported the
move to a different community-based offer.

Trust Quality Priorities

Quarter 3 Quality Priorities report – this was noted at the February committee. Quarter 3 data
shows slight improvements in the trajectory towards achievement of the targets in all areas
except one. This provides an overarching quarterly report and further detail on each of the
quality priorities were discussed in more detail in the relevant agenda items of PQAC.

Patient Safety

•

•

Building Block 3 – Creating a culture of safety and learning. The committee noted the update
on the changes within the national strategy and our progress to date.
Patient safety priorities
a) Priority i - Reduction in restrictive practice
The trust has met the 10% reduction target for four months however there was a
significant rise in January from 31 recorded in December to 59. The Tarn (Psychiatric
Intensive Care unit) have seen the highest number of restraint incidents, and is suspected

126

to be linked to high acuity and an increase in staffing absence due to COVID, the
committee were informed about the improvement work being conducted on the Tarn
and the temporary reduction in the bed numbers to enable the directorate to get on top
of the issues. Prone restraint reduction remains on target.
b) Priority ii – Physical health monitoring after rapid tranquilisation (RT) - There was an
increase of incidents of RT recorded in January (51 incidents) compared to December
2021 (22 incidents) This correlates with the increase of restraints seen in January.
c) Priority iii - Prevention, early identification and management of physical deterioration
and sepsis - The total amount of National Early Warning Scores (NEWS2) forms
completed within the first 72 hours of admission indicates that the Trust’s performance is
on a upward trajectory with 76% in December and 79% in January 2022.
Serious Incidents - There were 10 incidents declared as Serious Incidents in December (4) and
January (6). The six in January were identified in the community mental health teams. The
committee were informed of a possible theme regarding the length of time it takes to access
services, particularly from the home treatment team to ADAPT for psychology. The directorate
are looking at how they can strengthen and improve.
Duty of Candour - The committee noted the duty of candour report in the January and February
committees which provides information on those incidents where moderate harm or above
occurred during December and January. It also sets out the actions to be taken regarding
exceptions and breaches of Regulation 20 to ensure the Trust meets its obligations going
forward.
Preventing future deaths (PFD) This was noted by the committee in January 2022. The PFD was
in relation to an incident that occurred on 22nd February 2020, a patient was found in the ward
communal bathroom with a ligature (shoelace) tied around his neck which had been attached to
the tap. The Coroner’s concerns are detailed in the report. However, it is worth noting that
although Oxleas is a party to the PFD, the issues to be addressed sit with the landlord of the
property.

Clinical Effectiveness

The following reports were noted by the committee
• Care Planning and Physical Health Monitoring Update – A continued focus is on the care
plan audit tool revision. This has now been successfully trialled in ALD. The care plan policy
has now been revised, consulted on and ratified.
• Clinical Audit - The Quarter 3 2021-22 Clinical Audit report highlighted the progress across
the national and organisational clinical audits the trust is participating in.
• NICE Guidance status report –The Quarter 3 2021-22 NICE Guidance report

Patient Experience
•
•

Complaints – The Quarter 2 complaints report was noted at the January committee
Support Network Engagement Tool (SNET) - Mental Health, ALD and Forensic have all
reached targets consistently. Community health have consistently achieved above the 50%
target since August 2020.

Quality Assurance update
•

Improving lives Programme – The quarter 3 report was presented and noted at the January
committee.
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•

CQC MH CTO review – In November 2021, the CQC Mental Health Act Team undertook a 2
day announced visit in Bromley as part of a CTO visiting pilot. The committee noted the
report and action plan and questioned the executives regarding the greater prevalence of
service users from a BAME background. It was noted by the committee that the
overrepresented is not just about CTO, it is about the whole Mental Health Act and there
are a number of things that we need to do; there is an issue with accessibility, with
treatment options, a cultural issue around how you accept the illness and what you need to
be doing; this is all part of the health inequality work that is currently being undertaken.

PQAC Risk Register

This was reviewed and agreed at the February PQAC. All the risks held by the Performance and
Quality Assurance Committee have been reviewed through the relevant sub-groups. There are 18
risks across the PQAC subgroup
•

•
•

Two significant risks (1913) Reducing wait times in community services and (1800)
Resuscitation equipment. The later was increased to significant following a
recommendation from PSG due to continue non-compliance with the resuscitation bag
audits.
Two risks have been closed (1986) Research (recommended closure by CEG) and (1344)
Safeguarding documentation (recommended closure by Safeguarding Sub-Committee)
The (2004) Wandsworth risk was discussed in detail and agreed to be reframed to reflect
the current situation but to remain High.

HMP Wandsworth Serious Incident Inquiry Action Plan
The committee will be reviewing the attached action plan at the March 2022 committee. This
provides the actions identified to meet the recommendations identified from the board level
inquiry into the deaths in custody that occurred between January and June 2021 at HMP
Wandsworth.
Action required
The Board are requested to note the report
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Board Level SI Inquiry Findings and Recommendations
HMP Wandsworth Improvement Action Plan
15th February 2022

Issues

Responsible Recommendations
Owner(s)

The lack of a developed
universal primary care
mental health offer

Service
Manager

Noting there is an existing
action plan in place, this needs
to deliver a better universal
offer of mental health care,
specifically: improved
screening on arrival to
holistically understand the
needs of the service user; a
defined primary care mental
health offer as specified by the
contract; a clearly articulated
operational policy for mental
health services at HMP
Wandsworth; and delivery of
training to healthcare staff in
both primary and mental
healthcare around risk
assessment

Target
Completion
Date
April 2022

Actions Taken

Status

Trust and SLAM have
agreed to end the current
MH contract 3/31/22.
Oxleas will take over the
responsibility for ensuring a
defined primary mental offer
in line with service
specification. From the
1/4/22 we will implement the
MH model as contractually
specified:
• Referral
management
• Assessment and
liaison service
• In-reach MH service
• Inpatient Unit
staffing
• Primary Care MH
service

A project plan for the
transitioning of the mental
health services to Oxleas
has been developed. A
project manager has been
appointed to oversee safe
handover. In the meantime,
to support the MH team
with patients referred for
lower-level concerns (i.e.
anxiety, loneliness,
bereavement, depression
etc), we have enlisted the
support of staff from Atrium
our provider of psychosocial
services across our
Greenwich cluster prisons
with staff starting 17/1/22.
During this transition period
we have taken over the
recruitment of staff for
current vacancies and are
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working on putting jobs out
to advert based on staff that
we have been told will not
TUPE over such as
Consultants, Nurses,
Psychology, Specialty
Doctors and OTs.
New posts appointed
to/interviews being
organised:
• 2 senior
psychologists
• Interviews for 2
psychology
assistants 3rd March
• Interviews for 1.5
Consultants 8th
March
• Interviews for 2 OTs
• Nursing interviews
on-going
Interim Consultant
Psychiatrist agreed: Dr Daly
will cover starting 15th
March.
We have an integrated
service model e.g.,
substance misuse,
therefore, staffing will be
utilised and covering the
whole service.
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The operationalisation of
the ACCT process

Head of
Healthcare
(HoH) and
Governor

Given its pivotal role in keeping
prisoners safe, healthcare
management at HMP
Wandsworth (Oxleas and
SLaM) are to work with the
prison to deliver the revised
ACCT (Assessment, Care in
Custody and Teamwork) 6
framework, with a clear referral
process to healthcare and clear
standards for staff from all
agencies to adhere to.
This needs to embody a true
multi agency / disciplinary
approach, highlighting the
importance of including family.

On-going
(October
2022)

All clinicians to receive
additional training around risk
assessment for suicide and
self-harming

To be
completed
within 6
months of
employment
with Trust for
New staff
and for
existing staff

ACCT training for staff
commenced January 2022
Training being held on a
weekly basis for all staff
(Consultants, Junior docs,
Nurses (RGNs & RMNs),
HCAs, Substance misuse
staff, psychology staff,
pharmacy staff).
The training is provided by
the HMP Prison training and
education department.

HoH to provide monthly
evidence of staff
attendance and topics
covered.
The Head of nursing for
prisons will carry out
observational sessions
periodically (quarterly) to
ensure learning is
embedded across all
specialities.

ACCT training frameworks
covers key elements of
communication,
documentation and
assessment, care planning
and support available to all
patients and how to access
support. (Counselling,
bereavement, spiritual, etc.)

Head of nursing for prisons
to schedule training for
existing staff.
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The quality of
communication and
information sharing
between different
agencies (Processes for
information sharing within
healthcare providers,
prison, and other
agencies are not
consistent and lack of
documentation of
outcomes following
assessment and with a
clear plan

Head of
Healthcare

Healthcare staff to have a clear
escalation procedure for raising
issues through management
with different stakeholders.

to be
completed
April 2022.
March 2022

The current handover
process is being re-written
and will set out clear
standards for
documentation.

To establish a more effective
handover system within the
primary care team and multi
professional handover if there
are more than one agency
involved

Immediately
January
2022

Head of
Healthcare
and Manager
of Mental
Health

The referral process to mental
health needs to be properly
documented and key
information to be routinely
highlighted in all cases.

January2022 Revision of the mental
health operational policy
and procedures has been
completed.

Head of
Healthcare

Reception screening: The
Head of Healthcare to ensure
that when a second reception
screening assessment cannot
be completed there is a
mechanism in place to reoffer
and rebook the appointment, in

December
2021

All health disciplines to
attend 9am morning briefing
meetings held by Prison
regime to share issues and
agreed actions for each day
to minimise disruption to
service delivery.

New admin lead in post to
oversee admin functions to
ensure compliance with all
appointment booking and
attendance matters

Approved in January 2022
by SlaM Governance
Committee.
The revised P&P shared,
reviewed, and discussed
with all healthcare staff and
providers as well as
Governor and prison
officers.
Monthly review of clinic
attendance and actions
taken on missed
appointments. This is an
on-going process
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There are also areas of
improvement relating to
the management of risk
following a self- harm
attempt, particularly
those who overdose on
prescription medication.
Healthcare staff need to
be reminded on the
importance of removing
medication from a
prisoner’s possession in
the event of an overdose,
and subsequently
complete an inpossession m medication
risk assessment when
circumstances change in
accordance with the
NICE guideline [NG57]
‘physical health of people
in prison.’

Head of
Healthcare
and
Governor

accordance with National
Institute for Health and Care
Excellence (NICE) guideline
[NG57] ‘physical health of
people in prison.
Requesting medical attention
following an overdose: The
Head of Healthcare and
Governor to ensure that prison
and healthcare staff are aware
they must seek urgent medical
advice when a patient
discloses a deliberate overdose
and not to use a routine
mechanism such as the
healthcare ledger.
The Head of Healthcare to
urgently ensure there is a
pathway in place for healthcare
staff to follow in the aftermath
of a prisoner taking a deliberate
overdose of medication. This
must include a risk
management plan of removing
medication from a prisoner’s
possession, documenting in the
ACCT paperwork (if the person
is on an ACCT) and completing
an in-possession medication
assessment.

Immediately
– December
2021

All healthcare staff have
been reminded again to
seek medical advice and
referral to appropriate
provider as required.

Immediately
-January
2022

Briefing session to be
conducted by lead
pharmacist and head of
healthcare for all staff on the
policy and procedures of
offender healthcare inpossession medication.

July 2022

An audit of all the GP-to-GP
referrals made between

Review of evidence to
support discussions
required (staff meeting
agenda and attendance list
etc) – Dec/Jan
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The Head of Healthcare to
complete an audit on the
efficacy of the GP2GP
electronic system after three
months of its implementation
(planned for April 2022) to
ensure that this resolves the
ongoing issues relating to the
SCR’s not being available
when a patient has more than
one NHS number or alias.

April and June to ensure the
system changes are
effective in reducing
duplication, improving
accurate identification of
patient by correct name and
NHS number.
Review clinical
documentation system to
ensure patient information is
correct and if necessary,
records are merged.
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Performance Quality Assurance Committee

Item: 8
Enc: 8-8a
Date: 16/02/2022

Report Title
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality

IBR Update: Impact and Timelines
Stephen Onamade/Vicky Woods
Alison Furzer
n/a

Report Summary

This report describes the proposed new way that IBR reporting will be managed
and how the new process will impact managers, teams, and governance.

Current Scenario
The IBR (Integrated Board/Performance Report) is developed and published
monthly as a stand-alone set of metrics that is discussed at Exec and board
meetings. The monthly development and validation of this report is undertaken by
both the informatics teams and business offices to very tight deadlines. There is a
disconnect between clinical teams and the IBR process which will be addressed by
the project that is in progress.

Planned Changes and Governance arrangements
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The IBR metrics will be migrated to relevant team, directorate, and trust
wide governance group dashboards. These will be reviewed by the services
to ensure relevant and signed off by the relevant executive lead
The metrics will be managed by teams and directorates as part of the
performance framework
The relevant metrics will be displayed at the respective directorate Patient
Experience Group (PEG), Clinical Effectiveness Group (CEG) and Patient
Safety Group (PSG)
There will be a rollup of these metrics for each of the Trust PEG, CEG, PSG,
People and MHLOG groups/committees
Agreement on future metrics and design of the dashboards will be
completed in conjunction with the trust wide groups and relevant
directorate leads
Exception reporting will be fed from the team dashboards to the
directorate groups and then into the trust wide groups
Exception reporting from the trust wide groups will be taken to PQAC
Governance around adding or removing metrics from all these dashboards
will be implemented
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Impact of Changes
Teams
• Teams will have up to twenty additional metrics on team dashboards that
will need to be monitored.
• The IBR metrics will be included in the performance monitoring cycle for
each team.
• Training for managers on the use of these dashboards to manage teams
will be required
Business Offices and PMO
• There will be no need to remind teams to enter data and validate metrics
before they are published.
• The IBR will no longer be available for adhoc reporting as team dashboards
will be the single source for all reporting needs.
• Exception reporting in its current form will not be required
Informatics
The activity relating to the publishing cycle will no longer be required as metrics
and the data that is displayed at all management and committees will need to be
managed at team levels instead.
Next steps
Now that the development work is well underway a Trust wide governance group
will be set up to work through the implications for directorates and roll out plans.
Project Timelines
(Please see appendix for project timelines)
Reason for bringing
paper to the committee
Recommendation

For information

Link to trust strategy

Supports various elements of trust strategy including building block 7- increasing
digital and remote service delivery

Link to Board Assurance
Framework

Consideration will be given to whether a BAF KPI dashboard is created as part of
this project

Implications in the
report in relation to:
Quality

Dashboard work and IBR proposals will support quality agenda.
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Finances
Equality analysis
Service user/carer/staff
engagement

This project will improve oversight of our services and therefore improve quality of
care
The standardisation of data sets will pave the way for better understanding of the
equality of.
Staff across the Trust have been involved in various aspects of the development of
this proposal.
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Appendix 1
IBR Dashboard Project
6 Months Timeline (Jan – June 2022)
Phase II & III to March

Phase I Jan to Feb 2022

•
•

•

•

•

•

Metrics to be moved to team dashboards identified
o Metrics matched to teams (80% completed)
Rationalisation of metrics
o Remove irrelevant metrics
o Standardise metrics across all teams
o Identify quality metrics
Creating the committee dashboards
o Design drafts prepared
o Requirements gathered from committees
o Design and navigation agreed
Governance process agreed
o Metric inclusion and exclusion process
drafted and agreed
o Committee governance process drafted and
agreed
Communication plan drafted
o Agent identified
o Plan agreed
Project Progress update to PQAC

•

•
•
•

Dashboards Implemented
o IBR metrics included Team Performance
dashboard
o Communication sent and resent
o Committee Dashboards in view
Pilot of committee dashboards
Pilot of governance activity
Project Progress update to PQAC

Phase IV – April – June 2022

•

Non- Rio Metric development
o Complete the development and
integration of non-Rio metrics
like vacancy rates, sickness etc

•

Development of quality metrics
o Specific metrics relating to new
CQUIN’s
o Additional quality metrics
developed
Commentary and exception reporting
deployed
o Requirements identified
o System and process
implemented
Stand down old IBR reports
Product support deployed
Project Progress update to PQAC

•

•
•
•
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Integrated Performance Report(IPR) - January 2022
S.No

1

Committee

Regulatory

Reported

Monthly

Origin

Metric
Code

NHSI / NHSE 10766

View from our regulators

Target

Jan-22

Comments - January 2022

Variance

Assurance

Comments - January 2022

Variance

Assurance

Comments - January 2022

Variance

Assurance

Variance

Assurance

NHS Improvement - Segment
1

2

Regulatory

N/A

CQC

10348

CQC Rating
Green

S.No

Committee

Reported

Origin

Metric
Code

Caring - Staff involve and treat people with kindness, dignity
and respect

Target

Jan-22

3

Quality

Monthly

DoH

10341

4 Must Dos - Treated with dignity and respect

>90%

96.6%

4

Quality

Monthly

Trust

10798

Friends/relatives involved in care and treatment

>90%

86.3%

5

Quality

Monthly

Trust
(Internal)

10338

Helped as a result of the care and treatment they have
received

>90%

87.9%

6

Quality

Monthly

Trust

11699

FFT; overall patient experience - % "Good" and "Very good"
responses (ACS and CYP)

>95%

89.1%

7

Quality

Monthly

Trust

11700

FFT; overall patient experience - % "Poor" and "Very poor"
responses (ACS and CYP)

<5%

3.3%

8

Quality

Monthly

Trust

11703

FFT; overall patient experience - % "Good" and "Very good"
responses (MH and CAMHS)

>90%

70.3%

9

Quality

Monthly

Trust

11702

FFT; overall patient experience - % "Poor" and "Very poor"
responses (MH and CAMHS)

<10%

12.6%

Responsive - People get the treatment and care they need at
the right time, without excessive delay and services are
organised so that they meet people's needs

Target

S.No

Committee

Reported

Origin

Jan-22

10

Quality

Monthly

NHSE

10768

Delayed Transfers of Care

<7.5%

4.9%

11

Quality

Monthly

NHSI

11128

6 Week Wait for Audiology Diagnostic Assessment (DM01
Monthly)

>99%

100.0%

12

Quality

Monthly

Trust
(Internal)

11403

Performance against 30 working day target for Responding to
complaints

>80%

27.0%

13

Quality

Monthly

Trust
(Internal)

11404

Performance against outstanding actions identified from
Complaints

>90%

68.3%

14

Quality

Monthly

Trust
(Internal)

10335

4 Must Dos - Enough information about care and treatment

>90%

89.1%

15

Quality

Monthly

Trust
(Internal)

10336

4 Must Dos - Involved in decisions about care and treatment

>90%

93.0%

16

Quality

Monthly

DoH

11268

Referral to Treatment - Allied Health Professionals (New - April
2018)

>95%

93.2%

17

Quality

Monthly

DoH

10024

Referral to treatment for Psychological Therapies (PT)

>95%

73.7%

18

Quality

Monthly

NHSI

10248

Referral to treatment for incomplete care pathways

>92%

88.4%

19

Quality

Monthly

Trust / CYP 11397

Percentage of patients seen within 12 months for an initial
Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) Appointment

TBC

53.4% Variance, assurance graphs and commentary to be provided at a
later date.

20

Quality

Monthly

Trust / CYP 11503

Percentage of patients seen within 12 weeks for an Initial
CAMHS Appointment

TBC

77.4% Variance, assurance graphs and commentary to be provided at a
later date.

21

Quality

Monthly

Trust / CYP 11505

Percentage of patients seen within 18 weeks for a second
CAMHS Appointment

TBC

70.1% Variance, assurance graphs and commentary to be provided at a
later date.

S.No

Committee

Reported

Origin

Metric
Code

22

Quality

Monthly

NHSI

10314

Safe - People are protected from abuse and avoidable harm.
People are protected from physical, sexual, mental or
psychological, financial, institutional or discriminatory abuse
and neglect
CPA 7 Day follow up (Discharge from Inpatient setting)

23

Quality

Monthly

NHSE

11519

24

Quality

Monthly

NHSE

25

Quality

Monthly

26

Quality

27

Target

Jan-22

Comments - January 2022

>95%

100.0%

CQUIN-72 Hour Post Discharge Follow Up

80%

95.7%

11520

72 Hour Post Discharge Follow Up (Self Harm)

100%

100.0%

Trust
(Internal)

10342

Adult Acute Bed occupancy (excluding leave)

<95%

92.5%

Monthly

Trust
(Internal)

10463

OPMH Acute Bed occupancy (excluding leave)

<95%

71.9%

Quality

Monthly

NHSI / CQC 10869

Crisis Home Treatment Team Gatekeeping - Oct 2017 onwards

>95%

82.0% Final figures after the 11th of the month.

28

Quality

Monthly

NHSE

10446

Prisons (Number of Secondary Screens Completed in the First
72 Hours against Number of Receptions)

>95%

95.0% December 2021 figure.

30

Quality

Monthly

Trust
(Internal)

10355

No of incidents (1-3)

N/A

955

31

Quality

Monthly

Trust
(Internal)

10356

No of Serious incidents (4-5) (excluding pressure ulcers)

N/A

7

32

Quality

Monthly

Trust
(Internal)

10447

Incidents of category 3 and 4 Pressure Ulcers

N/A

28
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Integrated Performance Report(IPR) - January 2022
33

S.No

Quality

Committee

Monthly

Reported

NHSE

Origin

10448

Medication errors

Metric
Code

N/A

Effective - People's care, treatment and support achieves
good outcomes, promotes a good quality of life and is based
on the best available evidence

Target

67

Jan-22

Comments - January 2022

37

Quality

Monthly

NHSI

10915

Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP) - 2 Week Waiting Times
(Waiting)

>56%

100.0% Final position after the 14th of the month

38

Quality

Monthly

NHSI

10916

Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP) - 2 Week Waiting Times
(Seen)

>56%

76.9% Final position after the 14th of the month

39

Quality

Monthly

Trust
(Internal)

10645

% Estimated Date of Discharge (inpatient adult community
services) entered within 24 hours

>90%

96.2%

40

Quality

Monthly

NHSI

11314

Inappropriate out-of-area placements for adult mental health
services.

42

Quality

Monthly

DoH

10323

Ensure patients detained under the MHA are provided with
info as stated-recorded on Rio (S132)

>100%

97.9% Trust: = 143 / 146 (97.9%)

43

Quality

Monthly

DoH

10325

Ensure consent to treatment is obtained from clients assessed
and detained under the MHA (S58)

>100%

66.7% Trust: 10/15 (66.7%). There are five CTT breaches January 2022,
all community clients; this is a new addition to the audit which
has not previously been included.

44

Quality

Monthly

NHSI

11190

Data Quality Maturity Index DQMI - MHSDS Completeness

>95%

93.5% Published by NHS Digital two months in arrears. September 2021
DQMI MHSDS Score. Published 22/12/2021 - DQMI version 48.

45

Quality

Monthly

Trust

10322

MH CPA Service user reviews every 6 months

>95%

92.6%

46

Quality

Monthly

Trust

10102

CPA formal review within 12 mths

>95%

99.7%

47

Quality

Monthly

Trust / NHSI 10359

Prisons: % of clients with a care plan set up within 2 weeks of
assessment

>95%

90.0% December 2021 figure. Current figures after the 14th of the
month.

Va ri a ti on

Common
Ca us e - No
s i gni fi ca nt
cha nge
Performa nce
va ri es from
month to
month wi th
no
di s cerni bl e
pa ttern

Speci a l Ca us e of concerni ng
na ture or hi gher pres s ure
due to (H)i gher or (L)ower
va l ues
Performa nce
Performa nce
deteri ora ti ng deteri ora ti ng
over ti me, i n
over ti me, i n
thi s ca s e a
thi s ca s e a
l ow number
hi gh number
i s good
i s good
performa nce
performa nce

Rules

Assurance

Speci a l Ca us e of i mprovi ng
na ture or l ower pres s ure due to
(H)i gher or (L)ower va l ues
Performa nce
Performa nce
i mprovi ng
i mprovi ng over
over ti me, i n
ti me, i n thi s
thi s ca s e a
ca s e a l ow
hi gh number
number i s good
i s good
performa nce
performa nce

Va ri a ti on
i ndi ca tes
Va ri a ti on
i ncons i s tentl y
i ndi ca tes
pa s s i ng or
cons i s tentl y
fa l l i ng s hort (P)pa s s i ng the
of the ta rget
ta rget

N/A

Va ri a ti on
i ndi ca tes
cons i s tentl y
(F)a l l i ng s hort
of the ta rget

Variance

Assurance

255 (265) Published by NHS Digital two months in arrears. October 2021
figure - Published 18th January 2021. Inappropriate beddays(Total OAP bed-days)

Performance is reviewed over the previous 6 months. For Variance - Special cause is determined if trend overall is improving or
deteriorating. If there is no obvious trend then common cause is applied. For Assurance the metric must have failed to reach
target for at least 4 of the last 6 months and is still failing, or to have failed to reach target 5 out of the last 6 months to be
considered as a fail.
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NHS OVERSIGHT FRAMEWORK DASHBOARD
February 2022 - Reporting January 2022 Activity
For further information pertaining to each of these measures, click here:

Link to NHS Oversight Framework 2020/21

Domain

Director

Metric

Metric
Number

NHSI Method of Current
Collection
Reporting

Matches Local Target
Reporting?

Jan-22

Operational
Performance

Iain Dimond

Referral to treatment for incomplete care pathways

10248

NHSI

IBR

Yes

90%

88.4%

Operational
Performance

Iain Dimond

Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP) - 2 Week Waiting
Times Monitoring (Waiting)

10915

MHSDS / UNIFY2 IBR

Yes

>=56%

100.0%

Final position after the 14th of the month

Operational
Performance

Iain Dimond

Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP) - 2 Week Waiting
Times Monitoring (Seen)

10916

MHSDS / UNIFY2 IBR

Yes

>=56%

76.9%

Final position after the 14th of the month

Operational
Performance

Iain Dimond

IAPT - % completing treatment

10652
(IAPTUS)

IAPT MDS

IAPT

Yes

50%

55.7%

Operational
Performance

Iain Dimond

IAPT Waiting Times - 18 weeks

10534
(IAPTUS)

IAPT MDS

IAPT

Yes

95%

99.0%

Operational
Performance

Iain Dimond

IAPT Waiting Times - 6 weeks

10533
(IAPTUS)

IAPT MDS

IAPT

Yes

75%

61.8%

Operational
Performance

Iain Dimond

Maximum 6-week wait for Diagnostic Procedures
(Audiology)

11128

Unify2

DM01

Yes

99%

100.0%

Operational
Performance

Iain Dimond

MHSDS Completeness - Data Quality Maturity Index
DQMI

11190

MHSDS / UNIFY2 MHSDS

No

95%

93.5%

Published by NHS Digital two months in arrears. September
2021 DQMI MHSDS Score. Published 22/12/2021 - DQMI
version 48.

Operational
Performance

Iain Dimond

Inappropriate out-of-area placements for adult mental 11314
health services.

MHSDS / UNIFY2 NHS Digital

No

N/A

255 (265)

Published by NHS Digital two months in arrears. October
2021 figure - Published 18th January 2021. Inappropriate
bed-days(Total OAP bed-days)

Quality of Care

Iain Dimond

Admissions to adult wards of under 16s

10664

NHS Digital

Local
Reporting

Yes

0

0

Quality of Care

Iain Dimond

CPA 7 day follow-up

10314

HSCIC

IBR

Yes

95%

100.0%

Quality of Care

Jane Wells

CAS alerts outstanding

10660

NRLS

Internal

N/A

N/A

100.0%

Quality of Care

Jane Wells

Never Events

10659

NHSE

Internal

N/A

0

0

Quality of Care

Jane Wells

Under-reporting of Patient Safety Incidents

10654

NRLS

IBR

Yes

N/A

8.3%

Quality of Care

Neil Springham

FFT; overall patient experience - % "Good" and "Very
good" responses (ACS and CYP)

11699

NHSE

IBR

Yes

TBD

89.1%

Quality of Care

Neil Springham

FFT; overall patient experience - % "Good" and "Very
good" responses (MH and CAMHS)

11703

NHSE

IBR

Yes

TBD

70.3%

Quality of Care

Neil Springham

Complaints

10528

NHS Digital

IBR

Yes

N/A

24

Variation

Common
Cause - No
significant
change
Performance
varies from
month to
month with
no
discernible
pattern

Special Cause of concerning
nature or higher pressure
due to (H)igher or (L)ower
values
Performance Performance
deteriorating deteriorating
over time, in over time, in
this case a
this case a
low number
high number
is good
is good
performance performance

Assurance

Variation
indicates
Variation
Variation
inconsistently
indicates
indicates
passing
or
consistently
consistently
Special Cause of improving
nature or lower pressure due to falling short (P)passing the (F)alling short
of the target
target
of the target
(H)igher or (L)ower values
Performance
Performance
improving
improving over
over time, in
time, in this
this case a
case a low
high number
number is good
is good
performance
performance

Comment

1 CAS alert: response not required

Rules
Performance is reviewed over the previous 6 months. For Variance - Special cause is determined if trend overall is improving or deteriorating. If there is no obvious
trend then common cause is applied. For Assurance the metric must have failed to reach target for at least 4 of the last 6 months and is still failing, or to have failed to
reach target 5 out of the last 6 months to be considered as a fail.

Variance

Assurance
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Operational Performance Dashboard
Operational Delivery Update

Operational Delivery Update
31st January 2022
Friday 10th April 2020

For further information please contact Informatics
Oxl-tr.informatics@nhs.net
1
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Staffing Trust-wide Position as of 31st January 2022
Trust Level Absence Data

Trust

140
120
100
80
60
40
20

Jan-22

Dec-21

Nov-21

Oct-21

Sep-21

Aug-21

Jul-21

Jun-21

May-21

Apr-21

Mar-21

Feb-21

Jan-21

0

A total of 36 staff across the Trust were absent due to Covid 19 as at 31st January, a significant drop from 110 in December. 18 people were COVID positive, 4 staff members
were absent as a result of post isolation sickness and 9 due to Long Covid. Figures for 3rd January show 37 staff are currently absent , 16 of whom have tested positive.
Source: ESR and Q&A
2
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Covid 19 - Inpatient Testing
Patients as at 31st January 2022

Directorate
Bexley

Number of
patients Tested
Positive
(Cumulative)

Bromley

Number of patients
currently Covid-19
Positive on the ward
(31/01/2022)
Manual Data

Number of patients
swabbed waiting Number of Patients Number of Deaths
for results (as at
who Tested Positive on Wards (as at
31/01/2022)
in January
31/01/2022)

Number of patients
currently Covid-19
Positive on the ward
(31/01/2022)
RIO Data

99

17

11

0

2

2

79

15

14

0

3

3

161

61

27

0

3

3

55

37

25

0

9

9

394

130

77

0

17

17

Greenwich
Forensics
Total

77 patients tested positive during January. There are currently 13 positive patients on our wards

Source: Daily Sitrep and Q&A
3
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Covid-19 Dashboard – PPE Risks
As of 31st January 2022
Central PPE Stockholding Risk Ratings

3M 1873 FFP3 Face Masks

Reasonable stock level given the past three
months supply/demand figures.

3M 9330+ FFP3 Face Masks

Good stock levels currently with no foreseen
supply demand issues.

FFP3 HY 9632 Mask with Valve

Large stock levels with no foreseen
supply/demand issues currently.

Gloves XL

Sufficient volume currently in stock

Gloves L

Sufficient volume currently in stock

Gloves M

High volume currently in stock

Gloves S

High volume currently in stock

Gowns

Sufficient volume of stock available in both
non sterile and sterile with no foreseen
supply/demand issues currently.

Aprons

High volume currently in stock

Hand Sanitiser

High volumes of this item, in selected sizes

Goggles

Sufficient volume currently in stock

Face Visors

High Volume currently in Stock

Clinical Waste Bags

High Volume currently in Stock

Swabs

Sufficient quantity of swabs are available for
PCR testing.

Universal Wipes

Very High Volume currently in Stock

The fuel crisis has had no impact on deliveries.

Source: Emergency Planning

4
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Bed Availability & Testing by Ward as of 31st January 2022
Norman and Maryon remain closed.

Bexley

Bromley

Greenwich

Forensic

Total

Total number of patients on the ward
EXC LEAVE

% Occupancy

Available Beds EXC LEAVE

Number of patients currently Covid-19
positive and on the ward

15

14

93%

1

0

Holbrook

22

14

64%

8

0

Lesney

20

19

95%

1

0

MK

Millbrook

20

19

95%

1

2

MEAD

Meadowview

30

23

77%

7

0

AV2

Betts

18

18

100%

0

0

AV1

Goddington

16

16

100%

0

2

ME2

Norman

0

0

0%

0

0

WardCode

Ward

BFH

Barefoot Lodge

HOL
LES

Ward Size
(number of beds)

ELD

Scadbury

22

17

77%

5

1

ATLHSE

Atlas House

11

6

55%

5

0

GC

Maryon

0

0

0%

0

0

GD

Shrewsbury

20

21

105%

0

0

GE

Avery

20

20

100%

0

0

PRO

Oaktree Lodge

17

17

100%

0

2

tarn

The Tarn

16

12

75%

4

0

GR01

Shepherdsleas

19

16

84%

3

1

GICU

Eltham Community Health

40

18

45%

22

0

BIR

Birchwood

12

11

92%

1

0

BG

Burgess

17

15

88%

2

9

CN

Crofton

18

14

78%

4

0

DN

Danson

17

16

94%

1

0

GRW

Greenwood

16

14

88%

2

0

HAZ

Hazelwood

15

12

80%

3

0

HC

Heath

16

12

75%

4

0

FJOY

Joydens

14

11

79%

3

0

431

355

82%

77

17

Millbrook, Shrewsbury, Goddington,
Holbrook and Scadbury remain closed to
new admissions.
Shepherdleas is currently closed for new
admissions, but is anticipated to open
for admissions on the 26th January 2022.

5
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Out of Area Bed Usage as of 31st January 2022
Other OAPs
Female PICU

Bexley
Bromley
Greenwich
Other *
Total

Male PICU

1
3
2

1

1
1

6

1

2

Hayes Grove Only *

Patient Discharged
during the
month_January

5
2
1

2
0
3

8

5

Other
Total

Male Acute

Total

1
1

1
4
5
0
10

Male Acute

Patient still on the
ward

Bexley
Bromley
Greenwich

Female Acute

Note: Hayes Grove, Wickham Ward is 9 bedded and all males.

Source: Bed Management

6
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Ward Admissions & Discharges as of 31st January 2022

Looking at the 7 day rolling average we can see that, despite a spike in discharges at the start of the pandemic, the average daily admissions and discharges has dropped for
Mental Health wards but has actually increased slightly in our Community Health Wards. Data for the last two weeks suggests this pattern is starting to change which we can
analyse further next month.
Source: Rio Data

7
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Referral Data as of 31st January 2022
Mental Health Referrals

Community Health Referrals

Using a 7 day rolling average we can see that the average number of referrals received has dropped during the pandemic while the gap between the number of those
referrals accepted by the teams has narrowed suggesting that while the number of referrals has reduced the appropriateness of them has improved.
Source: RIO Data Please note there can be a time lag for when a referral is accepted
8
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Time from Referral to 1st Appointment as of 31st January 2022

Source: RIO Data
9
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Referral to Treatment as of 31st January 2022

Source: RIO Data
10
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Metric 10768 Delayed Transfers of Care as at 31st January 2022

Source: Rio Data

11
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Metric 10314 – CPA 7 Day Follow Up as at 31st January 2022

Source: RIO Data
12

153

Metric 11520 –72 Hour Follow Up as at 31st January 2022

Source: RIO Data
13
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Metric 10322 – CPA Service reviews every 6 months as at 31st January 2022

Source: RIO Data
14
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Contact Types as of 31st January 2022

IAPT Contact Type
70%
60%
Axis Title

50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Telephone
Video call
Silvercloud
Other
Face to Face

The consultation medium options in Rio were amended on 7 May 2020 to consolidate the options available to staff. The field is also now compulsory to ensure we collect
richer data on how appointments are being delivered. Other includes SMS and email. Silvercloud is an online self-help package with a therapist who communicates via
messaging with the client for the course of the treatment. There is has been a steady increase in the % of face to face contacts across the Trust with the exception of IAPT
where there have been no face to face contact since the start of the pandemic the service is using other mediums to meet with clients particularly phone and video calls.

Source: RIO Data
15
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Contact Types as of 31th January 2022

Source: RIO Data
16
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Cancelled Appointments – as at 31st January 2022

The % change measures the change from 20th December 2020 to 30th January 2022

Source: RIO Data
17
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Attend Anywhere Data as at 31st January 2022

Attend Anywhere Data
2500
2000
1500
1000
500
0

No. of Clinicians who ran a video consultation

No. of Consultation Hours

No. of Consultations

18
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Formal and In-Formal in-patients as at 31st January 2022
Adult Acute Wards

Data Source RIO

19
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Formal and In-Formal in-patients as at 31st January 2022
OPMH Acute

Holbrook

Barefoot Lodge

Data Source RIO

20
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National, Regional and Local Guidance and Alerts 31st January 2022
National, Regional and Local Guidance Notes and Alerts

Visiting Healthcare Inpatient settings guidance.
Visiting Healthcare Inpatient settings guidance Flow chart tool
Additional advice for patients who have reduced immune systems
Email regarding Covid virtual wards and Oximetry at home data
Declaration of incidents across the NHS
UKHSA Briefing Note regarding Human cases of Asian Avian Flu
Updated HAS guidance to Temporarily suspend PCR testing the lateral flow is positive.
New NHS England and NHS Improvement /Independent sector contract for Q4 2021/22
C-19 Clinical Update email.
JCVI guidance on booster vaccines for 12/17 year olds
Funding arrangements for palliative Care
Staffing support for covid medicine delivery units
Community services prioritisation framework
Letter ensuring the delivery of annual health checks for people with severe MH and LD
Urgent one-off addition to the acute daily discharge situation letter
Community Services Prioritisation Framework
C-19 Vaccines: Clinical Update - 14 January 2022
Updated UK Health Security Agency guidance - Isolation
C-19 Vaccines: Weekly Workforce & Training Update – 14 Jan 2022
Vaccination as a Condition of Deployment for HCA
Staff FAQ
Decision Making Support tool for managing COVID 19 contacts and closed beds
999 Mental Health Support lines
SEL Covid-19 Vaccination Programme Dashboard
Email regarding covid-19 clinical update
Supporting patients of all ages who are unwell with coronavirus (COVID-19) in mental health, learning disability, autism, dementia and specialist inpatient
facilities
Patient Safety updates.
London region guidance on checking vaccine certification as part of VCOD process

21
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National, Regional and Local Guidance and Alerts 31st January 2022

National, Regional and Local Guidance Notes and Alerts

Reservist Phase 3 national rollout letter
To specialist (hospital) teams: Advice to contact patients who are immunosuppressed to receive 3rd primary and booster dose
Daily Update NBS Booster Advanced Bookings - Standing down of daily Booster cascade from 25 January 2022
Overseas validation service for HCW
COVID 19 publications update – at risk children 5-11 years of age
Clinical update for Covid-19

22
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HBPoS performace data
Number of Referrals
Number of Admissions
Number of formal patients
Number of Informal patients
Number of breaches

Feb-21
32
16
11
5
5

Mar-21
39
19
15
4
7

Apr-21
43
27
24
3
3

May-21
44
30
25
5
4

Jun-21
41
23
21
2
4

Jul-21
57
28
27
1
3

Aug-21
36
25
15
7
7

Sep-21
38
20
17
3
4

Oct-21
33
20
17
3
2

Nov-21
40
19
17
2
6

Dec-21
28
18
16
2
2

Jan-22
39
17
13
4
5

PQUAC HBPoS Report Jan 22
Number of Referrals

Number of Admissions

Number of formal patients

Number of Informal patients

Number of breaches

57

43

44
41

39

36

40

38

39

33

32

30

28

27
23
19
16

24

25

28
25

27

20

20

19

18

17

16

21
15

15

17

17

13

11
5
Feb-21

7
Mar-21

7
3
Apr-21

4

4

May-21

Jun-21

3
Jul-21

4
Aug-21

17

Sep-21

6
2
Oct-21

Nov-21

5
2
Dec-21

Jan-22
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022
Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

Item
Enclosure

12
12a&b

Business Committee (18th January and 15th February 2022 Committee
minutes)
Alex Owoo – AD Financial Management & Planning
Azara Mukhtar – Director of Finance
N/A

What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

This paper sets out the discussions that took place at the Business
Committee meetings in January and February 2022. It is intended to
update the Board and highlight issues for decision.

What risks/issues in the
report need to be
noted or acted upon?

1. The Provision of a Forensic Mental Health Supported Housing
Scheme – TILT. The Executive recommended this contract award
to the Business Committee who reviewed this Contract award and
is recommending this award for approval by the Board. Due to
commercial confidentiality, it will be discussed in part II of the
Board meeting.
2. The draft operational plan is included and the Board is asked to
delegate responsibility to the Business Committee for final sign off.
Business Committee

Where has this report
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
terms/acronyms used
in the report

N/A
IRC = Immigration Removal Centre
HCA = Healthcare Assistants
PCs = Provider Collaboratives
CC = Complex Care
CCG = Clinical Commissioning Group
PICU Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit
UEA = Urgent Emergency Admission
ICS = Integrated Care System
H2 = Half Two
CIP = Cost Improvement programme
NHSI = NHS Improvement
SWLStG = South West London and St Georges
AFC = Agenda for Change
SOF = System Oversight Framework
RBG = Royal Borough of Greenwich
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LGT = Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust
EPC = Extra package of care
PO = Purchase order
SLP = South London Partnership
NED = Non-Executive Director
CQC = Care Quality Commission
SLAM = South London and Maudsley NHS FT
GP = General Practitioner
CNWL = Central and North West London NHS FT
MHIS Mental Health Investment Standard
Link to trust strategy
Link to Board
Assurance Framework

The financial position underpins all the Trust priorities and building
blocks but more importantly building block 8 (Making best use of
resources) in the Trust strategy.
The Business Committee reviewed and approved recommendations for
the 6 live risks. There are a number of amendments requested. These will
be made and tabled at the August Committee for ratification.
•
•
•
•
•
•

Please summarise
implications for:
Quality

Finances

Equality analysis

1177 – Financial sustainability of the Trust in the medium/long
term
1292 – Funding of AFC uplift for staff employed under LA contracts
1606 – Bed management - key cost driver
1914 – Local Authority contracts for integrated and embedded
services
1984 - SE London ICS Financial risk (Revenue & Capital)
1985 - Delivery of Financial Plan 2021/22

The report highlights the potential indirect impact on the delivery of
quality resulting from unsustainable financial performance. We have
introduced a QIA process that will ensure all the quality related
implications are considered and our risk register review also takes this
into account.
The report highlights our year-on-year reliance on non-recurrent
measures to meet our planned financial target. This is not sustainable;
we need to focus on delivering sustainable recurrent cost improvement
plans and increasing contributions from our service portfolio in order to
ensure that both our revenue and planned capital investment
programmes can be afforded. This impacts on all the 3 priority areas as
well as the 8 building blocks in the Trust strategy.
The report includes descriptions of risks relating to the financials of
workforce department as well as the cost of embedding Building a
Fairer Oxleas
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Service users/
carers/staff

The in-year positions reported are historical and as such have already
impacted on services and staff. The planning for H2 and financial
sustainability will consider activity, workforce and quality impacts
including costs and savings associated with strategic improvements to
staff recruitment and retention, service delivery and quality, accessibility
and responsiveness of models of care for service users and carers.

Executive Summary

Financial Performance to M10 (January 2022)

The Trust delivered a breakeven position before profit on asset sales at the end
of January 2022 (M10). Income was based on the H2 agreed allocation which
takes into account inflationary uplift for pay-award as well as System and Covid
top-up of circa £7.6m (£2.5m more than the revised H1 allocation). We have
continued to defer funding related to new programmes that are yet to be
recruited into. There is on-going dialogue with commissioners on how to carry
these into 2022/23.
Key highlights: • Overall, income reported a £14.8m under-achievement at the end of
M10. The under-achievement is matched by equal and opposite
underspend in both pay and non-pay spend categories. The key drivers
for the adverse variance are: £3.6m returned to the ICS under the
System & Covid top-up policy relating to H1, deferral of SLP
reinvestment reserves in the Provider Collaboratives (PCs) and Complex
care (CC) programmes (£c. 3.3m YTD); deferral of 2021/22 new monies
underspend in H1 earmarked for programmes in Place c.£1.3m as well
as the deferral of new funding budget for posts yet to be recruited into.
There is a confirmation that underspends might be clawed back, this is
the reason for deferring it instead of reporting it within the position. The
PCs and CC deferrals will form part of the 3-way SLP split at the end of
the financial year. In line with previous years, this reserve is earmarked
for programmes that will improve patient care and pathways.
•

Pay spend reported a £4.7m YTD underspend. The underspend position
is largely due to vacancies from both existing establishment and the new
monies (2021/22 MHIS, SDF and SR). The pay run rate changed in M10
in line with expectation/forecast (£500k extra spend compared to M9).
The increase reflected recruitment into the new monies posts as well
the increased bank staff payment scheme which was enacted during the
Christmas break, and the outbreak of the Omicron variant, through to
the end of January. Pay spend includes £400k covid related spend in
M10 of which 93% was cover for staff off sick or isolating. As of 7th
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January, we had 128 staff who were absent from duty, this figure fell
significantly by the end of January.
•

Non-pay reported £10.4m underspend at the end of M10. The position
is net of the cost pressure presented by the continuous reliance on
private beds. At the end of M10, the total spend on private beds was
circa £5.2m (inclusive of spend at Hayes Grove – Priory for acute beds).
Overall, we saw reductions in acute and male PICU UEAs whereas
female PICU reported an increase from last month. This is a recovery
position during January compared to prior month when issues of
seclusions were exacerbated by covid outbreaks in the wards. The
increased non-pay run rate is largely driven by spend in Provider
Collaboratives which is offset by income.

•

The agreed H2 ICS system allocation has in it an indicative 3% CIP
requirement. The Trust will continue to rely on non-recurrent measures
to meet this target.

•

Agency spend was 42.0% below the NHSI assigned threshold. An
improvement to prior month. The lowest reported position in the last 18
months. We do, however, expect temporary staffing overall to increase
as we address waiting list issues and recruit temporarily, where possible,
to the new funding stream posts pending permanent recruitment.

Bids and Tenders
Wandsworth: The Committee was updated on the progress made on the
transfer of service from SLAM to Oxleas at the Wandsworth prisons.
Kent Mobilisation: The Committee discussed and reviewed the update on
contract mobilisation for Lots 1 & 2 of the Kent contract which is due to
start 1st April 2022. An update was provided to the Committee on the
TUPE transfer of the Cookham Wood service to CNWL.
Greenwich integrated Therapies Tender: The Committee heard we have
been successful in progressing to the next stage of this bid.
Heathrow IRC: The Committee heard we were not successful in the
Heathrow IRC bid. The preferred bidder was “Practice Plus Group Health
and Rehabilitation Services Limited”.
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Bromley Sexual Health Service: The Committee was appraised of the new
opportunity that the Executive is favour of exploring.
Bridges Healthcare Service Ltd update
The Committee received an update on the above debt and the latest
actions taken to retrieve the debt. The Executive took away an action to
explore the various options presented to the Committee.
SEL ICS Finance update
The Committee noted the update on the M9 ICS finance update. Notable
movements in the ICS position were discussed.
Operational Planning update 2022/23
The Committee reviewed the 2022/23 planning papers and discussed the
key planning assumptions including the level of CIP requirement for
2022/23. Refer to appendix 12b for further details on planning and the
governance requirements.
SEL Recovery Plan
The Committee noted the work being done by PA Consulting on the SEL
recovery plan. They also heard EY will be carrying out support for ICS
planning including specific help on workforce and elective recovery
planning and organisational and system assurance of 2022/23 plans.
Risk Register
The Committee reviewed and discussed changes to its risk register and
approved all the changes.
Contract award – Provision of a Forensic MH Supported Housing Scheme.
The Committee reviewed and has made a recommendation to the Board
for the approval of this contract.
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Financial Overview
170

ICS
plan

H2 Funding is based on 2021/22 H1 funding, but adjusted for a higher efficiency requirement, capacity funding and inflationary impacts. The
agreed bottom line for the Trust is a breakeven position with a delivery of 3% non recurrent CIP.
The Trust delivered a breakeven position before profit on asset sales at the end of January 2022 (M10). Income was based on the H2 agreed
allocation which takes into account inflationary uplift for pay-award as well as System and Covid top-up of circa £7.6m (£2.5m more than the
revised H1 allocation). We have continued to defer funding related to new programmes that are yet to be recruited into. There is on-going
dialogue with commissioners on how to carry these into 2022/23.

M10
YTD

Key highlights: • Overall, income reported a £14.8m under-achievement at the end of M10. The under-achievement is matched by equal and opposite
underspend in both pay and non-pay spend categories. The key drivers for the adverse variance are: £3.6m returned to the ICS under the
System & Covid top-up policy relating to H1, deferral of SLP reinvestment reserves in the Provider Collaboratives (PCs) and Complex care
(CC) programmes (£c. 3.3m YTD); deferral of 2021/22 new monies underspend in H1 earmarked for programmes in Place c.£1.3m as well
as the deferral of new funding budget for posts yet to be recruited into. There is a confirmation that underspends might be clawed back, this
is the reason for deferring it instead of reporting it within the position. The PCs and CC deferrals will form part of the 3-way SLP split at the
end of the financial year. In line with previous years, this reserve is earmarked for programmes that will improve patient care and pathways.
• Pay spend reported a £4.7m YTD underspend. The underspend position is largely due to vacancies from both existing establishment and the
new monies (2021/22 MHIS, SDF and SR). The pay run rate changed in M10 in line with expectation/forecast (£500k extra spend compared
to M9). The increase reflected recruitment into the new monies posts as well the increased bank staff payment scheme which was enacted
during the Christmas break, and the outbreak of the Omicron variant, through to the end of January. Pay spend includes £400k covid related
spend in M10 of which 93% was cover for staff off sick or isolating. As of 7th January, we had 128 staff who were absent from duty, this
figure fell significantly by the end of January.
• Non-pay reported £10.4m underspend at the end of M10. The position is net of the cost pressure presented by the continuous reliance on
private beds. At the end of M10, the total spend on private beds was circa £5.2m (inclusive of spend at Hayes Grove – Priory for acute
beds). Overall, we saw reductions in acute and male PICU UEAs whereas female PICU reported an increase from last month. This is a
recovery position during January compared to prior month when issues of seclusions were exacerbated by covid outbreaks in the wards. The
increased non-pay run rate is largely driven by spend in Provider Collaboratives which is offset by income.
• The agreed H2 ICS system allocation has in it an indicative 3% CIP requirement. The Trust will continue to rely on non-recurrent measures
to meet this target.
• Agency spend was 42.0% below the NHSI assigned threshold. An improvement to prior month. The lowest reported position in the last 18
months. We do, however, expect temporary staffing overall to increase as we address waiting list issues and recruit temporarily, where
2
possible, to the new funding stream posts pending permanent recruitment.
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Financial

CIPs

Risks

The Trust will continue to pursue transformational programmes. The assigned CIP requirement for the second half of the year is £4.9m (3%
of expenditure baseline) target. We expect to deliver this CIP non recurrently through vacancies as minimal schemes have been identified
to date.
For the SEL ICS to deliver a breakeven plan each organisation has made assumptions on the requirement for additional unidentified
efficiencies in H2, on top of planned efficiencies. This position may be partially mitigated by the opportunity for receipt of Elective Recovery
Fund (ERF) income above our assumed ERF income levels and planned costs of activity delivery.
Looking ahead – Initial modelling (within ICS) for 2022/23 indicates a potential savings requirement over and above 1.1% national
efficiency. Compared to 2021/22 H2 x 2, there is a £37.9m reduction in funding (this is before ERF). This is driven by the national
“convergence adjustment” of £46.5m to SEL ICS.

Capital

The Trust negotiated a capital allocation £16.99m from SEL ICS for 2021/22, however the total planned expenditure was £17.44m offset by
£0.45m profit on the sale of asset of Murchison Avenue. YTD expenditure for January was £3.7m behind plan. The Trust has also secured
an additional £0.8m of Unified Tech funding towards improving cyber security and frontline digitalisation. A number of additional schemes
such as upgrading the Trust’s WiFi and network infrastructure, have been identified which can be transacted within the current financial year
to utilise any remaining underspends, however the SEL ICS have asked the Trust whether any of its capital allocation for 2021/22 could be
returned and reassigned to other SEL providers.
The Trust has been involved in discussions with its SEL ICS partners with regards to how future capital allocations will be shared across the
ICS. It has been agreed that Asset Value (NBV) will form the basis of next year’s allocation, with 10% of funding set aside to establish a
system wide strategic fund. The Trust has received formal notification of its budget for next year that its capital allocation will be £11m with
an additional £4m for QMH to be drawn from the new ICS strategic fund. Draft guidance relating to 2023/24 and 2024/25 has also been
released by NHSE/I with an approximate 7% reduction in the SEL allocation.

Cash

BPPC

Total cash increased by £10m in January, mainly due to an increase in accrued expenses and deferred income, combined with a larger
decrease in receivables, and lower payments to suppliers than planned. Total cash holdings are now £132.1m which is £42.5m above plan,
principally due to an increase in deferred income and accrued expenses. Once the Trust has allowed for future capital commitments, it will
hold a cash reserve of c.£24m. This reflects the cash buffer required to ensure the Trust is able to support and manage its day to day
operations (salaries, creditor payments etc.) for an approximate two month period and not experience issues with liquidity. This excludes the
payment needed for Provider Collaboratives.

3
The public sector payments target is that 95% of invoices are paid within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice. The percentage
of
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Statement
of Comprehensive Income

• Income: £14.8m behind plan
• The key drivers for the adverse variance are the return of £3.6m
for covid top-up, reallocation of underspend on the new monies
and deferment of income for posts related to the new monies that
are yet to start. This is partially offset by overperformance in some
of the income lines such as overseas patient income. The variance
also includes the deferral of PCs and CC reinvestment reserves (c.
£3.3m)
• Pay: £4.7m underspend
• The overall underspend is due to the fact that services are yet to
recruit into posts associated with the new monies and these
services are yet to go live. The recruitment market is very limited
at the moment as every other provider is trying to recruit from the
same pool. Pay spend however, reported an increase in spend of
circa £0.5m in line with expectation. Part of this increase relates to
the bank incentive payment enacted over the Christmas holiday.
The services have been given the go ahead to recruit into another
of the programmes which will further utilise the overall trust
underspend. These are in line with the Trust overarching priorities.

The Trust delivered a breakeven position before profit on asset
sales at the end of January 2022 (M10). Income was based on the
H2 agreed allocation which takes into account inflationary uplift for
pay-award as well as System and Covid top-up of circa £7.6m
(£2.5m more than the revised H1 allocation). We have continued
to defer funding related to new programmes that are yet to be
recruited into. There is on-going dialogue with commissioners on
how to carry these into 2022/23.

• We expect the run rate to continue to increase, reflecting the
recruitments in the pipeline as well as temporary spend to cover
additional programmes that the commissioners are funding.
• Non-pay: £10.4m underspend
• This is driven by the unallocated funds. This is also being offset by
the CIP target which is being met non-recurrently by the overall
Trust underspend position. The key area of focus continues to be
bed usage. Howbeit, we say a slight reduction in bed demand in
M10.
• Agency Cap: agency spend now stands at 42.0% below the NHSI
4
assigned threshold. An improvement to the prior month.
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Statement
of Financial Position

Debt summary
•

Total Trade Receivables stands at £11.6m at Jan 22, an increase of £0.5m from Dec 21 and a decrease of
£1.3m from year end. £1.7m has been received since month end, including £0.4m for debts over 90 days.
reducing the debt to £9.9m.

•

Debt > 90 days was £3.3m at M10 compared to £3.6m at M9 and £4.2m at year end.

•

Material debts that are a cause for concern and / or an area of concerted effort are noted below:
 LGT: £0.42m (£0.3m QMH recharges). Discussions are continuing with LGT to resolve queries including
£3m owed by the Trust to LGT over 90 days.
 GSTT: £0.38m QMH Pass through costs.
 SLAM: £0.34m Oaktree Lodge and Barefoot Stepdown charges. Copies of invoices sent to SLAM and
awaiting payment.
 LB Bexley £0.32m. All back up provided and awaiting payment.
 RBG: £0.28m Staff recharges.
 Bridges Healthcare Services: £0.25m. Debtor entered into voluntary liquidation. The Trust has
instructed its solicitors to obtain Counsel’s opinion on the case. The Trust awaits an update on this to
see if there is any recourse to the losses incurred.

Payments
The public sector payments target is that 95% of invoices are paid within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid
invoice. The percentage of invoices by volume which were paid in January was 92% by volume and 84% by
value, compared to 91% in December by volume and 87% by value. The fall in value during the month was due
to some high value invoices being settled just outside of the 30 day target period.

5
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Capital Investments
Key Highlights
The Trust negotiated a capital allocation £16.99m from
SEL ICS for 2021/22, however the total planned
expenditure was £17.44m offset by £0.45m profit on the
sale of asset of Murchison Avenue. YTD expenditure for
January was £3.7m behind plan. The Trust has also
secured an additional £0.8m of Unified Tech funding
towards improving cyber security and frontline
digitalisation. A number of additional schemes such as
upgrading the Trust’s WiFi and network infrastructure,
have been identified which can be transacted within the
current financial year to utilise any remaining
underspends, however the SEL ICS have asked the Trust
whether any of its capital allocation for 2021/22 could be
returned and reassigned to other SEL providers.
The Trust has been involved in discussions with its SEL
ICS partners with regards to how future capital allocations
will be shared across the ICS. It has been agreed that
Asset Value (NBV) will form the basis of next year’s
allocation, with 10% of funding set aside to establish a
system wide strategic fund. The Trust has received formal
notification of its budget for next year that its capital
allocation will be £11m with an additional £4m for QMH to
be drawn from the new ICS strategic fund. Draft guidance
relating to 2023/24 and 2024/25 has also been released
by NHSE/I with an approximate 7% reduction in the SEL
allocation.

6
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Risk Register

The table below sets out the current status of all the live Business Committee risks; the register was reviewed and ratified at the January’s Business Committee
meeting.

7

Appendix
1 - Operational Performance
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 CYP: £2,441k underspend YTD
The position is mainly driven by vacant posts £1.8m, linked to Nursing and Psychological staff, which has impacted on waiting list. There is an ongoing
recruitment drive to recruit Nurses and Psychologists from abroad. The service is also forward planning to ensure that the vacancies will be covered next
year. Pay; The pay fell by £110k in month, this is due to the impact of backdated medical payments made last month (£76k). Income; dropped in month
by £153k; this is partly due to a reduction in services provided to Schools (£35k), and a reduction in Music Therapy services income.
 Forensics: £70k underspend YTD
The position is largely driven by income over-performance in Overseas and TILT patients; on the average the services are running at c. 90% and c. 85%
capacity respectively. This is however offset by use of temporary staffing cover for medical vacancy, staff sickness, long term segregation as well as
increased seclusion observation. YTD Non-pay overspend is driven by furniture and medical equipment as well as ISS catering spend due to additional
cost within the Memorial wards (Hazelwood and Greenwood) following the introduction of "cookfreeze" (in-house catering discontinued and outsourced to
ISS). Work is on-going to identify funding for these additional costs from within the position. Other costs incurred relate to Training expenditure as well as
vapes purchase.
 South London Partnership (PCs)/ Complex Care (CC)
A year end reconciliation will be carried out for these service lines at the end of the year and the reinvestment reserve/cost pressure is a three way split
between the SLP trusts. Between PCs and CCs, we have deferred c. £3.3m YTD – refer to appendices 5 & 6. SLP is currently forecasting c. £11m
underspend (£5m PCs and £6m CCs) at yearend with the aim is to carry this forward into future years for reinvestment into services.
 Prisons: £362k underspend YTD
The position is driven by Income received in relation to various contract variations (from NHSE); most of which have corresponding expenditure that is
now being incurred. These include the Mental Health uplift, Elmley Pharmacy, Reception testing etc. Vacancies across the clusters are being covered with
temporary staffing. The financial impact of this is managed through a more efficient rostering system. Non-pay overspend is driven by OPS unitary fees
particularly in the Kent cluster, due to charges in relation to Elmley pharmacy activity. In addition, constant watch within Greenwich cluster has increased
in recent months. Discussion is ongoing with prison's management team to manage this cost. In-month overspend is driven by significant increase in pay
cost compared to trend. This is driven by approved enhancement for bank shift cover in M9. Also, Kent Prisons new contract mobilisation cost (IT,
Network and recruitment) are now being incurred.
 Adult LD: £864k underspend YTD
The underspend is mainly driven by Nursing and AHP staff turnover and vacancies (£587k) within the directorate . The income run rate was lower in
month compared to M9, because there a catch up in prior month’s position. Pay remains relatively unchanged in month; a slight increase which reflects
improvement in recruitment. The additional recruited posts in Nursing were partially offset by leavers in AHP in the month.
 Acute and Crisis: 2,114k overspend YTD
The position is largely driven by private acute & Male PICU Beds, cost of temporary staffing associated with sickness absence COVID and non-COVID
related and underperforming income generation model. The directorate has developed revised bed management/ flow structures, since Nov 2021 to
increase oversight and grip on flow and on private placements. Interface meetings between HR business partners and team leads are ongoing to address
Sickness /absence. Work is ongoing to embed systems on wards to tackle increased observations for stepping up and stepping down and Safe staffing.
Income generation has improved in TARN in the last 3 months due to closer income generating bed management. The tariff for income generating beds is
also being currently reviewed.
 Community Mental Health: £673k underspend YTD.
The underspend is driven by vacancies and staff turnover in Psychological staff £878k, this has been supported by an increase in Medical staffing (£697k).
There has also been a reduction in outsourced clinical services and staff costs linked to the Pandemic. The service is forward planning to ensure all posts
are covered next year. In month pay fell by £185k , linked to the regrading of an Associate specialist (£31k) last month, a reduction in agency Nursing and
Social staff costs (£63K) and AHP (£46K). Non pay costs also fell by £79k in month, due a comparative reduction in computer equipment purchases
(£61K)
 Community Physical Health: £1,498k underspend YTD
The position is largely driven by increased activity within District nursing and Diabetes and increased levels of COVID sickness that have been moved to
COVID cost centre outside of the position (£1.3m). The Directorate is reviewing increased activity in District nursing and will be preparing a request for
additional funding. The pay underspend against the budget is mainly due to delays in recruitment to new investment posts which has been successful in
some and more challenging in other areas (podiatry). The Directorate continues recruitment drive with intention to fill in as many posts as possible.
 HQ Services: £1,578k underspend YTD
The underspend is driven by vacancies; the majority of which are likely to be recruited to in due course. Estates and facilities is underspent due to prior
year related general rate rebate received in M1 as well as current and prior year (M9-12) related vaccination hub income billed in-month. In 8
addition, HR
is underspent due to underspend HEE training and CPD funding. The service is actively working on spending plans.
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Appendix
2 – Agency Analysis

Targeted approach to teams with high
agency spend remains in place with the
agency taskforce regime reinstated as and
when required.
The weekly agency control panel continues
to review all agency requests for clinical
and non-clinical. The only exception relates
to inpatient nursing roles and pharmacy
where the judgement is undertaken locally.
We expect increase in the overall agency
spend as we rely on temporary staffing to
cover vacant shifts as well as the
programmes funded by the new monies.
We reported the lowest agency in the last
14 months, principally due covid and the
Christmas holidays.

•

2021/22 – agency ceiling remained unchanged from 2019/20.

9
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Appendix
3 – Bank Analysis

The monthly bank spend reported a slightly
higher level of spend in M10. This is partly due to
the Trust offer to pay a band higher for shifts
completed during the Christmas season until the
end of January as well as cover for the
programmes related to the new monies. There is
also evidence that acuity and observations are
driving the general bank spend.

There was a significant drop in spend in May and June compared to prior months. The key staffing category with significant reduction in cost is nursing.

10

Appendix
4 – COVID-19 monthly spend
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Monthly spend by cost category
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Appendix
5 Provider Collaboratives
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Appendix
6 Complex Care
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Appendix 7: Cash Bridge

Cash balances
Total cash decreased by £1.6m in Dec, mainly due to a
decrease in trade payables. This was in part to the
resolution of a longer term query with NHS Property
Services.
Total cash holdings are now £132.2m which is £42m
above plan, principally due to an increase in deferred
income and accrued expenses. This surplus compared to
the plan is expected to remain fairly consistent over the
upcoming months, and the Trust is expected to have a
cash balance of c£131m at the end of the financial year,
compared to a planned balance of £83m.

14
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2022/23 Operational planning – Oxleas draft position
Board of Directors
3rd March 2022

1

Oxleas 184
FT High level draft 2022/23 Financial plan

Above is a high level movement/bridge from 2021/22 Recurrent plan to 2022/23 draft plan.

NR £10.43
• Income £7.23m is made up of:
• Kent Prisons removal of old contract
•
•

Expenditure (£7.05m) is made up of:
• Removal of Kent spend budget
CIP £10.25m – this was delivered non-recurrently in 21/22
through vacancies and underspend from new monies

22/23 Change £3.07m
• Income (£16.39m) is made of:
• Net tariff inflator (£5.6m)
• MHIS (£4.5m)
• System & C-19 top up (£6.3m)
•

Expenditure £19.46m is made up of
• Pay award & 1.25% NI increase £7.9m
• MHIS spend £4.5m;
• Cost pressure pot £2.0m
• Non pay inflation @1% £1.6m
• Utility inflation @ 54% increase £1.4m
• Provider Collaborative inflation £1.0m (nil impact)
• ISS London Living Wage £0.6m
• IFRS16 first draft changes in accounting £0.3m
2
• CNST increase in premium £0.2m

Oxleas 185
FT High level draft 2022/23 Financial plan

21/22 CIP was delivered non-recurrently

Business rules include:
•
Net income uplift (£4.6m)
•
Pay award/Employer NI increase £7.9m
•
CNST £0.2m
Local assumptions include:
•
Cost pressure pot £1.5m
•
54% increase in energy cost £1.4m
•
Non-pay inflation £1.0m
•
Soft FM London LW £0.6m
•
Estate & IT specific cost pressures £0.5m
•
IFRS16 £0.3m

System & c19 top-ups (NR) yet to be agreed with SEL ICS
Vacancy factor /Reserves (NR/R)

The position above is subject to the final System allocation – outcome will impact on CIP requirement
3
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2022/23
National planning guidance/ICS deadlines

• 2022/23 Priorities and Operational planning guidance was released on Christmas Eve
• Draft Finance & Contracting guidance and brief details of ICB allocations was also released
• Details have not yet been fully released as at 31/1/22
• SEL ICS CFOs have agreed to the proposed timetable for pulling together the financial plans
February
• 4th - Draft ICB expenditure control totals for each service area (e.g. acute, mental
health, community, primary care)
• 8th – Oxleas Formal Executive
• 15th – Oxleas Business Committee
• 22nd – Oxleas Financial Sustainability Group - FSG
• 24th - agreement of intra SEL contract values and build, including efficiencies, growth
• 24th - agreement of inter contract values and build, including growth (inc. Spec comm)
• 24th - agreement of inter contract values and build, including growth (inc. Spec comm)
• 28th - Trust expenditure plans
• 28th - Review/refresh Trust underlying positions
• 28th - Trust non NHS income assumptions
4
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2022/23
National planning guidance/ICS deadlines cont.

March
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
April

•
•
•
•
•

1st - Proposed distribution of system top-up, convergence adjustments and c19 top-up
3rd – Oxleas Board meeting which will delegate final sign off to Business Committee
8th – Oxleas Formal Executive – draft plan
10th – Sign off of system gap
Trust RAG rated CIP plans
15th - Oxleas Business Committee – final sign off of draft
17th - submission of draft operational plan
22nd – Oxleas Financial Sustainability Group - FSG
31st - signed contracts
12th – Formal Executive - final plan
Mid-April - Sign off of final system position and gap
19th – Business Committee – final plan sign off
26th – Oxleas Financial Sustainability Group - FSG
28th - submission of balanced final operational plans

5
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022
Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status
What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

Item
Enclosure

13
-

Report from the Partnership Committee
Susan Owen, Risk and Governance Manager
Jo Stimpson, Non-executive Director and Chair of the Partnership
Committee
Ify Okocha, Chief Executive
Not confidential
To update the Board of Directors on the work of the Partnership
Committee.

What risks/issues in the The report covers the following items:
report need to be
noted or acted upon?
• Place based update from Bromley
• Integrated Care System (ICS) developments
Where has this report
Partnership Committee 8 February 2022.
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in No such issues to note.
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
ICS – Integrated Care System
terms/acronyms used
SLP – South London Partnership
in the report
LCPB – Local Care Partnership Board
Link to trust strategy

Link to Board
Assurance Framework
Please summarise
implications for:
Quality
Financial

The work of the Partnership Committee links to Building Block five:
Effective partnership working, as its remit is to develop and review plans
in respect of new and existing partnerships and ensure that effective
governance arrangements are in place
1984 – SE London ICS Financial risk (revenue and capital)
1914 – Local authority contracts for integrated and embedded services

The Partnership Committee will consider how new and existing
partnerships will improve the quality of care provide by the trust and the
SLP
The Partnership Committee will consider the financial impact of existing
partnerships, and financial risks of entering into new partnerships
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Equality analysis
Service
user/carer/staff
Executive Summary

The Partnership Committee will ensure that new and existing
partnerships are in line with the equality and diversity priorities of the
trust
The Partnership Committee will consider how new and existing
partnerships will improve patient, carer, and staff safety / experience;
and the workforce implications of partnerships
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (High-level / strategic summary)
Key Highlights, Issues and Exceptions
Place based update from Bromley: The committee received an update on
place-based arrangements for Bromley. The subsidiarity and delegation
arrangements at place and ICS level are being worked through but it is
expected that any decisions related to the work of the Local Care
Partnership Board (LCPB) will be reached on a consensus basis.
ICS developments: The Integrated Care Board will delegate the to the
local care partnerships. We will need to be mindful of the governance
burden, and the changes in behaviours and cultures that will be required
to gain benefits from the new arrangements.
Additional information/analysis
The minutes of the committee are available in the ‘For Information’
section of the board pack.
Action required
For the Board of Directors to note.
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022

Item
Enclosure

Subject

Infrastructure Committee Minutes (Meeting 15 February 2022)

Author

Rachel Evans – Director of Estates and Facilities
Alison Furzer – Director of Informatics
Rachel Evans – Director of Estates & Facilities
Alison Furzer – Director of Informatics

Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status
What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

14
-

For information and to provide assurance to the Board

What risks/issues in the The Board are asked to approve the recommendations related to the frequency
of cybersecurity reporting at Infrastructure Committee and Board.
report need to be
noted or acted upon?

Where has this report
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
terms/acronyms used
in the report

The Board are asked to note:
- the resolution of issues in relation to QMH Theatres 4 & 5 and the follow up
action being taken.
- the new risk associated with the financial treatment of leases within the
accounts under IFRS16
Infrastructure Committee

None

QMH – Queen Marys Hospital
ICS – Integrated Care System
ICT – information communication and technology
GSTT – Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust

Link to trust strategy

Estates and IT infrastructure underpins a number of the trust strategy priorities

Link to Board
Assurance Framework

1994: Cyber security strategic risk
2006: ICS capital regime

Please summarise
implications for:
Quality
Finances

The aspiration to deliver high quality environments across our Estate and make
best use of digital technology.
IFRS16 will impact on capital available
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Equality analysis
Service users/
carers/staff
Executive Summary

The capital programme has been developed to meet the envelope allocated by
the ICS
Future restriction on capital expenditure may impact on some social groups by
inhibiting estate development
The closure of theatres 4 & 5 caused delay to treatment of patients

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Key Highlights, Issues and Exceptions
Cyber security
The committee noted the recent board level cyber security training provided by
NHS Digital at the February Board away day and the detailed ICT cyber security
presentation at the same session. This session provided the committee and
Board with a good insight into the cyber security risks facing the organisation
and the plans that we currently have in place. The committee also noted the
recommendations from the recent KPMG cyber audit and the follow-up actions
being taken.
A formal cyber security strategy will be bought to the Infrastructure Committee
in April. The strategy will incorporate our technology plans as well as how we
focus on the People and Process aspects of cyber security over the next three
years.
There will also now be a brief cyber security update at each Infrastructure
Committee meeting with an annual update to the Board in July.
QMH Theatres
The committee discussed the closure of theatres 4 and 5 by GSTT. RE reported
that, with the involvement of more senior managers from Essentia (GSTT Estates
Management arm), these issues were being resolved and there was an
expectation that GSTT would resume use shortly. The detailed timeline will be
considered at the next Infrastructure Committee together with any learning
arising from an internal review.
The committee were pleased to hear of the proposal to create a QMH
Partnership Board for partners using QMS site.
Approvals
• The committee approved the single tender waiver for works to QMH
roads.
• The committee approved the business case for Wi-Fi replacement
• The committee considered and approved the draft 2022/23 capital
programme (separate agenda item)
Risk
The committee agreed to open a new risk associated with the new accounting
treatment of leases under IFRS16
Additional information
The full minutes are circulated to Board members and provide greater detail.
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022

Item
Enclosure

15
-

Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

People Committee update
Rachel Clare Evans, Director of Strategy & People
As above
No

What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

To update the Board on the January Workforce Committee meeting

What risks/issues in the The Board is asked to note:
report need to be
• the work of the Freedom to Speak Up Guardian service and the
noted or acted upon?
issues highlighted in their report.
• Actions required to reduce health inequalities under the Equality
Delivery System framework.
Where has this report
Executive Committee
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in No
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
EDS Equality Delivery System
terms/acronyms used
VCOD Vaccination as a Condition of Deployment
in the report
Link to trust strategy

Big Priority 3: Making Oxleas a Great Place to Work

Link to Board
Assurance Framework

BAF risk 1213, 1471 and 1502.

Please summarise
implications for:
Quality
Finances
Equality analysis
Service users/
carers/staff

People issues directly affect our ability to recruit and retain good quality
staff and to provide good quality care to our patients.
People issues can result in additional costs in recruitment and temporary
staffing cover to mitigate against any vacancies.
Ensuring that all our staff feel valued and included improves staff
experience, retention and quality of care.
People issues directly affect our ability to recruit and retain good quality
staff and to provide good quality care to our patients.
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Executive Summary

Freedom to Speak Up
The Committee welcomed Simon Patrick, newly appointed Guardian, to
the meeting.
The Trust has completed its second year with the Guardian Service and
the service is working well. Regular monthly meetings are held between
the Director of Strategy and People, the HR team and the Guardian
Service along with quarterly meetings with Senior Independent Directors
and the Chief Executive. Two-way feedback has proved beneficial in terms
of informing the People Strategy and the Guardian Service being to raise
priorities with staff on the ground e.g., Building a Fairer Oxleas.
The Committee heard an overview of themes and issues raised through
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021. During this period 35 concerns
were raised with 8 concerns requiring escalation to the Trust. All other
issues were addressed under informal processes to enable self-resolution.
The 8 concerns that required escalation were all responded to within the
agreed RAG Protocol timeframe. In comparison with three other
comparable Trust’s, generally numbers of cases are similar.
Management issues accounted for the largest proportion of complaints
with most relating to communication issues, as this the case for most
Trusts. Most have contacted the Guardian Service rather than use internal
processes due to a fear of not being listened to or have raised a concern
previously and they feel that nothing has happened. 80% of cases asked
to keep their identity confidential which indicates that there is some work
to be undertaken regarding speaking up within services, however, it is
hoped that due to several initiatives within the Trust that this will reduce
over time. Nursing and Midwifery accounts for the highest number of
concerns raised by a professional group and again this is reflected
nationally.
One of main themes was around management issues, including that line
managers can be aggressive in their style and tone of communication. A
lack of effective and active listening was also raised. There are a number
of initiatives in place to address these issues, including the values and
behaviours framework and the new leadership programme for managers.
An interactive reflective guide on “The Power of Speaking Up” covering
the dynamics of Speaking, Listening & Hearing Up has been produced by
the Guardian Service and is available for all staff on The Ox and via
induction processes.
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The Committee explored the perception that staff felt they would not be
listened to or have raised previously, and nothing has happened. The
Guardian Service noted that the Freedom to Speak Up movement is still in
the early stages and findings are similar across other Trusts. It is expected
that the longer the Trust engages with cultural changes and external
services the more positive outcomes will be seen although it will take
time.
Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2)
The Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2) provides a framework for NHS
organisations to self-assess progress against a series of goals and
outcomes related to health inequalities, patients, staff and leadership.
The Committee heard that public engagement had proved challenging
over the last year because of the pandemic. A consultation is underway
for an EDS3 with increased focus and 11 outcomes with the aim to launch
in summer.
Unless measures are improving outcomes for 2-3 protected characteristics
then the Trust cannot be scored as achieving or excelling.
The Committee recognised that the staff element was well-represented
but that the elements related to health and patients should be bolstered
as the draft was developed. The next draft would be considered at the
Performance and Quality Assurance Committee.
Workforce update
The Committee noted that the key priority was the response to
mandatory vaccinations. A further extraordinary People Committee
session would be scheduled to discuss this in more detail. Timescales had
been amended for a number of the plans included within the People
Strategy.
The Pulse Survey was live throughout the month of January, although it is
anticipated that there may be a negative uptake due to high anxieties
amongst staff.
A recent online session regarding menopause received highly positive
feedback and was well received by staff. It has highlighted an ongoing
need for further events and the CYP Contraception & Sexual Health Team
will be offering further support across the Trust.
The Committee noted that following VCOD, there would be a strong need
to rebuild staff morale. Elements of the People Strategy will make a
difference to staff, but the priority must be to ensure teams are not
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overwhelmed and trying to ensure that additional resources are available.
The Trust was also intensifying its focus on workforce planning.
Mandatory Vaccination
As the data cleansing was progressing, a clearer picture was emerging
about the number of staff who had been vaccinated. At the time of the
Committee, there were about 12% of staff who had not received both
vaccines. Work was ongoing to determine how many of these roles would
be out of scope.
The Committee noted the significant amount of work that had been
involved in cleansing the data, engaging with staff, providing guidance,
training managers and planning the relevant processes, all at a time when
the government guidance was being issued very late in the day.
Extra clinics had been scheduled to facilitate fast access to vaccinations. It
was noted that there are a number of needle phobic staff and colleagues
are being creative to work with individuals.
The Committee thanked all the teams for their ongoing hard work.
Staff Survey
The Committee considered the high-level staff survey results, which are
currently under embargo.
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022
Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status
What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

Item
Enclosure

16
-

Report from the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
Susan Owen, Risk and Governance Manager
Steve Dilworth, Non-executive Director and Chair of the Audit and Risk
Assurance Committee
Azara Mukhtar, Director of Finance
Not confidential
To update the Board of Directors on the work of the Audit and Risk
Assurance Committee.

What risks/issues in the The report covers the following items:
report need to be
noted or acted upon?
• Internal audit reports
• Local Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS) report
• External audit update
• Risk register report from the Health and Safety Oversight
Committee
• Freedom to Speak Up Report
• Interim legal services report
Where has this report
Audit and Risk Assurance Committee 18 January 2022.
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in No such issues to note.
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
LCFS – Local Counter Fraud Specialist
terms/acronyms used
SMT – Senior Management Team
in the report
IBR – Integrated Board Report
FRC - Financial Reporting Council
CQC – Care Quality Commission
NHSR – NHS Resolution
ICS – Integrated Care System
Link to trust strategy

The Audit and Risk Assurance Committee has delegated responsibility for
clinical and non-clinical risk, so has oversight of any risks which may
impact on the delivery of the trust strategy. The committee also has
oversight of financial reporting, which contributes toward the building
block of making the best use of resources.
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Link to Board
Assurance Framework
Please summarise
implications for:
Quality

The Board Assurance Framework update is covered under a separate
item.

Service
user/carer/staff

The work of the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee enables the trust to
identify risks and receive assurance on clinical quality and data quality
through the internal audit programme and the value for money review.
The work of the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee enables the trust to
identify risks and receive assurances relating to financial controls,
financial sustainability and making the best use of resources.
The internal audit plan supports the trust to identify and address
inequalities. Cost Improvement Plans are subject to a Quality Impact
Assessment which will take account of equality issues when assessing
potential impacts on services users or staff.
The internal audit plan includes audits relating to service user, carer and
staff engagement.

Executive Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (High-level / strategic summary)

Financial
Equality analysis

Key Highlights, Issues and Exceptions
Internal audit report on health and safety i-auditor: This achieved an
outcome of significant assurance with minor improvement opportunities
(amber/green), with three medium priority and one low priority
recommendations, which relate to formalising and tracking actions and
sharing best practice. It was noted that teams are taking forward the
actions from the audits, and engagement is building.
Internal audit on partnership working: This achieved an outcome of
significant assurance with minor improvement opportunities
(amber/green), with two medium recommendations relating to annual
strategic planning and benefits realisation. The audit found many areas
of good practice although there are opportunities to be more proactive in
some areas, for example, changes and development within the ICS.
Progress against actions from the internal audit of violence and
aggression and abuse: The committee received a progress report on
actions from the internal audit of violence, aggression and abuse. We
have established a formal sub-group with membership from all
directorates. We are keen to spread the learning and understand staff
perceptions of safety.
Local Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS) report: Planning has commenced
for the declarations of interest audit. There were no new reactive
referrals, but one potential case is being followed up. It was noted that
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whist the number of referrals are lower than some other trusts, this is
driven by the internal control environment, and in Oxleas, this is strong.
External audit update: The planning work will commence in February
2022. The value for money (VFM) review will follow a similar process to
last year. The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) are committed to audit
quality. The work on the review of the Charitable Funds is almost
complete.
Risk register report from the Health and Safety Oversight Committee:
The key themes are establishing a health and safety culture and
understanding of purpose and importance of health and safety, so all staff
take personal responsibility and ownership. Key to this is setting the tone
from the top, and raising the importance of training, advice and guidance.
Culture is critical and progress is being made. The priorities are training at
board level, training for team managers, improving the quality of the risk
assessments, and helping staff to understand their responsibilities.
Freedom to Speak up Report: The Guardian Service continues to work
well. The committee noted that the numbers are a reflection of the
success of service and our confidence in the system. Action is being taken
to raise awareness in Forensic and Prison services.
Interim legal services report: As at 31 December 2021, the trust had
received 24 new claims, and NHS Resolution have closed 20 claims, ie the
outcome has been agreed, including any costs associated with the claim.
There is a caseload of 78 claims of which 25 are prisons clinical claims.
NHS Resolution (NHSR) contributions continue to increase. Spend on
professional legal advice has increased due to a number of complex
instructions this year.
Additional information/analysis
The minutes of the committee are available in the ‘For Information’
section of the board pack, and any of the reports mentioned are available
on request.
Action required
For the Board of Directors to note.
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022

Item
Enclosure

17
-

Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

Health and Safety Oversight Committee
Rachel Evans – Director of Estates and Facilities
Rachel Evans – Director of Estates and Facilities
No

What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?
What risks/issues in the
report need to be
noted or acted upon?
Where has this report
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
terms/acronyms used
in the report

For information and assurance

Link to trust strategy

Big Priority 3 – Making Oxleas a great place to work
Building Block 3 – Creating as safe and learning culture
Building Block 6 – Reducing violence, aggression and abuse against staff

Link to Board
Assurance Framework
Please summarise
implications for:
Quality
Finances
Equality analysis
Service users/
carers/staff

Highlighted issues are being taken forward through the Health and Safety
team and Service directorates.
Health and Safety Oversight Committee
No
RIDDOR – Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences
Regulations

1471: Staff experiencing violence, aggression and discrimination at work

The Health and Safety strategy and programme of audits are designed
to ensure the health and safety of staff, patients and visitors and is key
to the delivery of high-quality services.
There will be cost implications to rolling out training but these are not
significant.
All safety issues need to be considered and managed taking account of
the needs of each individual.
The committee seeks assurance that the safety of staff is properly
managed.
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Executive Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The committee heard about the work being undertaken in the newly
configured directorates to ensure each team had adopted the appropriate
safe system for lone working that was risk based, but also preferably
selected by the team as the evidence shows that this had led to greater
compliance. A further report will be presented at the next committee.
An enhanced RIDDOR process was presented that clarified for teams how
RIDDOR incidents should be reported and managed, to ensure accurate &
timely reporting to the HSE supported by appropriate investigation and
action.
The committee noted the positive outcome from the KPMG internal audit
into the new H&S audit system(I-auditor). It was particularly pleasing as
the system was still in its infancy. A management response to the four
suggested action had been agreed.
An update was received on the various agreed training initiatives. Training
for directors would take place in February and March and the training for
managers was being finalised with the new provider. The H&S e-learning
package is also being updated.
The committee noted continued progress with the annual audits, which
continue to be supported through the offer to managers of a pre-audit
meeting. The audits are all expected to be completed by the end of March.
The H&S report also provided details of 4 RIDDOR incidents (one of which
had subsequently been determined to be not RIDDOR reportable).
The committee received a comprehensive and informative presentation
from the Adult Community Physical Health Directorate and the meaningful
cross engagement within the directorate was particularly noted. It was
positive to hear of the level of focus on H&S within the directorate.
Key Highlights, Issues and Exceptions
As above
Additional information/analysis
The Health and Safety Report provides further detail and is available on
request.
The draft minutes of the meeting are available
Action required
The Board are asked to note this report
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022

Item
Enclosure

18
18

Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

Board visit Reports
Various
Andy Trotter, Chair
Public

What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?

For the Board to note the feedback shared by colleagues during the visits
and actions required.

What risks/issues in the The reports highlight some of the impacts of Covid-19 and staff vacancies
report need to be
on team performance and morale. The support team members provide
noted or acted upon?
each other and receive within the organisation is also highlighted in some
teams.
Where has this report
N/A
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in None
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
PCP Primary Care Plus
terms/acronyms used
ADAPT Anxiety, Depression, Affective Disorders, Personality Disorders and
in the report
Trauma
FTSU Freedom to Speak Up
CLDT Community Learning Disability team
CST Cognitive Stimulation Therapy
OA Older Adults
ICN Integrated Care Network
SPA Single Point of Access
SLA Service Level Agreement
Link to trust strategy

Link to Board
Assurance Framework

The visits relate in a number of ways including:
• Staff morale and making Oxleas a Great Place to Work
• Safety
• Community and inpatient services
• Use of technology and agile working
The visits focus on risks around workforce, safety and sustainability
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Please summarise
implications for:
Quality
Finances
Equality analysis
Service users/
carers/staff

Executive Summary

The reports include information on how teams are working to maintain
and improve quality of services.
The financial implications of some issues are raised.
Equality issues such as the trust’s Building a Fairer Oxleas programme
were discussed.
The reports consider impact on service users, carers and staff and
highlight issues such as social isolation.

Several contacts have been undertaken by Board members over the
past months with services and the attached summarises these visits
and outcomes. An action log is maintained of the issues raised and is
monitored by Service Directors.
Issues raised by colleagues include:
• Staffing difficulties including getting temporary medical staff in
role
• Cardiology pathway
• Hydrotherapy pool closure due to Covid-19 infection control
• Increase focus on community physical health services in internal
communications
• Access to space for telephone consultations
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Non-Executive Directors’ board visits
Date of
visit

10/11/2021

Service
Bexley Community
Mental Health Teams
(Virtual)

Attendees
Jane Wells
Lorraine Regan
Kemi Mateola
Stephen Dilworth
Munya Mangunda
Leise Dallarda
Karin Krall

Brief description of service
The service model is a locality-based pathway of care which offers a range of services comprised
of:
• Primary Care Plus (PCP) pathway which is the direct link between primary and secondary care
services and focuses on tele-triage, providing direct advice and support to GPs and directing
service users to the pathway that will specifically meet their needs.
• The ADAPT Pathway provides focused, therapeutic interventions to adults residing within the
respective Boroughs who require care and treatment for Anxiety, Depression, Affective disorders,
Personality disorders & Trauma
• Intensive Case Management for Psychosis (ICMp) pathway which provides care and treatment
for service users who are diagnosed with schizophrenia or bi-polar disorder

Outstanding issues from previous visit
n/a
Issues explored
Current pressures on the team including rising demand and staffing shortages.

Overview of visit
The visit took place remotely over MS Teams.
Current pressures on the team including rising demand and staffing
The visit commenced with our acknowledgement that we appreciated how hard the team
were working and were sighted on the difficulties that they were having in terms of
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demand, staff shortages and new management arrangements. Indeed, a focused task and
finish group chaired by Iain Dimond is underway to proactively support and address the
challenges with a focus on ADAPT where waiting times are unprecedented and the issues
hard to resolve. The service is rated as a high risk on the directorate risk register and will
be further discussed at the Operational Performance Review. As the visit was conducted
in November and the next Board is in January, a verbal update on progress will be made
when this report is presented.
The key pressures are staff shortages and increasing demand. In terms of staff shortages.
These are mainly vacancies but allowing for sickness too, this is currently at 30%. There
are significant gaps in social workers attributed to not being able to recruit whilst the
Section 75 budget was being reviewed. This is now resolved, and adverts have been
placed for 10 posts in ICMP and ADAPT.
There are difficulties retaining medical locums and they have had 14 in the last year
alone. Dr Inglis is joining as a permanent psychiatrist in November. Dr Doku was
described as amazing and supportive, carrying the whole caseload as responsible clinician.
There is no middle grade doctor in the borough to provide a buffer.
The impact of this is felt in terms of continuity of care and patient experience and places
ongoing demands on administrative staff having to transfer caseloads every time the
locum changes. There are increasing waiting times and complaints.
We explored why the Bexley teams were experiencing difficulties of this nature and it was
suggested that it was a combination of word of mouth, locums finding it too stressful,
wanting to work from home and that the location at Erith is not attractive to candidates.
It was also suggested that the rates of locum pay may be a factor. There has been patchy
leadership for several years. There are currently gaps in the 8a, 8B, 8C and 8D roles due to
vacancies and sickness. There are also difficulties with temporary staff who have no
community experience.
To address the workforce constraints new roles are being explored. They plan to recruit 4
assistant psychologists to run psychoeducation groups and are considering going at risk to
make posts substantive. The teams asked if there was any possibility of looking at wider
agencies that on the current temporary staffing framework.
We heard from the team clear indications of tiredness and risk of burn out as they voiced
that the team are very tired, are an unsafe and empty team, and that there is low morale
and low energy. Despite the difficulties the team provide great support to each other.
They said they were tired but not unhappy. Although the situation they (and we) are
facing is dire, there is a lovely spirit in the teams and a willingness to be flexible and help
and showing hope. There is a lot of laughter, going above and beyond and biscuits. Munya
was described as a great leader. ICMP do 70% of their contacts face to face and ADAPT do
50% of their contacts face to face. PCP and psychology are virtual / telephone. The team
have a focus on wellbeing and feel that if the social workers can be recruited quickly it will
create a better environment. They know that with the new managers coming in there will
be an emphasis on staff and team development.
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The visit was a very sobering reflection of the impact of the pandemic and the wellbeing
of our staff. We will be arranging a follow up visit in January to see how the remedial
actions are working.

Actions will be reviewed regularly by service directors and a board visits action tracker will be used to
monitor progress

Issues raised

Locums and temporary
staffing are difficult to retain
but are needed whilst
recruitment of substantive
staff is undertaken.

Action

Explore with HRD team
whether it is an option
to extend the field of
agencies that are being
used to source these
posts.

Assigned To
Jane Wells

Deadline

Completed
12/11/2021 –
See outcome
below.

Outcome of action:
The preferred option is to resist using non-framework suppliers for non-medical staff. This is
for several reasons, including that (a) the quality of the candidates is often poor and (b)
entertaining off-framework sours our relationship with those agencies who are on the
framework and who adhere to NHSI price caps, and starts to threaten our supply. Trusts
who have used off-framework have ended up regretting it as their other suppliers have
started challenging rates and they have been subject to a crackdown from NHSI.
As an alternative, the temporary staffing team will see if there is more that they can do to
retain the staff that are provided and investigate the difficulties they are facing with supply
and retention and address. They will also look at target bank recruitment for each area if
required.
In addition, Dr Abi Fadipe and Dr Kemi Mateola are working with the Medical staffing team
to find medical staff. They have not used agencies outside the framework. However, the
alleged difficulties with the medics are related to direct engagement.
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Non-Executive Directors’ board visits
Date of
visit

08/12/2021

Service
Bromley Community
Mental Health Teams –
ICMP and ADAPT
(Virtual)

Attendees
Jane Wells
Lorraine Regan
Stephen Dilworth
Hina Agha
Stephen Brown
Stevie Coe
Anthony Hawkins
Tim Sowter
Roman Czornyj
Cathy Carter

Brief description of service
The service model is a locality-based pathway of care which offers a range of services comprised
of:
• The ADAPT Pathway provides focused, therapeutic interventions to adults residing within the
respective Boroughs who require care and treatment for Anxiety, Depression, Affective disorders,
Personality disorders & Trauma
• Intensive Case Management for Psychosis (ICMp) pathway which provides care and treatment
for service users who are diagnosed with schizophrenia or bi-polar disorder

Outstanding issues from previous visit
n/a
Issues explored
Changes to working throughout the pandemic.
Current pressures on the team including rising demand and staffing shortages.
Innovative approaches to workforce development.
Staff welfare.
Homeless shelter.
Electric cars.
Freedom to speak up.

Overview of visit
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The visit took place remotely over MS Teams.
Changes to working throughout the pandemic.
The teams have worked hard throughout the pandemic and remained positive and
cohesive. The key challenge to agile working has been the availability of laptops. This was
affecting productivity and morale and was added to the directorate risk register. The
delivery of laptops has been delayed due to the model of smart reader available. These
are now available and are currently being rolled out with a completion date due by end of
January 2022. They need to also ensure that there is VPN access for laptops as they need
to use when there is no wifi available. The team have progressed to a blended approach
to agile working and being in the office with most now working one day at home. Group
work had been affected but they were able to do virtually once protocols were agreed
and have recently resumed team some face to face. Virtual meetings were good, but the
quality was considered to still be better face to face. The team felt that in respect of agile
working the teams responded very quickly although group work has taken longer to get
up and running on line.
Current pressures on the team including rising demand and staffing shortages.
There has been an increase in demand from ADAPT with increasing anxiety in the general
population. They have had to increase the capacity of their assessment clinics to stay on
top of waiting times and reduce the risk of pressure on the teams through early
assessments. They have seen their ability to respond to this as a positive. The level of
anxiety in population has escalated.

Innovative approaches to workforce development.
Recruitment has been challenging but they have now appointed two good band 6 nurses.
Several innovative workforce developments were shared as examples of how the ADAPT
team are creatively meeting the recruitment and retention challenges. The team
comments that although recruitment responses were poor, the approach to developing
our own staff has been better. It was commented that Bromley not being in the ULEZ was
also helpful.

To address a bottle neck in psychology referrals, ADAPT have developed a whole team
approach using Structured Clinical Management (SCM). They initially trained 4-5
psychologists and care coordinators with HEE funding and since trained more. This has
enabled them to set up group-based interventions by buddying a psychologist and care
coordinator, essentially upskilling the care coordinator. The intervention is evidence
based and strengthened by the joint working to support people with EUPD or complex
emotional needs.
To address recruitment difficulties in band 6 nurses, ADAPT have established a band 5
development role and programme. The first nurse has been successfully progressed to a
band 6. There was some frustration that HR processes delayed the progress but these are
being looked at more widely to maintain equity of access and ensure staff qualifying in
new roles or meeting developmental competencies can be put into the correct roles
quickly. There was a discussion about the importance of using the word developmental in
the advert for the developmental Band 5 scheme as a means of mitigating issues
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regarding the recruits moving to Band 6 roles. We think this may now be resolved so long
as the longer term intention to move to Band 6 roles is clear in the initial advert.

A new clinical associate psychologist role has been established. They are band 5,
undertake an MSc one day a week and are band 6s upon completion. They will focus on
comorbid ASD and mental health issues and are due to commence in January 2022.
A nurse was trialled in the physical health monitoring and a request for ongoing support
made. There was a reflection on needing clearer guidance on ECGs and pathways to link
with cardiologists.
The administration team were praised for their hard throughout the pandemic. Their
staffing has been impacted by retirements, lack of bank cover and delays in start dates for
recruits. They have created a band 4 secondment to set up processes so that CPAs do not
breach but lost a band 3 role to do this. They would like to keep the band 4 role and get
back the band 3 role. The reception team were also praised for their commitment.
Stephen Brown’s leadership and motivation was acknowledged, and commitment given
by the team managers to engage the team in replacement.
Staff welfare
ICMP have had staffing issues but have just recruited three enthusiastic staff. They have
focused on staff support and have weekly mindfulness and embedded reflective practice.
They have a team-teaching programme.
The team raised concern that the work underway to address violence and aggression
needs to be more explicit about including service users sharing graphic images and
offensive e mails and social media and threatening behaviours using technology. This will
be explored as part of reducing violence and aggression so that we acknowledge that
abuse can take different forms including photos in e-mails and we need to cover this
aspect in relevant documents.

There were some worries expressed about the impact of vaccinations as a condition of
employment and support for those affected. There was consideration of vaccination
status of patients and difficulties even when using PPE when patients are distressed.
There may be an opportunity to engage patients in conversations about the vaccination
and support them to access it. There is a project to support patients with Serious Mental
Illnesses to access the vaccination in progress. They raised an issues about local authority

partners who don’t insist on staff being vaccinated but they realise that these staff who fall
under NHS control must now be vaccinated. We all acknowledged there are problems
with patients who aren’t vaccinated and that education and support had a part to play in
resolving this and the ongoing support needed for physical health needs.
The team were reminded that charitable funds were available for appropriate requests.

Homeless Shelter
Bromley GP Alliance, Oxleas and the United reform Church are running the homeless
hostel for the third year running. The Oxleas team are volunteering support and raining
the profile in the local community. The team made favourable comments about Bromley
United Reform Church and work to support homeless.
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Electric cars
The security guard opening the car park at Carlton Parade is working well. The teams have
noted that there are more electric cars and more chargers may be required in the future.
There are 4 bike lockers.
Freedom to Speak Up
All agreed that they were aware of FTSU process, how to access it, and had trust in the
programme.

Actions will be reviewed regularly by service directors and a board visits action tracker will be used to
monitor progress

Issues raised
Staffing

ECGs

Action

Review band 4
secondment and request
for both a band 4 and
band 3 post
Review physical health
nurse provision.
Review the pathway for
cardiology and
information about ECGs

Assigned To

Deadline

Kemi Mateola

31 December
2021

Lorraine Regan

31 December
2021
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Briefing for Non-Executive Directors’ Board visits
Date of visit

1st February 2022

Service and Location

Bromley & Bexley CLDT QMH

Attendees

Lorraine Regan
Iain Dimond
Andy Trotter
Sandra Baum

Brief description of service
Bromley and Bexley Community Learning Disability Team (CLDT) provides specialist community
health services to local people over the age of 18 with learning disabilities. The team consists of
psychologists, community nurses, occupational therapists, physiotherapists, speech and
language therapists and psychiatrists. The Bromley team also has a specialist Epilepsy Service
for people with learning disabilities is also based here.
The team also run groups like the Good Mood group, keeping healthy and the Cognitive
Stimulation Therapy (CST) group (when Covid guidelines allow). We also support the Research
Net group who provide support and guidance to the wider LD community.

Outstanding Actions from the last Board visit
None

Safeguarding Adult Concerns
None

Overview of visit

We met with Julie Clark the team manager for both teams and a cross section of clinicians from
across all disciplines. This was a face to face visit at the teams base in QMH. It was a hugely
positive visit which gave a real sense of the passion and pride the team take in their work. The
following areas came out through the discussion.
Work with LBB has become more challenging since LBB moved social workers out of the
collocated team in response to Covid, there are no plans to reinstate this way of working which
the team feel is a real loss. There were some examples of how this has created challenges for
proactive team working but he team were also able to describe some of the steps they are taking
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to ensure good relationships continue such as ensuring social workers are invited to the team
seniors meeting.
They were enthusiastic about the use of technology, people with Learning Disabilities faced some
of the biggest barriers to a world that moved swiftly onto a digital platform but through creative
and tenacious working they have enabled many service users to access technology and found a
small subset of service users who can do this ably and feel this is a huge advantage.
Hydrotherapy remains closed due to Covid restrictions and we heard of the impact this is having
on the service users for whom this was their main form of therapy. We agreed that it was timely
to do a further risk benefit analysis to see if it was possible to mitigate some of the risk in
restarting these sessions.
Vaccination clinics for people with a learning disability have taken place at QMH, staff from the
team worked on a Saturday alongside Bexley GPs to provide the support and adjustments that
service users needed to be able to have their covid vaccine, this included for some people
providing significant desensitisation work ahead of the day. All staff that were involved said what
a positive and affirming experience it had been.
We were given a case study of a family that had been supported by our intensive support team to
enable better management of challenging behaviour. We also heard about the great work of
research net and the contributions the team have made to raising awareness of Learning
Disabilities in other parts of the system.
Actions will be entered on to Board visits action tracker which will be reviewed at Board every six months

Issues raised

Hydrotherapy remains closed die to
covid.

Action

Iain and Lorraine to share
team concerns with Helen
Nicholls and ask for a further
risk/benefit review.

By who By when
Iain
Dimond

2/2/22
This has
been
actioned
and Helen
is working
with the
Team on a
plan.

212

Briefing for Non-Executive Directors’ Board visits
Date of visit

19 January 2022

Service and Location

Bromley OA CMHT

Attendees

Lorraine Regan
Stephen Dilworth
Jane Wells

Brief description of service

The Bromley OA CMHT offers assessment and treatment for people over the age of 65 with
mental health needs. We also offer support to families and carers which includes carers
assessment if appropriate. The team covers three hubs, each hub consisting of a consultant
psychiatrist and a junior doctor. The three hubs are Bromley, Orpington, and Beckenham.
The doctors work in hubs aligned to GP's. We accept referrals mainly from GPs and the
majority are received via E-Referral. We also provide therapeutic groups to our
clients/carers.
The team has the following structure of staff:
Role
Locality Manager
Team Manager
Admin Team Manager
Admin Team
Duty Senior/CNS
Nurses
Social Workers
Occupational Therapist
Occupational Therapist
OT Instructor
Support Worker
Nursing Associate
Psychiatrists
Care Home Team
Occupational Therapist
Nurse
Assistant Psychologist

WTE
1
1
1
2.60
1
7
3
1
2
1
1
1
3

Band
8A
7
5
3
7
6

0.8
1
0.5

6
6
4

7
6
3
3
4

Comments
Also, Memory Service
Also, Memory Service

Includes an AMPH

Undertaking nurse training

Vacant

Average case load: 370 (many with complex social care needs)
The team works very closely with Integrated Care Network (ICN) where the GPs, Age UK, St
Christopher’s and Social Services to support patients on the frailty pathway.
The team also works closely with hospital Single Point of Access (SPA) to facilitate timely
discharges and ongoing mental health support following discharge.
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Challenges
• Many of our long-term experienced staff are retiring, and we have some less
experienced staff who receive substantial support from colleagues and
management.
•

Number of referrals has increased significantly due to Covid 19 - Complexity of cases
and the social care input required is high

•

Carer’s expectations can be very challenging with limited resources.

•

Many of our clients have no support network in the community and can become
dependent on our services.

STAFF WELLBEING
• Every Thursday morning yoga session for the team.
• The team has adopted agile working pattern.
• The team tries to have regular team lunch
• Regular supervision & reflective practice
• Regular review of caseload and workload management
Overall, can say that we are a well-supported, functioning team who go above and beyond
to provide a safe and effective service to our clients and carers.

Finance and Human Resources
Other relevant information
Outstanding Actions from the last Board visit

The Bromley CMHT was last visited on 8 October 2018. The team raised issues in respect of direct
referral to BHC physiotherapy, suitability of RIO process for OPCMHT needs and not being able to
submit feedback from carers or care homes.
All actions have been reported as closed.
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Overview of visit

The visit was carried out over MS Teams and after introductions Steve asked about Freedom to
Speak up and those attending acknowledged they were aware of the service and new how to
contact them. Information shared on information board.
The conversation was positive, and team commented on how well they work together and
support each other. Very rarely does anyone leave. When the pandemic started team got quickly
set up on MS Teams and had a system in place where every morning and evening people logged
on to keep in touch. For new people who joined team they set up a ‘buddy system’.
What we like about Oxleas
Team feel Oxleas Agile working has supported work/life balance, been a reduction in sickness.
Senior managers are supportive and listen to us. Good place to work. Lots of opportunities.
In next few months there will be 5 vacances (Vacancies: 3 due to retiring but all wish to come back
and continue to work in team). Don’t want to lose the experience to support new staff.
Working Environment
Received laptops and phones quickly which helped them to start agile working. Options for
patients to choose how they wanted appointments worked well especially when supporting the
care homes. Always had access to appropriate PPE when needed.
Transition was smooth helped by the good relationships and support. At times when it was
difficult team pulled together. Continued face to face contacts was important as many older
people struggled at home and needed both emotional and practical help.
Interventions
Groups: As they reduced people got more isolated, especially patients who did not have access to
technology. Team considering charitable funds for ipads for service users. Where possible family
members supported.
Carrying out therapy online was challenging at times: Issue of motivation of patients to stay
engaged. Sometimes felt we were ‘Holding people’...if it was just too difficult, but Important to
keep in touch.
There was a reduction of DNAs.
Team looking forward to being more present at Bridgeways and starting therapy groups again face
to face. This will also reduce staff isolation.
Thinking 3 – 4 years ahead. What will we need:
Difficult to predict. Will always need to adapt and change. Most likely more hybrid working.
Potentially will not have CMHTs and no distinction between primary and secondary services.
People living longer so potentially need services for longer.
Must also learn lessons from the past e.g., closed day hospitals and moved activities to 3rd sector.
Now these services are not always able to meet needs leading to increased isolation.
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Planning for the future
• Need to think about how to attract people into older peoples’ services especially doctors.
• Making sure resources are available especially of new staff
• Social care pathways need reviewing
• Care coordinators have mixed roles and increased workloads
No issues were raised that required actions.

Actions will be entered on to Board visits action tracker which will be reviewed at Board every six months

Issues raised

Action

By who By when
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Briefing for Non-Executive Directors’ Board visits
Date of visit

19 January 2022

Service and Location

Bromley Memory Service

Attendees

Lorraine Regan
Stephen Dilworth
Jane Wells

Brief description of service

Bromley Memory Service has been an independent standalone service since 2013. We are a
Diagnostic Assessment and Treatment Service. We have been part of the Memory Service National
Accreditation Service (MSNAP) since 2014, our next peer review is due July 2022.
We are a multidisciplinary team including 2 Specialist Memory Nurse Independent Prescribers. We
run quarterly workshops for all newly diagnosed clients with the title ‘Living Well with Dementia’. We
run groups for Cognitive Stimulation Therapy and Carers Support. Oxleas are part of the Bromley
Dementia Action Alliance (DAA). We visit all care homes in Bromley on a regular basis, the nurses are
allocated a group of homes that they link with to assist with diagnosis.
Most of our referrals are received via our Bromley G.Ps. We are now receiving most of our referrals
via eReferrals, on average we receive 120 per month. Our current caseload is 760.
We work closely with the Bromley Commissioners to ensure that they/we are meeting the standards
of NHS England around the prevalence of the diagnoses rates in Bromley currently at 66.1%, which is
below the current target of 66.7%. We had previously achieved 72.2% pre-covid.
We work closely with the Dementia Hub in Bromley, giving support, supervision and training, all
clients that receive a diagnosis are signposted to the Dementia Hub. As part of the Dementia Hub
contract, we run 6 sessions per year: Medication in Dementia, Mental Health awareness to Extra
Care Housing Services and Care Managers, this is part of a wider programme that is offered jointly
with Mindcare.
We receive very good patient experience feedback.
As with all other services it has been a challenge over the past year with the Covid 19 Pandemic,
however, we have continued working well and the team have adapted well to all the challenges and
we were able to continue the service during the pandemic.

Finance and Human Resources
Other relevant information
Outstanding Actions from the last Board visit
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The Bromley Memory Service was last visited on 1 October 2018. Actions were raised in relation to
laptops for staff and this was taken forward by the service manager. However, this will have been
superseded by the move to virtual working during the pandemic. There was also an action to
explore the possibility of setting up an SLA with radiology at the PRUH and this was planned to be
the topic of a QI project.

Overview of visit

The visit was carried out remotely over Teams due to Covid 19 and after introductions Steve asked
about Freedom to Speak up and those attending acknowledged they were aware of the service and
new how to contact them.
The conversation was positive, and it was clear the team worked well together with good
leadership. New members of the team who joined during the pandemic felt they had been
welcomed and provided with good support and induction. The team have worked together to keep
focused and service users engaged.
Communications during pandemic
Amazing information, kept well informed, revisit information weekly on a Monday morning and
business meeting is a helpful forum, regularly encouraged to watch the videos on a Friday.
Agile working/virtual connections
Positive experience for patients: offering choices is important and has mean’t less worries for
services users on organising transport to get to clinics, increased engagement with family members
and support networks and less DNAs. The flexibility means we can now do therapy online, giving
more access for carers and improved attendance at groups.
Positive experience for staff: Team feel agile working has reduced staff sickness and greater
flexibility in work/life balance. The charter is reviewed regularly and we continue to accommodate
staff who want to come into office. Team support each other and work well together to come up
with solutions.
Admin Team changed the way they worked, and processes they have in place now much better and
support the work of the clinical team.
Improvements: Support for people with advanced dementia needs more investment.
Plans moving forward
No changes currently in terms of IPC Guidance. Reviewing how to expand face to face clinics and
some team members would like more opportunities to be in Bridgeways together to build
relationships and support each other.
General Discussion
Steve asked team about forward planning e.g., what would service look like in 5 - 10 years and what
would team need?
There might be improved treatments and the need to offer something different, potential for much
more integrated care with frailty, care will always be needed – supporting more people with early
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diagnosis and advanced dementia. Not much support for people in between. Better technology
available to assess and review.
No issues were raised that required actions.
Actions will be entered on to Board visits action tracker which will be reviewed at Board every six months

Issues raised

Action

By who By when
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Non-Executive Directors’ board visits
Date of visit

10/01/2022 @
09.00 – 11.00

Service

Community Contraception, Sexual
Health & Gynaecology

Attendees

Rachel Clare Evans (Exec)
Lisa Thompson
Sabitha Sridhar

Brief description of service
Service outline: The service is an appointment based open access/self-referral service for the
provision of non-complex sexual health and all levels of contraceptive care.
The community gynaecology service provides clinics for GP referred residents of the boroughs of
Greenwich and Bexley.
Key personnel: Dr S Aung (Consultant Clinical Lead) Ms Lindsay McCarthy (Senior Lead Nurse)
Lynda Gribbon (Administration Manager) Mark Young (Operational Manager)

Overview of visit
The visit highlighted that this a high-performing and innovative team that has driven real
transformation over the last few years. Despite the pressures of the pandemic, the team have
consistently maintained the 48-hour turnaround for seeing patients.
The pandemic has hastened the implementation of various innovations which are delivering real
benefits to patients. By combining phone consultations with more targeted face-to-face
scheduled appointments, the team are delivering a more effective service as well as reducing the
need for crowded waiting rooms and lengthy queues. The use of home sampling kits is also
delivering benefits and improved convenience for patients. The team are clear that they would
not want to revert to the previous ways of working.
The team are now wearing uniforms, from an infection control perspective. This was initially
resisted by some staff, but staff now prefer to wear the uniform and there appears to be a
positive impact on the interactions with patients as a result.
The service in Greenwich is commissioned differently to other areas. Areas that take a tariffbased approach are able to drill down further into the data and also to recover charges more
easily. This will be something to consider for the future.
The team were passionate about the excellent work that they do and the difference that they
make. There was an appetite to be doing more to reach out to young people and opportunities
were identified for joining up with other services in the CYP Directorate such as Young Greenwich
and YOS.
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The team reported positively on the move to the CYP Directorate and the welcome they had been
given.

Issues raised

Internal communications
sometimes appear to
prioritise mental health
services over community
health services
The service would like to
have some rooms allocated
on the first floor to carry out
telephone consultations and
free up clinical space on the
ground floor to maximize
the number of appts that
can be offered

Action

Review the order that
Directorates are referred
to in communications,
e.g. in the Staff
Recognition Awards
Review room allocation
for scope to secure rooms
on the first floor

Assigned To

Deadline

Lisa Thompson and
Rachel T Evans

28 February
2022

Rachel Clare Evans &
Lisa Tan

28 February
2022 and
ongoing
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Board of Directors
3 March 2022

Item
Enclosure

19
-

Subject
Author
Accountable Director
Confidentiality/
FOI status

Council of Governors update
Sally Bryden, Associate Director and Trust Secretary
Andy Trotter, Chair
Public

What is the purpose of
bringing this report to
the Board meeting?
What risks/issues in the
report need to be
noted or acted upon?
Where has this report
been previously
discussed?
Are there any issues in
the report that might
cause upset?
Glossary of
terms/acronyms used
in the report

For the Board’s information

Link to trust strategy

Updates on the strategy are shared with the Council of Governors and
they are particularly involved with building block two.
N/A

Link to Board
Assurance Framework
Please summarise
implications for:
Quality
Finances
Equality analysis
Service users/
carers/staff

Board is asked to note:
• Activities of the Governors over the past two months
Not applicable
No
NED non-executive directors

Governors are informed of quality developments through meetings and
virtual visits to services.
No significant financial implications
The membership committee aims to ensure a diverse range of people
are involved and represented in the organisation.
Governors learned more about service user and carer involvement and
also represent these groups.
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Executive Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Since the last Board meeting, the Council of Governors has not met formally
but governors have been involved in a range of activities including:
20th January - Membership Committee Communications Working group
reviewing membership newsletter
24th January – Governors informal virtual coffee morning
31st January - Governors took part in virtual launch of Oxcare
24th February – NED Nominations Committee and all governors invited to take
part in NED reappointment survey.
Governors have continued to observe board sub-committees and were kept
updated with the Vaccination as a Condition of Deployment activity.
Governors have also been invited to join the webinars in March to learn more
about the creation of the South East London Integrated Care System and
events by the London Safety in Mental Health Settings project. Bexley
governors have also had the opportunity to take part in local urgent care
public engagement project. Bexley governors were later also informed of the
dates that the public workshops were taking place.

Additional information/analysis
Council of Governors’ minutes.
Action required
The Board is asked to note the report.

